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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to prohibiting entry onto private land without permission. 
  

Minutes:                                                 Attachment: 1 -  8 

 
Vice Chairman Karls:  Opened the hearing on HB 1290. 
 
Representative Simons: Introduced the bill. (Attachments #1) Handed out a lot of them 
together.  Went over the handouts and the bill.  (Stopped 16:00) 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  The exclusions to this is a person’s driveway or roadway. 
 
Representative Simons: Anything that can be seen is buildings we are talking about here.  
A group called Protect the Harvest are behind this bill. 
 
Vice Chairman Karls: Do you need to stipulate buildings? 
 
Representative Simons: I like the word land.  If I am in a ravine no one has a right to be on 
that land, without permission, whether there is a building there or not. If they can see it from 
the road or a plane that is fine.  What is the fourth amendment? To roam around on 
someone’s land without permission is called criminal trespass without a search warrant.  
 
Rep. Jones:  We just had a bill with drones.  I found out I do not own the air.  There isn’t 
much on our land that can’t be seen unless it is in a building.  
 
Rep. Magrum:  I like your bill. I don’t like, Line 13 you have probable cause?  That is too 
simple to use. 
 
Representative Simons: We were matching the Century Code.  Anything over fifty percent 
is probable cause. My intention is not to limit the law enforcement from anything. My intention 
is to give a fourth amendment right to agricultural people. Which they do not have right now.   
 
Rep. Hanson:  Probable cause is not 51%, Probable cause is reasonable belief.   
 
Representative Simons: Legislative counsel just gave me that definition. 
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Vice Chair Carls: Any more support? 
 
Pete Hamond:  ND Farm Bureau:  We support this bill. 
 
Rep. Jones: How   much are you hearing it from your members about their concerns along 
these lines? 
 
Pete Hamond:  It is a legitimate concern.  
 
Opposition: 
 
Aaron Burst:  Association of Counties and States Attorney’s:  Everything is private land 
except the streets, public buildings, the Capitol. I think this bill is too broad.  The Supreme 
Court has been giving us direction for years on the open concept.  What about the drive 
ways?  That would be private land. They would not be able to serve due process on these 
ag people because they are law enforcement officers and they cannot go onto private land.   
So we object this bill.  
 
Rep. Vetter: On line 12 could you change the language to:” A law enforcement officer may 
search”, would that work? Instead of having (this land) could you change that?  
 
Aaron Burst: That is why we left it at the courts discretion on a case by case basis. You can 
define outbuildings for ag. But you can’t put in statute what the court has to determine.  
 
Rep. Vetter:  Officer may not search out buildings on the bill or is that still a problem? 
 
Aaron Burst:  There might be a way to address this.  I can try to help you.  We will have to 
disagree on keeping people off private land. 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson: I am confused. 
 
Aaron Burst:  The current law would say there is no expectation of privacy.  It does not say 
you cannot change the expectation of privacy. 
 
Rep. Jones:  The bill is suggesting farm and ranch land and out buildings.  They are only 
saying receives permission from the owner. 
 
Aaron Burst:  There is something we can do. 
 
Rep. Jones:  We can fix that stuff as law makers. 
 
Rep. Simon: If the sign on a road says no trespassing on private property, how do you serve 
a warrant right now? 
 
Aaron Burst:  That is relatively easy because there is an exception in the trespass law that 
it doesn’t apply to law enforcement.  
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Representative Simons: There are certain places you can’t go in the mall, like someone’s 
office. 
 
Aaron Burst:  There is no expectation of privacy 
 
Representative Simons: If that is the case is it not the same thing that it is reasonable if I 
found a deputy in my field without probably cause? 
 
Dennis Roar, Was Chief of Police of Mandan for 21 years.  The focus is primarily expectation 
of privacy.  Open fields document I am familiar with. I can see this causing problems with law 
enforcement. 
 
Chief Jason Ziegler, Chief of Police, Mandan: (Attachment 2)  
 
Lynn Helms: North Dakota Industrial Commission, (NDIC): (Attachment 3)  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We are caught up on law enforcement officers? 
 
Lynn Helms:  Yes 
 
Representative Simons: With permission you have all the rights you want. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Visit with Mr. Burst and maybe help us with this bill.  
 
Testimonies handed out: 4,5,6,7,8 
 
Neutral: 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to prohibiting entry onto private land without permission. 
  

Minutes:                                                   

 
 Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1290. 
 

      Rep. Vetter:  One of the issues they had was the wording of private land versus 
      buildings.   
 
      Rep. Simons:  It is not. It is all private land and what is reasonable cause on private 
      land.   
 
      Rep. Vetter:  The other part is the language of may not enter versus the language of 
      search.  Defining expectations of privacy. 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Is there a desire to amend the bill?  Are there any amendments 
prepared for the bill? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Based on the testimony that we received and all the concerns on 
entering on private land and lack of having emergency law enforcement had a lot of concerns 
about their ability to deliver search warrants and other nonemergency reasons for  
entering on to property.  I would move a Do Not Pass on the bill. 
 
Rep. Hanson:  Seconded motion. 
 
Representative Simons: That is not true. The road going into a place is public property. 
They can drive to someone’s home. 
    
Chairman K. Koppelman: So is someone’s driveway public property?  
 
Representative Simons: They can walk into a location but they need reasonable cause 
to go behind without reasonable expectation. 
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Rep. Hanson:  The Mandan Chief of Police testified it would restrict both welfare checks and 
investigation.  Lynn Helms had concerns on the bill too. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Is this a legal opinion or is that simply a law enforcement opinion 
not based on the supreme court and other court cases?  They can have an opinion 
that’s wrong and it is not legally binding, in which case it is our job to research and 
educate them as to what the answer is. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Law enforcement are the people that do this every day.   
 
Representative Simons: In regards to the oil fields that is not true.  They can go on any 
property where they have leases and easements.  You will hear more about this and what 
they are saying 60 ft. from your home you have no private property.  13 states have adopted 
similar language. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We did not have anyone else in favor of the bill. 
 
Rep. Paur: I think we should withdraw the Do Not Pass and follow Rep. Vetter’s 
suggestion that we amend it instead of entry unto private land, search private land.   
 

     Rep. Jones: We can vote down the Do Not Pass motion and put it back on the floor. 
     We can get another vote.  

 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Those are both options. 
 
Rep. Becker:  Those testimonies on well checks are erroneous and they have an intent 
behind them and you see it frequently to cause concerns what may or could possibly 
happen.  Privacy in the home is clearly higher than the standards we are looking at here 
or what exits here, but they can still do wellness checks. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I disagree with that wholeheartedly based on the plain language 
that is written in the bill in front of us, where it says not withstanding any other provision 
law enforcement officer may not enter private land unless the law enforcement receives 
permission from the landowner or lessee of the land. The only exceptions are probable 
cause of this if you have a search warrant or if you are responding to an emergency or 
accident or other threat to public safety. 
 
Rep. Becker:  I would resist the motion with the intent to amend and take a new look 
at it. 
 

      Chairman Koppelman:  I am hearing resistance for the withdrawal of the motion and 
      the second for Do Not Pass, so the committee has the opportunity to pass the motion 
      for the Do Not Pass, then it would leave the committee with that recommendation, also 
      has the option to defeat the motion for the Do Not Pass in which case the bill would be 
      back before us and other motions could be made, be they motions for amendments or 
      others. 
 
      Voice Vote taken Yes  4  No 10  Absent 0  
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      Chairman Koppelman:  Motion fails.  We have the bill still before us. 
 
       Rep. Jones:  On line 10, instead of may not enter private land unless law enforcement 
       officer receives permission.  I made a line and said strike the private land and make it 
       so it is farm and ranch land and buildings.  
 
       Rep. Koppelman:  So then it would only apply to buildings on a farm or a ranch and 
       not other kinds of property? 
        
      Representative Simons: We are talking about the 4th amendment here.  So what if 
      you are not a farmer or rancher but own land out in the country?   
        
      Rep. Jones:  I am not sure about the term open fields doctrine.  Maybe the thing to do 
      if that’s wording that is referenced in his materials and his sources maybe we could 
      say buildings and lands subject to the open fields doctrine.   

 
Chairman K. Koppelman: It might be clearer to say buildings or farm and ranch land. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I would like to add instead of may not enter, add may not search.  It  

 should be on number 10 and number 12. 
 
 Rep. McWilliams:  Do we have a clear meaning of what is a farm and what is a ranch? 
 
Chairman Koppelman:  Am I hearing that the wording should be in your amendment 
may not search buildings or land? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I understand the limitation to searching inside of a building, but 
I think we are going to run into problems if we limit searches of open land.  For those 
who don’t understand, the open field doctrine was a US Supreme Court decision that 
basically said that if it is out in the open and can be viewed by the naked eye, then 
that is not considered private.  Open field doesn’t constitute a search or seizure under 
the 4th amendment because there is no expectation of privacy in something that is not 
enclosed. 
 

     Representative Simons: I provided the information from the US Supreme Court.  
 
      Rep. Buffalo:  I grew up in a rural area and I understand the concerns.  I am concerned  
      when people are being held captive in an outbuilding? 

 
Representative Simons: If I have evidence it is due process and this protects everyone. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Currently they would have to have a search warrant.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  What are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I move the amendment line 10 would say search instead of enter 
and may not search buildings or private land unless. 
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Rep. Paulson:  Seconded motion. 
 
Chairman Koppelman:  Discussion?   
 
Voice Vote carried. 
 
Hearing closed.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to prohibiting entry onto private land without permission. 
  

Minutes:                                                   

 
 Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1290. 
We had a Do Not Pass motion which failed 4 to 10. We had an amendment to the 
bill reads line 9 Notwithstanding any other provision of law and subject to subsection 3 
a law enforcement officer may not search buildings or private land unless 
 the law enforcement officer receives permission from the land owner or a lessee of the land.  
 
Representative Simons: Discussed location of private property.  I do not want special 
rights in this bill at all.   
 
Chairman Koppelman:  We have the amended bill before us.  What are the wishes of  
the committee? 
 
Rep. Magrum:  Motion for Do Pass as amended. 
 
Rep. Jones:  Seconded motion for Do Pass as amended on HB 1290. 
 
Chairman Koppelman:  Discussion? 
 
Roll Call Vote Yes 9 No 4  Absent 1 
 
Rep. Jones is the Carrier.  
 
Hearing closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 29.29 of the North Dakota 
century code relating to prohibiting entry onto private land without permission.  
 

Minutes:                                                 7 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson opens the hearing on HB 1290. 
  
(1:05-8:45) Luke Simons, District 36 Representative, testifies in favor (see attachment 
#1) 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: You said you want probable cause, but the bill also requires a search 
warrant? 
 
Representative Simons: That’s not the way I read that. It says ‘with’ those things. They can 
enter with probable cause, or a search warrant. That’s the way it is. All we’re asking for is the 
same rights. If a police officer walks into a gas stations and sees illegal activity, he does not 
need a search warrant in a privately run business. However, he does need a search warrant 
to go into the janitor’s room or office, because that’s not a public place. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I haven’t heard any rumors in this bill. I don’t see an ‘or’ after the ‘a.’ 
In paragraph 3, it appears that it would have to be probable cause and a search warrant, or 
if you don’t have a search warrant, it has to be an emergency.  
 
Representative Simons: If it reads that way, I would want you to change that. 
 
Senator Bakke: In the scenario you gave us about the vet going out to check on the horses, 
does that not qualify as probable cause? 
 
Representative Simons: I could accuse you of something, as a foster parent, and your 
social workers or the police have the right to ask you something, but they wouldn’t have the 
right to search your home. They would have to have permission or a search warrant. I could 
accuse anyone of anything, but that’s not probable cause unless they see it. 60 feet from 
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your home is curtilage, after 60 feet, they do not need a search warrant. In your testimony 
packets, I have two supreme court cases that came before North Dakota where the supreme 
court ruled what was open fields doctrine and for the most part, all law enforcement is doing 
this. However, I know dozens of cases that they do this. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Let’s do a scenario. I have an old bachelor neighbor who’s not doing well, 
we haven’t seen him in three weeks. I call the cops, I’m concerned. They go to his home and 
look in the windows. Does this affect that? A different scenario, my sister in law calls the cops 
and says Janne’s horses are in the barn and they’re starving. I would call that hearsay, and 
the first one probable cause. How does your legislation affect either of those? 
 
Representative Simons: I would say we need to handle it the same way it is done in town. 
Your situation would not happen anyway, because your house is protected under the Fourth 
Amendment. Let’s say that my shop in town, same scenario, let’s say I didn’t have a wife, 
and you said Luke didn’t come home yesterday, he’s my neighbor. I wonder if he’s not in the 
shop in town. It would be the same thing at that point. 
 
Senator Luick: What did you call that 60 feet out from the house?  
 
Representative Simons: That is called curtilage. I did provide you a definition of open fields 
doctrine and curtilage as well. Those farmsteads, 60 feet from those homes are not protected. 
If it was a construction company in town, every outbuilding would be protected under Effects, 
under the Fourth Amendment.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Is curtilage an established legal doctrine? 
 
Representative Simons: My attorney told me that it was.  
 
(16:20) Terry Jones, District 4 Representative, testifies in favor 
 
Representative Jones: To respond to Senator Myrdal’s question, under the bill, subsection 
c of 3, it says or a threat of public safety. If they’re called upon to check on someone to see 
if they are safe, that would be covered under that ‘or’ provision. Because it says a search 
warrant is needed, or responding to an emergency situation, an accident or other threat to 
public safety. That would take care of the person checking on somebody’s safety. To answer 
your question about the horses in the barn. If somebody is trying to cause problems, it’s 
appropriate for them to have to get a search warrant before they go out there, maybe that 
will reduce some of the nonsense calls that landowners are getting on their livestock. I 
support this bill. Under the way it’s written, everything that needs to be down can be done. 
 
Senator Myrdal: The House changed line 10, under subsection 2, from ‘not enter’ to ‘not 
search.’ Do you recall the reasoning for that? 
 
Representative Jones: We felt it was appropriate to look into a building, to glance in, but 
not to do a deep search. 
 
(18:55) Caleb Melhoff, rancher, testifies in favor 
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Caleb Melhoff: As a rancher, my buildings and my land are my place of business. My 
outbuildings are 8 miles away from my house, they are not covered under the current law, 
even though they are my place of business. As mentioned before, a police officer can enter 
a gas station, but he can’t go into the office. Basically what this does is expand where a 
reasonable expectation of privacy is currently acknowledged. This says case law doesn’t 
recognize ranches as private businesses but it should, because that’s exactly what they are. 
It covers that exception in flawed case law. To answer some questions, it changed from 
‘enter’ to ‘search’ so government officials could check water, to check on people. Search is 
more specific. The definitions of probable cause would all still apply. If there is an extra ‘or’ 
needed in one of those, then that would be in the heart of the law to change that. 
 
(21:05) Pete Hanebutt, North Dakota Farm Bureau, testifies in favor 
 
Pete Hanebutt: It’s a simple private property issue for us. If my home is my castle, and if my 
detached garage is part of my castle, why is my detached pole barn not part of castle? The 
farmstead should have the same assumption of private property as anybody’s house in town. 
My farmstead and the parts thereof should be given that same respect of private property.  
 
Senator Luick: Do you think that the buildings 4-10 miles away should have the same 
curtesy in this law? 
 
Pete Hanebutt: I doubt that those buildings would be part of the farmstead. If you are right 
there on the farmstead and you have separate buildings way far away, of course if someone 
has probable cause and they smell meth being cooked, that’s a different thing. This is about 
the private property of the owner and their part of life right there. 
 
Senator Luick: What would happen in the case the previous testifier laid out, where their 
actual functioning buildings for their business are located far away. Do you think that these 
protections should adhere to those buildings as well? 
 
Pete Hanebutt: We know that we have a lot of farmers with shops at different locations. I 
would be in favor of protecting their private property at that shop if it’s a distant location. It’s 
still their private property, you drive up their lane, you’re invading their private property. Even 
if the barn is not at their domicile, in my view.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: You’re talking about the buildings, but you didn’t say anything about 
the land. What’s your position on that part? 
 
Pete Hanebutt: We have a different bill to talk about invading people’s private property on 
land. Our stance is pretty clear, all land should be considered posted, and you shouldn’t go 
onto it. This might be parsing with law enforcement; I hate to take a hypothetical question as 
a non-lawyer.  
 
(24:40) Julie Ellingson, North Dakota Stockmen’s Association, testifies in favor 
 
Julie Ellingson: I offer somewhat conflicted testimony. We have a unique organizational 
structure. We have a membership based, dues based organization. We also have a division 
which is non-private, where we have statutory responsibilities and administer the brand 
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inspection recording program for the state and have four law enforcement officers as part of 
that team. Of course our membership organization founded in the principles of private 
property rights and supports efforts to fortify those protections for individual owners. We look 
to this bill in that spirit, that that is trying to be what it captures. Also recognizing as you can 
tell by this room that there’s concerns amongst law enforcement about the words. Capturing 
that to make sure they have the important tools to protect our safety and the public are in 
place. We offer our commitment in helping the committee. 
 
Senator Myrdal: How does that effect your brand inspectors? What authority do they have 
in comparison to a law enforcement officer? 
 
Julie Ellingson: We have a robust brand inspection team. Many of those members are 
simply inspectors. We have four licensed peace officers, charged with the task of 
investigating crimes and enforcing livestock related laws. In some cases, that might be stolen 
animals or things of that nature, so this impacts them as well. Not our entire team would have 
that ability; only about four of almost 200 across the entire state. 
 
(27:35) Lad Erickson, Mclean County State’s Attorney, testifies in opposition 
 
Erickson: I would like to correct some issues. All structures, whether they are eight miles 
from a farm or eight feet, have to be searched by consent, an emergency, or a search 
warrant. There are no exceptions to that. You have protection if you have your barn a mile 
away, or a shed or a tree house, the court has a test on open fields. To give you some 
background, one of the things I would caution the committee about is getting into search and 
seizure in legislation. The Fourth Amendment has 54 words in it. It is the most litigious 
amendment of the Bill of Rights. It has volumes of law books, it’s based on reasonableness 
and expectations of privacy. Every year the North Dakota supreme court and courts 
throughout the land are dealing with Fourth Amendment issues on cell phones, GPS trackers, 
and everything. When you fix things in statutes that don’t have reasonableness and 
expectations of privacy, fungibility terms that let you make sure you don’t have absurd results, 
you can get those absurd results. The precipice of this bill seems to be animal cases. That 
is not all that is impacted by it. There are a number of concerns with broad areas that will be 
impacted. I’ll start with animal cases and briefly talk about how that works with a deputy. You 
get tips; a lot of times some of those are anonymous, some are unfounded, some are founded 
but want to remain anonymous. The deputies have to follow up on a tip. For example, a 
neighbor say some cattle are starving. A deputy drives into the farmyard and notices that the 
cattle are eating trees. If you look at the bill, they are entering to follow up on a tip, they aren’t 
searching, but the way this is defined, once you look and see some trees that the cows are 
eating, you take a picture, now you are searching. You’re at this point determining if there is 
validity to a tip. Then the deputy can look around the farmyard and see that a cow is starved, 
it got hooked in some wire and lay there until it died. You can see the living animals are 
emaciated and ready to die. From just driving into the farm yard, that’s where you then 
determine that you have a valid tip or not. The second example is a Fish and Wildlife Service 
fencer was out fixing fence and noticed a horse that had a chain growing into its nose from 
a halter that had been on there too long. A deputy drives into the farmyard and see this horse 
with a chain growing into its neck. He’s not searching, he’s just driving into the yard. Takes 
a picture of the horse, and gets a close-up and the chain is growing into the nose. Then you 
start to get to search and seizure stuff on how you deal with it. That initial follow-up on a tip 
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is what the bill is meant to avoid. I think that’s terrible policy, because our animal code seizure 
stuff is in title 36. We have serious implementation problems with that chapter, it has to be 
avoided a lot of times when we seize animals. Since the felony law we’ve had one that has 
a bunch of functional problems. The precipice of that is concern that animal rights groups will 
be empowering law enforcement to seize people’s animals. I can’t think of anything more 
empowering than if deputies cannot follow up on calls to check out information by driving in 
a farmstead. I think that will cause serious problems. The implications of this bill, when you 
talk about open fields, it started in the 1920s.  
 
Senator Luick: What part of the bill are you referring to, that the deputy can’t drive into the 
yard? 
 
Erickson: ‘Law enforcement may not enter private land without permission.’ The section line 
is private land. A farm yard is private land. Open fields doctrine started in the 20s in 
Appalachia, when revenue officers were looking for stills. Then in 1970, some marijuana 
growers in Kentucky. It further developed the open fields doctrine. In North Dakota, our two 
leading cases on open fields are Game and Fish cases. One in 1984, there was a duck killing 
operation, where Wardens sat on a hill a half mile away and watched over limit duck hunting 
going on. They were stashing the ducks. That was an open fields case, once they 
approached into the camp, there was consent to search. The challenge came, ‘did you 
originally have permission to stand a half mile away and watch with binoculars?’ In 2010 the 
supreme court revisited a case where a farmer watched some hunters shoot a buck in an 
illegal area. He gave some information to a deputy, the deputy drove into the farmyard of the 
people who had shot the buck. They were standing around the pickup with the buck in it, 
having a beer when the deputy rolled in. The challenge was that was open fields litigation, 
did the deputy have the right to just drive in the farmstead where this pickup was out in the 
open? The court reaffirmed you can drive in there; you’re not searching any buildings. If that 
pickup driven to a garage or barn, then you would need a search warrant, under current law. 
The court tests are four factors. One, the proximity to the home. There’s no law on distance, 
it’s not 60 feet, it’s not 600 feet, it’s based because of the fungibility, the circumstances of the 
case. The courts look at the distance. The second factor is whether the area is included within 
the enclosure surrounded by the home. If you have a home that has a fence. The third factor 
is the nature and uses of the property. The fourth factor is steps taken by the resident to 
protect the area from observation. That’s why all barns, all out buildings, all shops happen to 
be search warrant. They are already protected under the constitutional cases. You can’t look 
in them from the outside. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Representative Simons says you can go into a barn without a 
warrant, you are saying you can’t. 
 
Erickson: You can’t. That is based on case law interpreting the Fourth Amendment. Absent 
an emergency, you cannot go in the barn without probably cause. There’s ample case law in 
North Dakota on that. 
 
Senator Myrdal: You were saying that’s based in case law. Is it in century code? 
 
Erickson: No it’s not, and I would suggest it shouldn’t be. The way you do Fourth Amendment 
litigation, it comes back to this reasonableness, is there an expectation of privacy, here’s a 
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particular court case. If you fix this in statute, then you have to add in their ability to look at 
all circumstances. Pretty soon you’re doing what the case law already does and if you fix 
without that, you can have some unintended consequences. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I see the intent of the sponsor. It’s an intent that’s concerning. It’s not in 
century code. As a constituent, if this happens to you, your only remedy is to go to court.  
 
Erickson: I understand, but you would have to go to court either way. If you think that the 
police violated your rights, whether it’s a statute or constitutional principles; the only way to 
enforce that is to go to court. Constitutional doctrines are traditionally court doctrines. I can’t 
think of areas where the legislature deals with constitutional doctrines. I’m suggesting it’s 
better handled there under the courts.  This bill deals with things like missing persons and 
murder cases, things well beyond these animal searches. There was a lady that pled guilty 
to negligent homicide. She had a meth problem and she left her 4-month old infant by a 
slough. The police contact her; she has a vague understanding of where she left the child. 
That’s an open field search, the Sheriff’s department has to go. You don’t have probable 
cause; you don’t necessarily have an emergency for a specific track of land. You’ve got a 
massive amount of land you have to search rapidly. That’s why the court test makes sense.  
This is an outline of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation. Each one of those oil wells has 
roads to them. As you get close to the lake, it’s very much like the badlands. There’s very 
few residences in here. The night Olivia Lone Bear disappeared, a massive search is started, 
all law enforcement is searching, including deputies on horses. Numerous people are driving 
on these oil roads looking for her. That goes on for months, hundreds of thousands of acres. 
If they get to an out building and an oil well, and there is a building there, they need a search 
warrant to search in there. The way the bill is written, the act of driving in on that oil road to 
look for a murder scene violates the bill. It doesn’t violate the open fields doctrine. If they 
would run across a murder scene there, you are statutorily say that that is unreasonable 
under this bill, when the deputies are searching. That would exclude the evidence. It’s the 
thing that is implicated when you are trying to do search and seizure things in statutes. It has 
all sorts of unintended consequences, the policy is better dealing with the court tests, 
because the premises of the bill are not accurate. All buildings are subject to probable cause 
search warrants. No matter where they are. That premise isn’t needed, but what you are 
implicating is missing persons and other types of searches.  
 
Senator Luick: First, subsection 3, line 16. The first part of that section says, ‘that law 
enforcement officer may enter private property without permission if responding to an 
emergency situation, accident, or other threat to public safety.’ Wouldn’t that take care of 
your concerns about these facilities if you had an emergency you are responding to? 
 
Erickson: In some circumstances you could. But Olivia Lone Bear, that went on for months, 
there’s not an emergency at the time. You are just searching all property. There are times 
when it could be. Like that infant, the court might rule, you had an emergency, but not for a 
particular track of land, because you don’t know where the lady left her child. It will depend 
on the facts, that’s why I think the open fields doctrine and the courts is much better.  
 
Senator Luick: How does this relate to laws that are being upheld within an urban area? 
How do property rights differ out on the farmstead versus garages or buildings within a 
political subdivision? 
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Erickson: That’s complex question, because they don’t differ. Constitutional rights apply 
across the board. There are circumstances that happen in urban areas that are different than 
in rural areas. One thing is houses that are stacked next to each other don’t have broad 
curtilages. They might only have 3 feet from the lot line, whereas in a rural area, you are 
looking at a house that probably doesn’t have neighbors for a couple of miles. The court 
analysis on privacy next to the home will be different. Officers in town deal with the same 
constitutional questions. You get an anonymous call that someone is beating their wife. That 
may or may not have credibility, but it does require an officer response. It’s not probable 
cause when you walk onto that yard. You are following up on a potential call to see if there 
is probably cause or an emergency happening. Then you start implicating this you may not 
enter without probable cause. An anonymous tip under court is not enough to establish 
probable cause. This has urban implications like that, how do you check out a call in an urban 
area? That’s where you run into these unintended consequences when you focus on the 
animal cases. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: If a law enforcement officer said to a vet, we can go into this barn, 
that would be wrong.  
 
Erickson: That would be wrong and suppressed in a minute. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: That’s based on court precedent. I know a case where a police officer 
followed a lady into her garage and the supreme court ruled, what was the outcome of that? 
 
Erickson: One of the cases was a report of a neighbor of a domestic dispute with broken 
glass and the officer responded to the trailer house. The lady was outside and the officer 
said, ‘I would like to check out the noise.’ She turned her back, the officer followed her, she 
opened the door for the officer, and the officer walked in behind her, later finding drugs in 
plain view. The supreme court suppressed it, because we require overt consent. They upheld 
that it was not a good search. You have to say to the officer, I agree. You can’t give implicit 
consent, even though she held the door for him. Where the litigation comes in is, did the 
person who granted consent to search have authority to do it? One of the things in the bill, 
there was consent without permission from the landowner. Line 11 says without permission 
from the landowner or the lessee. You can’t come in. Here’s one of the red flags. I’m going 
to suggest to the committee that this bill isn’t fixable. Officers are going to roll into a farmstead 
somewhere, and the live-in girlfriend is there, who is not the landowner, and she says go 
ahead, you can search. That will be suppressed under the bill. Under the supreme court, that 
was reasonable for the officer to rely on. They’re not the landowner or the lease. We have a 
lot of case law where tenants who are co-tenants giving permission. The renter that gave the 
permission is not the one that gets charged with the drugs, because the renter did not give 
permission. If you just focus on landowners and lessees you get absurd results, because 
somebody a deputy relies on in good faith, like a spouse, that’s not the landowner, not on 
the title. That would have to be severely amended to be addressed, or you’ll have problems. 
 
(50:25) Lynn Helms, Director of the North Dakota Industrial Commission, Department 
of Mineral Resources, testifies in opposition (see attachment #2) 
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Helms: We’ve consulted with the Attorney General’s Office; our field inspectors do fall under 
the definition of law enforcement. What they do on the oil and gas sites falls under the 
definition of search. The ownership of that land and those facilities is extremely complex, 
sometimes the operator owns it, more often than not, they are there under an oil and gas 
lease. Sometimes they own the surface rights. Last year, we conducted 184,719 routine well 
and facility inspections. This bill would upend 35 years of jurisdiction of the Industrial 
Commission, the sources are cited in my testimony, which gave us jurisdiction to make 
unannounced inspections of these privately owned facilities. We go inside buildings, we look 
at what’s inside of there, we hope there’s no probable cause. We hope we don’t find a 
violation, but we check them once a month, just looking for potential problems and violations. 
Should you find that you really need to pass this bill and you need to amend it, on the back 
page I have suggested an amendment that would take care of the regulator agencies, the 
natural resource agencies in that it would say they are exempted. The work that a public 
servant does working under the responsibilities and authorities of a regulatory agency would 
be exempted from these limitations on entry and search.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Did you testify in the House on this bill? 
 
Helms: I did, for the same reasons. 
 
(53:) John Bradley, Executive Director of the North Dakota Wildlife Federation, testifies 
in opposition (see attachment #3 for his written testimony and that of Mike McEnroe, 
North Dakota Wildlife Society) 
 
Bradley: Our major concern about HB 1290 is for the Game Warden, entry onto private land 
to do field checks on hunters. As the law is currently written, it would hamstring our Game 
Wardens’ abilities to do field checks, ensure bag limits, and licenses.  
 
(54:05-1:00:40) David Glatt, Environmental Health Section Chief, North Dakota 
Department of Health, testifies in opposition (see attachment #4) 
 
(1:00:55) Bill Helphrey, North Dakota Bowhunter’s Association, testifies in opposition 
 
Helphrey: We must remember that when a bill becomes law, it pertains to all the citizens in 
the state, not just the landowners. Law enforcement’s job is to serve and protect, they need 
to make patrols, drive behind warehouse buildings to see if something is going wrong. This 
would stop that. If they did drive back there and find something, can’t use it as evidence, 
didn’t ask the landowner first. Don’t shackle these law enforcement people with that. 
 
(1:02:00) Jesse Jahner, Cass County Sheriff, testifies in opposition 
 
Sheriff Jahner: A majority of the testimony you heard in favor of the bill has to do with cattle, 
there’s a lot of other law enforcement that would be affected if this went through. One thing 
that’s been overlooked is the definition of ‘search.’ There are several definitions of ‘search.’ 
In general, it is trying to find something by looking or otherwise seeking carefully or 
thoroughly. In reading that definition and the way that it applies to this bill, if you read on line 
10 where they made the change here. Line 9-10: ‘notwithstanding any other provisions of 
law and subject to subsection 3, a law enforcement officer may not search buildings or private 
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land unless the law enforcement officer receives permission from the landowner or lessee.’ 
In my interpretation of search, it would restrict us from doing several different law 
enforcement functions that we need. One of those is serving civil process papers. In order to 
serve civil process papers, we don’t always know if someone resides at an address, a lot of 
times we enter onto property to determine if that person resides there. Technically, under the 
definition of search, that would be a search. In Cass County, we serve 10,000 civil papers a 
year, we would have to obtain search warrants to serve all those unless we made other 
arrangements. I don’t know how that would be feasible. That is a duty of the sheriff, it would 
greatly impact our agency and other sheriffs who attempt to do that, in addition to arrest 
warrants. Oftentimes we will go onto properties and try to determine if they reside there. It 
would restrict our ability to execute those civil process papers, which is mandated by century 
code. It would limit us on knock and talks, where we follow up on investigations. If we need 
to follow up with an investigation, we go to a person’s residence, we knock on their door to 
visit with them. According to the way this bill is written, on line 12, it says ‘a law enforcement 
officer may only enter the private land without permission if you have the following,’ which 
was probable cause. In that situation we wouldn’t have those, those wouldn’t apply. We would 
be operating under what’s called reasonable suspicion, which is simply a hunch. Oftentimes 
we go onto a person’s property to gather those items of reasonable suspicion so we can 
eventually get to probable cause to obtain a search warrant to further our investigation. We 
would not be able to do those things. Lastly, there was a question in reference to welfare 
checks. If Senator Dwyer and I were brothers and we talked on a regular basis and he hadn’t 
heard from me, he asked if law enforcement could check on me. Our answer would be no 
we can’t, because Senator Dwyer did not give us permission to go onto his land to check on 
his welfare. Exigency would not be obtained in that circumstance, because a period of time 
has gone by. We don’t know if anything has happened, we’re simply going there on a hunch. 
That reasonable suspicion to see if he was okay. We would not be able to conduct welfare 
checks. We do a number of those in Cass County, both in the city and out in the county. 
There are number of circumstances here that don’t apply simply to cattle. There are a lot of 
other law enforcement functions that this affects.  
 
Chair Larson: Would that impede being able to look for missing persons or suspected human 
trafficking? 
 
Sheriff Jahner: Yes, it would. If we didn’t know exactly where it was happening, we don’t 
want to walk up a person’s driveway or go up to their door to further investigate that. At that 
point we would be operating under reasonable suspicion, not probable cause, so we could 
not do that.  
 
Senator Bakke: Please explain the process you have to go through to get a search warrant. 
If you do enter onto private property for this reasonable suspicion, would that invalidate 
anything you found when you get to court? 
 
Sheriff Jahner: In order to obtain a search warrant, we would have to get up to the level of 
probable cause. That is a level of law enforcement being able to corroborate information that 
they have that is true and correct. Reasonable suspicion is underneath that, it’s only a hunch. 
When you get reasonable suspicion, you follow up on those much like State’s Attorney 
Erickson mentioned. You would get anonymous information, at that point its reasonable 
suspicion. When you follow up you then try to articulate facts and corroborate those facts. At 
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that point you would apply to get a search warrant. As to your second question, according to 
this bill it would invalidate, because we wouldn’t have probable cause. We could be going 
there trying to establish probable cause.  
 
Senator Bakke: About how long does it take to get a search warrant? 
 
Sheriff Jahner: Once you have all the facts, you can get it fairly quickly in our jurisdiction. 
But that’s going to be different from jurisdiction to jurisdiction based on judge availability and 
the amount of judges. For us, for the civil process papers, it would be very taxing to the court 
system. 
 
(1:10:10-1:12:45) Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden of the North Dakota Game and 
Fish Department, testifies in opposition (see attachment #5) 
 
Chief Timian: Before I start my testimony, the bill itself, it was changed to search, but it also 
includes not just buildings, but other places or private property.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Is your understanding consistent with what Mr. Erickson stated? 
That you have to have probable cause? 
 
Chief Timian: I have been personally conducting search warrants for over 30 years, I haven’t 
known it any other way. If that buildings closed up and is not open to the public, you get 
permission or you get a warrant. That’s been our standard. 
 
(1:14:00-) Jon Patch, Director, Water Appropriation Division, North Dakota State Water 
Commission on behalf of Garland Erbele (see attachment #6) 
 
Patch: Our agency is charged with managing the waters of the state, as such we enter onto 
private land hundreds if not thousands of times per year to do water right inspections, 
complete water course investigations, perform safety of dam inspections, conduct water level 
monitoring of our well network, monitor stream flow, investigations of construction drainage, 
complaints, and sovereign land management. Our agency staff is considered law 
enforcement officers, as we are carrying out our duties enforcing the water laws of the state. 
This would be a tremendous burden for us. We do as a normal practice try to notify the 
landowner when we are entering their property, but sometimes it’s just not possible for the 
number that we do, and if we’re in an area of the state where we didn’t plan on going on 
property, but we’re in the area, it would be very inefficient if we had to miss an opportunity 
and then come back at another time.  
 
Further testimony with proposed amendments was given to the committee (see 
attachment #7) 
 
Chair Larson: Closed the public hearing.  
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Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1290. 
 
Senator Myrdal: There are some clarifications that I need. Section 1, talks about the 
definition of law enforcement officer. Please explain.  
 
Chris Joseph, Legislative Council, neutral party 
 
Joseph: A law enforcement officer as defined under 12.1-01-04 is a public servant or state 
employee or an employee of a public subdivision that has authority to do either investigatory 
research or arrest crimes. It would be anyone in a police uniform. 
 
Chair Larson: We had a letter from child enforcement. They wouldn’t necessarily be in a 
uniform. 
 
Joseph: Correct. For example, game and fish. I would say child support would also be 
included since they do enforce laws in statute. It’s any police or peace officer. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The Department of Mineral Resources inspect 200,000 wells a year, 
but I don’t believe they’re in uniform. 
 
Joseph: Correct, I do not believe they would fall under the definition of a law enforcement 
officer. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: According to them they do because they do these inspections under 
that authority. It says a state employee doing investigations, so it doesn’t have to be in 
uniform. 
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Joseph: Correct. However, based on case law, I would say they don’t fall under the definition, 
but if that’s the concern, we can always add a subdivision d as an exception. I wouldn’t count 
them as a law enforcement officer if I was a judge, but I’m not. 
 
Senator Myrdal: In subsection 2 of section 1, the House changed may not enter to may not 
search. Then subsection 3 says may enter. Shouldn’t that have search in it as well? What is 
the legal definition for enter versus search? 
 
Joseph: The difference is the intent. I would agree with you and add search on line 12 to 
keep it uniform. Within 4th amendment jurisprudence, what is protected is what reasonable 
privacy which has been defined in the supreme court as being anything outside the curtilage 
of the home. Outside the curtilage is anything beyond the fence and would include your shed, 
barn, outhouse, but any open fields are not protected. As written right now, first you have to 
be in violation of subsection 2. Then the exceptions in subsection 3 come into play. I would 
change that to search. 
 
Chair Larson: We had many people testify in opposition because they are concerned about 
being able to carry out the duties of their job because of the way this is written. Ladd Erickson 
said you’d need consent even for an emergency. They’re worried about search warrants. 
They were talking about open fields doctrines. Lynn Helms worried about being able to 
regulate the oil for spills and those kinds of things, to just be able to go onto land and check 
out the oil pipelines. Game wardens were concerned about monitoring and inspecting for 
that. Bow hunters didn’t like it and felt that will be changing what we’re currently doing. 
They’re worried about being able to serve civil process papers and knock and talks for follow-
ups in investigations. Law enforcement must be able to cooperate with all of these other laws. 
State Water Commission was worried about being able to even manage water and water 
flow locations. There were a lot of people that were concerned about the implications of this 
bill. Vice Chairman Dwyer was thinking about turning this into a potential study to get a better 
handle on it since there are so many people that are concerned they won’t be able to do their 
jobs. 
 
Joseph: Fourth amendment jurisprudence is one of my favorites. Those concerns are valid; 
however, I think they’re slightly extreme. The open fields doctrine is an exception to the 
warrant requirement. It means that anything that’s beyond the curtilage is open for search. If 
I’m a law enforcement officer, drive down a highway and smell marijuana, I can go search an 
open field. This bill only prohibits search, not knocking on the door or serving papers, only 
search. The only part of this bill that I see causing a problem for those entities would be the 
entering private land. That should be changed to may search if those exceptions are met. To 
lighten it more on line 13, you can downgrade probable cause down to reasonable suspicion. 
That’s a lower threshold for officers. Any of the scenarios mentioned I don’t see having an 
issue with actually searching the property. Subsection 4 says if you find evidence of illegal 
activity, you can’t use it if you violate it. It’s not saying you can’t go sample water and leave. 
 
Chair Larson: You’re brilliant, and not everyone is. Just the reading of this has a lot of people 
concerned that it will prohibit what they can do. 
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(10:20) Senator Bakke: There was an amendment that Lynn Helms brought, and I think it 
may address some of the concerns that Vice Chairman Dwyer had. Is that something that 
needs to be added? 
 
Joseph: I would simplify it a little more and maybe cover all agencies, but we can certainly 
make that a subdivision d and protect any state agency employees and political subdivision 
employees. We can say as long as they’re performing regulatory duties, they are exempt. 
 
Senator Bakke: There was concern that if they were to approach a barn and see an animal 
that was in distress, they couldn’t enter the barn to assist the animal. How does that all work? 
 
Joseph: In that case, there’s an exemption for emergencies, subdivision c on line 16. 
Besides the open field doctrine, you also have things such as the plain view doctrine. In this 
case, if I’m standing on the street, and I see some type of violation of law in plain sight, I’m 
allowed to go and pursue that. 
 
Senator Bakke: so this doesn’t prevent them from doing that. 
 
Joseph: Correct, in that scenario. 
 
Chair Larson: Along with that, they were asking about a situation where someone hasn’t 
seen a relative and asks law enforcement to check on them. That’s not necessarily an 
emergency. 
 
Joseph: We have community welfare checks, and that would not be impacted by this. Also, 
if you lowered the standard on line 13 to reasonable suspicion, that would help. I would still 
consider that under subsection c in responding to a threat to public safety. Public safety can 
me for just the individual as well. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: A police officer follows a lady into her garage, and the court will 
determine it one way based on the circumstances and another way based on other 
circumstances. The jurisprudence on the fourth amendment, just like the first amendment, is 
vast. One of the worries is that now the courts will try to interpret what this means in the 
context of the constitution. It could alter the North Dakota case law which is kind of 
established with all the doctrines you’ve mentioned. It’s the same with first amendment 
freedom of speech. We can pass law that says this is what you can do, but if the court 
determines that that’s in violation of the first amendment, they’re going to strike it down. Case 
law isn’t overnight. We don’t get the next 100 cases in the next year; we get them over 10 
years. I’m very reluctant to go down this road. 
 
Joseph: You’re correct. I don’t know how an individual judge will interpret the law. It can be 
different even among the districts in ND. I’m just going based off of how it reads as of right 
now and what I believe the legislative intent of it is. 
 
Senator Luick: We had a situation where an individual dropped off her baby out by a slew 
and couldn’t find it. The searches were going on, and the emergency situations would apply 
here, but the state’s attorney was saying after a while, the emergency situation goes away 
even though you’re still searching for the baby. Is that a concerning factor? 
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Chair Larson: They also didn’t know where the exact location was. 
 
Joseph: That’s a valid concern. Knowing that factor, maybe emergency should be defined 
as a 72 or 48-hour period. If an infant is missing and has been gone for more than 5-6 days, 
most likely the infant if left alone or during winter, will no longer be alive and no longer an 
emergency. 
 
Senator Luick: After the words “emergency situation”, we could add “or continuance of such” 
to that verbiage there. 
 
Joseph: I would make a subsection 5 and say, “as used in this section, emergency situation 
means a period for which” then something. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: This last discussion illuminates my concern. We have to take every 
word and further refine it. 
 
Senator Bakke: Has there been a lot of problems and concerns about this chapter of the 
Century code to your knowledge? 
 
Joseph: That would be a question for the sponsor of this bill. I don’t know any specific 
situations or the reason behind the bill. Maybe I do, but I couldn’t disclose it here. 
 
Chair Larson: Are you aware of any case law that’s occurred because of this? 
 
Joseph: No, not recent case law regarding this issue. 
 
Senator Myrdal: We’re talking about reasonable right to privacy protection, and it relates to 
mostly outbuildings, farms and ranches. Is there anywhere else in the Century Code today 
that that reasonable expectation of privacy is clearly stated? 
 
Joseph: not clearly stated per say. We do have laws against criminal trespass, disorderly 
conduct and things like that, but as far as actual privacy, there’s not. There’s nothing for 
reasonable expectation of privacy as far as searches of police go. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Jurisprudence is very clear; you can’t enter a building without a 
search warrant. 
 
Joseph: Unless one of the exceptions are met. 
 
Chair Larson: With or without this legislation you mean? 
 
Joseph: Jurisprudence right now regarding open fields doctrine says that when it comes to 
the curtilage of the home, with anything you have a reasonable expectation of privacy for, 
triggers the fourth amendment. Because you have reasonable expectation of privacy 
regarding vast acres of open field or land, the fourth amendment is not triggered. This bill in 
essence would trigger open fields protections by the fourth amendment in certain scenarios. 
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It says open fields are protected by the fourth amendment unless one of these three 
exceptions apply. 
 
Chair Larson: so it does limit open fields doctrine. 
 
Joseph: Correct. Actually, it pretty much destroys it unless one of the exceptions are met. 
 
(see attachment #1) 
 
(21) Vice Chairman Dwyer: I passed out my proposal on doing a study of the fourth 
amendment and protection of private property. This area is so vast, complicated and 
extensive that I don’t think we can fix the bill. I think this has to be the focus of some legislative 
investigation. 
 
Senator Bakke: Are you saying you want to remove what’s in the bill and put the study in 
place of it or put the study as section 2? 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The amendment would completely replace the bill and turn it into a 
study. 
 
Senator Bakke: Motions to adopt amendment 19.0679.03001. 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Seconds. 
 
Senator Bakke: I agree that we need to take some time and really do this right. The last 
thing we want to do is hamper our police officers in doing their needed job because it could 
cost someone their life. I don’t want to put restrictions on them that don’t need to be there. I 
don’t know the circumstances by which this bill came, but I think we need to do more studying 
of it and get more input from everybody before we make this a unilateral decision. 
 
Senator Myrdal: The amendment says “shall consider”, so it’s very likely that it won’t get 
studied. This is an extremely important issue. I thought some of the arguments against it was 
unreasonable. I’ve heard it from my district that this does happen. If we water it down to a 
study that likely won’t happen, this will just come back again. I’m saddened by some of the 
testimony of this bill that as a lawmaker, if I vote for this bill, I’m anti-law enforcement. That’s 
absolutely incorrect. I think the intent of this bill was misrepresented by some of the 
testimony. I think we can fix it and go into conference committee, but I don’t think that’s the 
will of the committee. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Motions for a Do Pass as Amended. 
Senator Bakke: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer will carry the bill. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dwyer 

March 26, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1290 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of search and seizure procedures. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - SEARCH AND 
SEIZURE PROCEDURES. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the fourth amendment to the Constitution of the United States, 
including the investigation, search, and seizure of private land, livestock, and buildings. 
The study must include options for protecting property from unreasonable interference 
by law enforcement. The legislative management shall report its findings and 
recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0679.03001 
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D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 19.0679.03001 

Recommendation: 0 Adopt Amendment 

Date:3/27/2019 
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Committee 
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D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
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Senators 
Chair Larson 
Vice Chair Dwyer 
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Seconded By Vice Chairman Dwyer 
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X 
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No 

(Yes) 4 No 2 ----------- ---------------
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Floor Assignment 
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Roll Call Vote: 2 

Committee 

------------------------
Recommendation: D Adopt Amendment 

IZI Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
IZI As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Vice Chairman Dwyer Seconded By Senator Bakke 

Senators Yes No Senators Yes No 
Chair Larson X Senator Bakke X 
Vice Chair Dwyer X 
Senator Luick X 
Senator Myrdal X 
Senator Lemm X 

Total (Yes) _4 __________ No _2 _____________ _ 

Absent 0 -------------------------------
Floor Assignment Vice Chairman Dwyer 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
March 28, 2019 7:58AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_54_019 
Carrier: Dwyer 

Insert LC: 19.0679.03001 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1290, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Sen. D. Larson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(4 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1290 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of search and seizure procedures. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - SEARCH AND 
SEIZURE PROCEDURES. During the 2019-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the fourth amendment to the Constitution of the United 
States, including the investigation, search, and seizure of private land, livestock, and 
buildings. The study must include options for protecting property from unreasonable 
interference by law enforcement. The legislative management shall report its findings 
and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly. " 

Renumber accordingly 
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HB 1290 4th amendment bill regarding open fields 
Doctoring. 

Hello Mr. Chairman and members of the judiciary committee. 

For the record I am representative Luke Simons from district 36. 

I bring before you HB 1290 which is a common sense Bill regarding the fourth 

amendment. 

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, 

against unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants 

shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and 

particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be 

seized. 

Our construction company is divided by a wall which is located 

in town. One side being our shop the other side being our 

office. If a warrant was served to look into our office, that's 

fine. But if they go into the shop side without a warrant 

specifically saying the shop. No evidence could be used due to 

not having the proper warrant. If they were conducting their 

warrant and realized we should look into the shop, it's a 15 

minute phone call to a judge to get a warrant and use due 

process. 

Would it surprise you that a law officer does not need a warrant to go into a building 

60 feet from your home if you live in the country? 

Barns, shops, outbuildings, chicken coops, garden sheds, grain bins, 
Quansett, milking parlor, Horse stable, Calving Barns, Machine sheds. 

None of which if there are 60 feet from your home need a search warrant. 



I was recently talking to a veterinarian who went with the deputy to go look at a 

horse that was supposedly in bad shape. The deputy and the vet knocked on the 

owners door and no one was home. 

They did not see a horse anywhere. 

The deputy then walked to the barn and open the door, The vet said this is where I 

stop. You don't have a search warrant. The deputy looked at the vet and said we 

don't need one. We are far beyond 60 feet from their home. 

The horse was not in bad shape, but the veterinarian refused to look at the horse 

until there was a search warrant. Seems like common sense, however open fields 

doctrine is interpreted this way. 

I had a situation where I was feeding hay bit barley, which is equivalent to alfalfa hay 

which is some of the best you can buy. A person driving by thought I was feeding my 

cows straw, and called the local authorities. The sheriff and I went out and looked at 

the cows and he didn't see any issues. After about the fourth or fifth time with the 

same person calling the sheriff. I told The sheriff to get a search warrant. He informed 

me he didn't need my permission or a search warrant to go on my property. As it 

turned out he didn't do anything because he realized my girls were fat and happy. 

I thought he was full of hot air at the time. 

I was wrong. 

Years later I was a witness add a pre-trial for a man accused of a crime. I was asked 

by an his attorney if I would take the stand and answer some questions. He said you 

may look stupid, I'm going to ask you a few things that you probably don't know. 

When on the stand he asked me would you be surprised or do you feel the average 

rancher or farmer would be surprised to know that 60 feet from your home you do 

not need a search warrant to search any of your outbuildings. 



#I 

I said yes. 

Then I heard for the first time what open fields doctrine was being interpreted as. 

What open fields doctrine was supposed to be. Would be common sense. If there's a 

missing person and the deputy is driving down the road and he sees a vehicle that is 

through the fence and in the middle of a field turned over on its side, he does not 

need a search warrant. He has probable cause. He could clearly see it. Of course he 

would investigate it. 

It would be literally the same as if my wife had me duck taped and gagged in the 

backseat of my car and she got pulled over for a taillight. The police officer would not 

need a search warrant to ask what's going on and to investigate the situation. 

To my knowledge open fields has been taken to the supreme court by two different 

people at different times from North Dakota. In both cases the US Supreme Court 

upheld what the original Open fields doctrine was. 

The definition is what HB 1290 is. 

I would ask you to pu t in our century code once and for all the 

definition of open fields doc trine. 

And give farmers and ranchers the same fourth amendment rights 

as we have in the private business sector. 

I will stand for any questions 

Thank you Mr. Chairman and members of the committee. 

Respectfully 
Luke R Simons 
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135 Sims, Suite 217 
P.O. Box 1111 

D ic k inson, North Dakota 58602 
Telephone (701) 227-0146 

Fax (701) 225-0319 

North Dakota House Judiciary Committee 
RE: HB 1290 

Dear Members of the Committee, 

Thomas F. Murtha 
(1934-2017) 

Donald M. Murtha 
(1905-1993) 

Thomas F. Murtha 

(1904-1965) 

Thomas F. Murtha 

(1878-1927) 

My name is Thomas F. Murtha IV, I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State 
of North Dakota. Representative Luke Simons (HB 1290 sponsor) requested that I testify 
regarding HB 1290. Unfortunately I am scheduled for a hearing in Stark County District Court 
at the same time as the hearing on HB 1290 and the District Court (Judge Ehlis) on that case 
denied my request to continue that matter in order to testify on HB 1290. 

HB 1290 addresses a concern that all of us in North Dakota have that the Fourth 
Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article 1 Section 8 of North Dakota's 
Constitution do not protect what has come to be known as "open fields." 1 The language of the 
Fourth Amendment and Article 1, Section 8 is identical: 

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers and effects, 
against unreasonable searches and seizures shall not be violated; and no warrant 
shall issue but upon probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation, particularly 
describing the place to be searched and the persons and things to be seized. 

Our courts have determined that "land" is not included in the term "effects" and therefore the 
Fourth Amendment and Article 1, Section 8 do not apply to a person's lands outside of a 
person's home. Law enforcement therefore can trespass on private property without suspicion or 
any reason to collect evidence against the landowner. HB 1290 will remedy that concern. 

HB 1290 would discourage law enforcement or other government from randomly 
trespassing on private lands by prohibiting the admission in court of any evidence gathered 
during that trespass. I believe this is a reasonable expectation of privacy that our society here in 
North Dakota currently supports. HB 1290 would require permission, probable cause, or a 
warrant before the government to enter and search private lands. 

1 Hester v. United States, 265 U.S. 57 (1924) first introduced the doctrine that the Fourth 
Amendment protection does not extend to open fields. 



I suggest the following rewrite of the last paragraph of HB 1290: 

Any evidence obtained in violation of subsection 2 is not admissible against the 
land owner or a lessee of the land in any criminal or civil proceeding. 

Thank you for your consideration of my writing, feel free to contact me with any 
questions you may have. 

February 6, 2019 

Sincerely, 

TfuHntw t-. Murt11A/ IV 
Thomas F. Murtha IV 



Hester v. U .S . ,  265 U.S.  57 ( 1 924) 
44 S.Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 

KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment 
Not Followed on State Law Grounds People v. Scott, N.Y., April 2, 1 992 44 S.Ct. 445 Supreme Court of the United States. 

HESTER 
v. UNITED STATES. 

No. 243 . 
I Submitted April 24, 1924. 
I Decided May 5, 1924. 

Synopsis In Error to the District Court of the United States for the Western District of South Carolina. 
Charlie Hester was convicted of concealing distilled spirits, and he brings error. Affirmed . 

West Headnotes (2) 
(11 Criminal Law � Place of business or other premises 

Criminal Law 
i= Compelling Self-Incrimination 

Intoxicating Liquors 0= Incriminating or Exculpatory Circumstances 
Intoxicating Liquors �- Grounds for seizure and forfeiture 
Searches and Seizures � Effect of Illegal Conduct;Trespass Testimony of officers that they concealed themselves near defendant's house, saw defendant taking a jug out of a car, and when they were discovered defendant ran and dropped the jug, which on examination was found to contain moonshine whisky, held not to violate U.S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4, as to unlawful searches and seizures, or Amendment 5 ,  as to compelling accused to give testimony against himself, though 

(2) 

H I  H a  ; ;.  ? 
� - � - I 

officers had no search warrant and were on defendant's land. 
1 69 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures �- Curtilage or open fields;yards and outbuildings Protection accorded by Const.Amend. 4, to the people in their "persons, houses, papers and effects," is not extended to open fields. 
682 Cases that cite this headnote 

Attorneys and Law Firms 

**446 *57 Mr. Richard A. Ford, of Washington, D. C. ,  for plaintiff in error. 
Messrs. James M. Beck, Sol . Gen. ,  of Washington, D. C. ,  and Mabel Walker Willebrandt, Asst. Atty. Gen . ,  for the United States. 
Opinion 
Mr. Justice HOLMES delivered the opinion of the Court. 
[ l ]  The plaintiff in error, Hester, was convicted of concealing distilled spirits, etc . ,  under Rev. St. § 3296 (Comp. St. § 6038). The case is brought here directly from the District Court on the single ground that by refusing to exclude the testimony of two witnesses and to direct a verdict for the defendant, the plaintiff in error, the Court violated his *58 rights under the Fourth and Fifth Amendments of the Constitution of the United States. 
[2] The witnesses whose testimony is objected to were revenue officers. In consequence of information they went toward the house of Hester's father, where the plaintiff in error lived, and as they approached saw one Henderson drive near to the house. They concealed themselves from fifty to one hundred yards away and saw Hester come out and hand Henderson a quart bottle. An alarm was given. Hester went to a car standing near, took a gallon jug from it and he and Henderson ran.  One of the officers pursued, and fired a pistol. Hester dropped his jug, which broke but kept about a quart of its contents . Henderson threw away his bottle also . The jug and bottle both contained 

'NESTLAW @ 201 9 Thomson Reuters . No cla im  to or ig i na l  U . S .  Government  1/1/orks.  
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44 S.Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 

what the officers, being experts, recognized as moonshine whisky, that is, whisky illicitly distilled; said to be easily recognizable. The other officer entered the house, but being told there was no whisky there left it, but found outside a jar that had been thrown out and broken and that also contained whisky. While the officers were there other cars stopped at the house but were spoken to by Hester's father and drove off. The officers had no warrant for search or arrest, and it is contended that this made their evidence inadmissible, it being assumed, on the strength of the pursuing officer's saying that he supposed they were on Hester's land, that such was the fact. It is obvious that even if there had been a trespass, the above testimony was not obtained by an illegal search or seizure. The defendant's own acts, and those of his associates, disclosed the jug, the jar and the bottle-and there was no seizure in the sense of the law when the officers examined the contents of each after it had been abandoned. This evidence was not obtained by the entry into the house and it is immaterial 
End of Document 

to discuss that. The suggestion that the defendant was compelled to give evidence against himself *59 does not require an answer. The only shadow of a ground for bringing up the case is drawn from the hypothesis that the examination of the vessels took place upon Hester's father's land. As to that, it is enough to say that, apart from the justification, the special protection accorded by the Fourth Amendment to the people in their 'persons, houses, papers and effects,' is not extended to the open fields. The distinction between the latter and the house is as old as the common law. 4 Bl . Comm. 223, 225, 226. 
Judgment affirmed. 
All Citations 

265 U.S.  57, 44 S .Ct .  445,  68 L.Ed. 898 

© 20 1 9  Thomson Reuters . No claim to orig ina l  U .S .  Government Works .  
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343 N.W.2d 361 
Supreme Court of North Dakota. 

STATE of North Dakota, P1aintiff and Appe11ant, 
v. 

John Arthur LARSON, Defendant and Appellee. 
STATE OF North Dakota, Plaintiff and Appellant, 

v. 
Roger Char1es JOHNSEN, Defendant and Appellee. 

Cr. Nos. 951, 952. 
I 

Jan. 13, 1984 . 

Synopsis 

State appealed from order of the County Court, Sheridan 
County, O .A. Schulz, J., suppressing evidence against 
defendants in prosecution for alleged violation of game 
laws. The Supreme Court, Sand, J . ,  held that: ( 1 )  given 
totality of circumstances, including fact that consent to 
search was given only after game warden told defendant 
that if warden was not shown where defendant had put 
allegedly illegally taken ducks, six more wardens and 
four dogs would be brought in, consent was involuntary, 
and (2) in view of fact that defendants were faced with 
warden's threat to use dogs and more wardens, defendants' 
confessions to having shot more than legal limit of ducks 
were properly suppressed, defendants having received 
neither Miranda warnings nor anything similar thereto, 
even though neither defendant was formally placed under 
arrest at the time. 

Affirmed. 

West Headnotes (7) 

I l l  Searches and Seizures 

)= Necessity of and preference for warrant, 
and exceptions in general 
Ordinarily, all searches made without valid 
warrant are unreasonable unless they are 
shown to come within one of the exceptions 
to rule that search must be made upon valid 
warrant. U .S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4. 

121 

13] 

[4] 

(5) 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 

:.r-= Evidence wrongfully obtained 
Criminal Law 

- ... Admission, statements, and confessions 
In cases involving voluntariness of confession 
or consent to search, the Supreme Court will 
not reverse trial court's detennination unless it 
is contrary to manifest weight of the evidence. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 

,,;= Admission, statements, and confessions 
Trial court's determination as to voluntariness 
of confession or consent to search will not  
be overturned if, after conflicts in testimony 
are resolved in favor of affinnance , there is 
sufficient competent evidence fairly capable of 
supporting trial court's determination . 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Searches and Seizures 

' =  Questions of law or fact 
Determination of whether consent to search 
was voluntary or involuntary is question of 
fact to be determined from totality of all the 
circumstances. U .S .C .A .  Const .Amend.  4. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Searches and Seizures 

'= Particular concrete applications 
Totality of circumstances, including fact that 
consent to search was given only after 
game warden told defendant that if warden 
was not shown where defendant had put 
allegedly il legally taken ducks, six more 
wardens and four dogs would be brought 
in, established that consent was involuntary. 
U .S .C.A.  Const .Amend. 4. 

t Cases that cite this headnote 
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[71 

Criminal Law 
? What constitutes voluntary statement, 

admission, or confession 
Issue of voluntariness of admissions is always 
question to be determined from all of the 
circumstances, regardless of whether or not 
subject is in custody. U .S .C .A .  Const .Amend . 
5 .  

Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 
·= Necessity in general 

Criminal Law 
:= Particular cases 

Criminal Law 
0= Threats;Fear of Injury 

In view of fact that defendants were faced 
with game warden's threat to use dogs and 
more wardens in attempt to find allegedly 
illegally taken ducks if defendant did not 
cooperate, the interrogation and intimidation 
being such that wardens should have known 
it would likely elicit incriminating response 
from defendants, defendants' confessions 
to having shot more than legal limit of 
ducks were properly suppressed, defendants 
having received neither Miranda warnings nor 
anything s imilar to them, notwithstanding 
that defendants were not formally placed 
under arrest at the time. U .S .C.A. 
Const.Amend . 5 .  

Cases that cite this headnot� 

Attorneys and Law Firms 

*362 Walter M. Lipp, State's Atty . ,  McClusky, for 
plaintiff and appellant. 

Baer & Asbridge, Bismarck, for defendants and appellees; 
argued by Darold A. Asbridge, B ismarck . 

Opinion 

SAND, Justice. 

The Sheridan County justice court granted a motion 
suppressing evidence against the defendants, John A. 
Larson (Larson) and Roger C. Johnsen (Johnsen) ,  in a 
prosecution for alleged violation of North Dakota game 
laws. The State appealed . 

On 2 October 1 982 Johnsen, his two sons, Larson, his 
two sons , and a friend, were waterfowl hunting from a 
camp on Larson's land in Sheridan County. Unbeknown 
to Larson and Johnsen, state and federal game wardens 
were watching them from nearby hills from early morning 
until late afternoon. David Kraft, a special agent for  the 
United States Fish and Wildlife Service, kept a log of 
events as the wardens watched . Kraft's log indicated that 
he saw the hunters shoot eighteen to twenty ducks and that 
the ducks were taken to several locations, a trailer house, a 
vehicle, an outhouse, an abandoned shed , and some brush 
near the shed. According to Kraft, Johnsen and his son 
left the camp in Johnsen's vehicle about 4 :00 p.m. 

Greg Cleveland, a friend of Larson, arrived at the camp 
with two more hunters about 5 :00 p .m.  Shortly thereafter, 
North Dakota game warden Tim Larson ,  and special 
agent Terry Grosz of the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service, entered the camp. Grosz questioned the hunters 
and checked their licenses and guns. Grosz gave no 
Miranda warnings to Larson at that time nor at any time 
during the investigation. 

Meanwhile, warden Larson, who was in radio contact 
with other wardens from the surveillance point, began 
a search of the brush area near the shed .  When warden 
Larson returned from his search he reported to Grosz that 
he did not find any of the ducks. According to Cleveland, 
Grosz then said to defendant Larson, "We have spotters 
on the hillside, before daylight they saw you got more 
birds stashed down here . I will give you one chance and 
one chance only to show me or we will bring down 
six wardens and four dogs ."  1 Larson then took Grosz 
to several locations where the ducks had been placed. 
Meanwhile, two more wardens joined wardens Grosz and 
Larson at the camp. Because Grosz apparently did not 
want to involve the children, he advised Cleveland to take 
the children "far away" and to "come back after dark . "  
After Cleveland and the children had left, Grosz began 
to question defendant Larson about who had shot which 
ducks. Larson admitted to Grosz that he shot twelve 
ducks, seven more than permitted by law. Grosz then 
confiscated Larson's shotgun. 

·--·---···---·--- ---···----··-----------------
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The wardens were at the camp for about two and one-half 
hours. When they left, they met Johnsen coming toward 
the camp in his pickup. Kraft explained to Johnsen that 
they had talked to Larson and that they " [knew] what 
had happened. "  Kraft showed the confiscated ducks to 
Johnsen and asked him to identify which ones he had shot. 
Johnsen admitted that he shot more than his limit. The 
wardens then confiscated Johnsen's gun and told him he 
could return to the camp. 

*363 On 5 October 1 982 separate complaints were fi led 
against Larson and Johnsen and warrants were issued for 
their arrests. The complaints charged that Larson had shot 
seven ducks more than his l imit, and that Johnsen had shot 
three more than his limit. 

Larson and Johnsen moved to suppress all of the evidence 
and their statements on the grounds that the search 
was conducted in violation of their fourth amendment 
protection against unreasonable searches and seizures 
and that their statements were given in violation of 
their fifth amendment privilege against compelled self-

incrimination .  2 

The Sheridan County court held an evidentiary hearing 
in which the two complaints were consolidated . The 
court suppressed all of the evidence and the defendants' 
statements on the grounds that their fourth and fifth 
amendment rights had been violated, and the State 
appealed. 

I l l  With respect to the State's contention that no fourth 
amendment violation occurred, we begin by noting that, 
ordinarily, all searches made without a valid search 
warrant are unreasonable unless they are shown to come 
within one of the exceptions to the rule that a search must 
be made upon a valid warrant. Stoner v. California, 376 
U.S . 483, 486, 84 S .Ct .  889,  89 1 ,  1 1  L.Ed .2d 856, 859 
( 1 964). 

The State contended that a search warrant was 
unnecessary because the surveillance and subsequent 
search of the camp was conducted pursuant to the og 
.-fields" aoctrine announced in Hester v. United States, 265 
U.S. 57, 44 S .Ct. 445 ,  68 L.Ed. 898 { 1 924) . In Hester 
the Court said that ' the special protection accorded by 
the Fourth Amendment to the people in their 'persons, 
houses, papers and effects' is not extended to the open 

fielcls ." 265 U .S .  at 59, 44 S .Ct .  at 446, 68 L .Ed .  at 900. 
Thus, the Court drew a distinction between the dwelling 
and its curtilage, which was protected, and an open field, 
which was not. See W. Ringel, Searches and Seizures, 
Arrests and Confessions, § 8 .4 ( 1 983) .  Although the open 
fields/curtilage distinction is not easily drawn, most courts 

J 
and commentators have defined curtilage as that area 
near a dwelling, not necessarily enclosed, that genera])y 
includes buildings or other adjuncts used for domestic 
purposes. State v. Vicars, 207 Neb. 325 , 299 N .W.2d 42 1 ,  
425 ( 1 980); W. LaFave, Search and Seizure § 2.4, at 332 
( 1 978) .  

The utility of the open fields doctrine, however, has become 
suspect in light of the Supreme Court's holding in Katz 
v. United States, 389 U . S .  347, 3 5 1 ,  88 S .Ct. 507, 5 1 1 ,  
1 9  L.Ed.2d 576, 5 8 2  ( 1 967), that the fourth amendment 
protects people, not places .  Thus, a greater emphasis 
is now placed upon an examination of whether or not 
one possesses a reasonable expectation of privacy in the 
object or area to be searched.  Terry v. Ohio, 392 U .S .  
1 ,  9, 88  S .Ct .  1 868 ,  1 873 ,  20  L.Ed.2d 8 89 ,  8 99  ( 1 968); 
State v . Matthews, 2 1 6  N.W.2d 90, 1 03 (N.D . 1 974) . 
Nevertheless, this Court has not completely abandoned 
pre-Katz concepts, like the open fields doctrine, because 
such concepts are still important in determining whether 
or not the person searched had a reasonable expectation of 
privacy. See Statev .  Planz, 304 N .W.2d 74, 79 (N.D . 1 98 1 ) . 
Indeed, the United States Supreme Court has said that it 
"h s not alto�ther abandonec use of property conc.epts 
in determining the presence or absence of the rivacy 
interests protected by [the fourth] Amendment . "  Rakas v. 

Illinois, 439 U .S .  1 28 ,  1 44, 99 S . Ct. 42 1 , 43 1 ,  58 L .Ed .2d 
387 ,  40 1 n .  1 2  ( 1 978) .  The Court has also recently referred 
to the open fields doctrine in determining that a defendant's 
expectation of privacy with respect to activities inside 
his cabin did not extend to police observation of a car 
carrying a container with an electronic beeper inside i t  as 
it arrived on defendant's property after leaving a public 
highway. *364 United States 11. Knotts, 460 U .S .  276, 1 03 
S .Ct. 1 08 1 ,  75 L.Ed.2d 55  ( 1 983) .  See also Air Pollut ion 
Variance Board v. Western Alfalfa Corp. , 4 1 6  U . S .  86 1 ,  
94 S .Ct .  2 1 1 4, 44 L.Ed.2d 607 ( 1 974) (application of open 
fields doctrine to warrantless entry by health inspector on 
defendant's outdoor premises) . 

In the instant case, the wardens were watching the 
defendants from surrounding hills about one-quarter to 
one-half mile away. The record does not indicate whether 
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or not the wardens were on defendant Larson's property, 
although warden Kraft testified that the wardens were on 
"(what was] known to [Kraft] as the John Larson Hunting 
Camp, Sheridan County." If  the wardens were in fact on 
Larson's property, the record does not reflect whether or 
not the camp was also visible from other property, such as 
a public road or neighboring land. 

Kraft testified that the camp was located "kind of in a 
pasture" between two large sloughs .  The camp contained a 
trailer house, an outhouse, and a di lapidated shed located 
about thirty feet from the trailer house. The record does 
not indicate for what purposes, or  how often, the buildings 
were used. The record does indicate that Larson's land was 
posted, although it does not indicate how many signs there 
were or where the signs were located . Johnsen testified that 
one had to drive through a stubble-field to get to the camp, 
but the record does not indicate whether or not the area 
was fenced , or whether or not any gates had to be opened. 

Many of the unknown factors noted above, while not 
individually dispositive, would be cumulatively significant 
in applying the open fields doctrine to determine whether 
or not the defendants had a reasonable expectation of 
privacy. 3 Because of the nature of the disposition of this 
case, however, we need not resolve that question. The fact 
remains that warden Larson's initial search of the area 
near the shed was unproductive. The wardens did not 
discover the ducks unti l  defendant Larson led them to the 
ducks following Grosz' statement that he was prepared to 
dispatch dogs and more wardens .  

(21 (31 The State argued, in the  alternative, 4 that i f  
the  open fields doctrine was inapplicable, then Larson 
voluntarily consented to the search that produced the 
ducks. In cases involving the voluntariness of a confession 
or a consent to search, this Court will not reverse the trial 
court's determination unless it  is contrary to the manifest 
weight of the evidence. The trial court's determination 
will not be overturned if, after conflicts in  the testimony 
are resolved in favor of affirmance, there is sufficient 
competent evidence fairly capable of supporting the trial 
court's determination. State v. Discoe, 3 34 N.W.2d 466, 
469 (N.D. 1 983 ) .  

(41 A determination of whether a consent to a search 
was voluntary or involuntary is a question of fact to 
be determined from the totality of all the circumstances . 
Schneckloth v. Bustamante, 4 1 2  U .S .  2 1 8 , 227, 93 S .Ct .  

204 1 ,  2048,  36 L .Ed .2d 854, 862 ( 1 973 ) ;  State v .  Lange, 255 
N.W.2d 59, 64 (N.D . 1 977) .  To be voluntary, the consent 
must "not be coerced , by explicit or  implicit means, by 
implied threat or covert force. "  Schnecklo th, supra, 4 1 2  
U.S .  a t  228 , 9 3  S .Ct .  at 2048,  3 6  L .Ed .2d at 863 ;  see also 
State v. Metzner, 244 N.W.2d 2 1 5 , 222-23 (N .D . 1 976). 

[SI The most critical fact in the case at bar is Grosz' 
statement to defendant Larson that i f  Larson did not 
show Grosz where the ducks were, then Grosz would 
"bring [in] six wardens and four dogs." Grosz' statement 
was an implicit, i f  not explicit , threat that the wardens 
did not intend to leave until the ducks had been found. 
The implication was that defendant *365 Larson had no 
other alternative than to submit to a search and that the 
wardens had authority to wait "until hell froze over" for 
his reply. Threats of force or authority of the type made by 
Grosz constitute impermissible ultimatums, ultimatums 
abhorrent to the principles of the fourth amendment . 

In Schneckloth, supra, 4 1 2  U .S .  at 227, 93 S .Ct .  at 2048,  
36 L.Ed .2d at 863,  the Court held that a defendant's 
knowledge of the right to refuse consent is one factor  in 
determining whether or not the consent was voluntary, 
but the State need not demonstrate such knowledge as a 
prerequisite to establishing a voluntary consent. Although 
the record does not specifically indicate whether defendant 
Larson knew or did not know of his right to refuse 
consent, i t  does appear that, under the circumstances ,  
Larson believed he could not refuse.  Larson testified that 
he showed Grosz where the ducks were because " [he] 
wasn't going to fool around with [Grosz] . "  

There were additional factors which indicate that 
defendant Larson's consent may have been involuntary. 
Despite over two hours of questioning by wardens Grosz 
and Larson, defendant Larson gave no indication that he 
intended to consent to a search until Grosz threatened 
a more intensive search. Grosz' suggestion to Cleveland 
that he and the children should leave and go "far 
away" indicates that Grosz' threat was not frivolous. 
When Cleveland and the children left, defendant Larson 
was left by himself to confront the four wardens. The 
investigation, by the time Grosz made his threat, was not 
routine and the questions were not general . Finally, we 
note that Grosz was 6# 5# tall and weighed about 280 
pounds. Although the physical stature of a police officer 
alone is not dispositive of whether or not a consent to a 
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search was voluntary, it may, under some circumstances, 
have an intimidating effect. 

The State argued that our decision in State v. Lange, 
255 N.W.2d 59 (N.D. 1 977) should apply. In Lange, a 
police officer stopped the defendant's car after the officer 
observed the car weaving across a city street. When the 
officer approached the car he noticed a small pipe in the 
ashtray and several empty paper bags. The officer read 
Lange his Miranda rights and asked him some questions. 
When Lange admitted that he had been drinking, the 
officer took him to the police station. At the station, 
the officer asked Lange for permission to search his 
vehicle. Lange initial ly consented, but after the thorough 
nah1re of the search was explained, Lange's companion 
in the car asked, "What if we said no?" When the officer 
replied that the vehicle would be impounded and searched 
anyway, Lange consented to the search. When the car 
was searched, police officers found several controlled 
substances. On appeal Lange argued that his consent was 
involuntary . 

In upholding the search in Lange, we said that the officer 
did not even use any subtle methods of coercion or 
deception to obtain the consent. We further held that an 
officer's claim that he could obtain a warrant was not, per 
se, coercive. 

The facts in Lange are easily distinguished from those 
in the instant case. In  this case the wardens did not ask 
permission to search. Furthermore, the wardens never 
mentioned the word warrant, much Jess claim that they 
could obtain one . The wardens gave no explanation to 
defendant Larson of his rights, nor did they give him his 
Miranda warnings. 

We believe that, considering the totality of the 
circumstances, defendant Larson's consent to a search of 
the premises was involuntary. 

(6) Larson not only "consented" to the search, he also 
led the wardens to the places where the ducks had been 
placed . At the suppression hearing, the defendants argued, 
and the trial court agreed,  that the defendants' fifth 
amendment privilege against compelled self-incrimination 
was violated because the defendants were entitled to 
Miranda warnings. Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 
86 S.Ct. 1 602, 16 L.Ed.2d 694 ( 1 966) . On appeal 
the State argued that no fifth amendment violation 

I 

----�-------- -------·--- · ·  · ·-· -· ·--

occurred because the questioning was more *366 like a 
"noncustodial interview" within the meaning of Beckwith 
v. United States, 425 U.S .  34 1 , 96 S .Ct .  1 6 1 2 , 48 L.Ed.2d 
1 ( 1 976). 

Miranda defined custodial interrogation as questioning 
initiated by law enforcement officers after a person has 
been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his 
freedom of action in any significant way. Miranda, supra, 
384 U .S .  at 444, 86 S .Ct .  at 1 6 1 2, 1 6  L.Ed.2d at 706. 
In Beckwith the court rej ected any extension of Miranda 
to situations involving noncustodial circumstances in 
which a police investigation has focused on the suspect. 
Beckwith, supra, 425 U.S .  at 345, 96 S .Ct .  at 1 6  I 5 ,  48 
L .Ed.2d at 6-7; see also State v. Fields, 294 N.W.2d 
404, 407-08 (N .D. 1 980) (adoption of "custody" test for 
application of Miranda; "focus" language of State v. 
Iverson, 1 87 N .W.2d 1 (N .D . 1 97 1 ) ,  cert. denied, 404 U.S .  
956 ,  92  S .Ct. 322, 30 L .Ed.2d 273 ( 1 97 1 ) , limited to context 
of Iverson ). 

Neither Larson nor Johnsen were formally placed under 
arrest . Further, although the defendants disputed the fact, 
wardens Kraft and Larson testified that the defendants 
were free to leave during the questioning. While we 
view the wardens' assertions with skepticism, we are 
not prepared to conclude, as the trial court did, that 
the defendants were in custody within the meaning of 
Miranda. Nevertheless, the issue of voluntariness is always 
a question to be determined from all of the circumstances , 
regardless of whether or not a subject is in custody. State 
v. Lange, 255 N.W.2d 59 ,  64 (N .D . 1 977). 

(7) In Beckwith the court recognized "that noncustodial 
interrogation might possibly in some situations, by virtue 
of some special circumstances, be characterized as one 
where 'the behavior of . . .  law enforcement officials 
was such as to overbear petitioner's will to resist and 
bring about confessions not freely self-determined . . .  . '  " 
Beckwith, supra, 425 U .S .  at 347-48, 96 S .Ct. at 1 6 1 7 , 48 
L .Ed.2d at 8 .  The Court went on to say that "When such 
a claim is raised, it is the duty of an appellate court . . .  
'to examine the entire record and make an independent 
determination of the ultimate issue of  voluntariness . '  " 
Beckwith, supra, 425 U .S .  at 348,  96 S .Ct. at 1 6 1 7 , 48 
L .Ed.2d at 8 .  The Court added that "Proof that some kind 
of warnings were given or that none were given would 
be relevant evidence only on the issue of whether the 
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questioning was in fact coercive ."  Becfnvitli, supra, 425 
U.S .  at 348, 96 S .Ct .  at 1 6 1 7 , 48 L .Ed.2d at 8 .  

Neither Larson no r  Johnsen received either Miranda 
warnings or anything similar to them. 5 Moreover, the 
defendants were faced with Grosz' threat to use dogs 
and more wardens in an attempt to find the birds if 
Larson did not cooperate with him. The interrogation 
and intimidation by the officers in this case was such that 
the wardens should have known it would likely elicit an 
incriminating response from the defendants . Cf Rhode 
Island v. Innis, 446 U.S .  29 1 , 30 1 ,  1 00 S .Ct .  1 682, 1 689, 64 
L.Ed.2d 297, 308 ( 1 980) . 

Footnotes 

� ,  I� e J :g. Cj ;,  
:t. - � - 1 9'/, l 3 

Viewing the totality of the circumstances in this case we 
conclude that the trial court's determination regarding 
the voluntariness of Larson's consent to search and the 
defendants' subsequent confessions, is not against the 
manifest weight of the evidence . Accordingly, we affirm 
the trial court's order suppressing Larson's consent to the 
search and Larson and Johnsen's confessions. 

ERICKSTAD, C.J. , and GIERKE, PEDERSON and 
VANDE WALLE, JJ . ,  concur. 

All Citations 

343 N.W.2d 3 6 1  

1 Warden Larson agreed that G rosz made the statement to defendant Larson. However, warden Larson testified that he 
thought Grosz said five wardens. 

2 The fourth and fifth amendments are appl icable to the states by virtue of the fou rteenth amendment to the U n ited States 
Constitution .  Wolf v. Colorado, 338 U .S .  25, 69 S .Ct. 1 359, 93 L. Ed. 1 782 ( 1 949); Malloy v. Hagan, 378 U .S .  1 ,  84 S .Ct 
1 489, 1 2  L. Ed.2d 653 ( 1 964) .  

3 Although the tria l judge concluded that the camp fe l l  "we l l  with in the . . .  open field doctrine , "  we a re not prepared to say 
that it d id .  

4 The State also argued,  in the a lternative , that the inevitable discovery doctrine appl ied. G iven the facts of the case, 
however, particularly the fact that the wardens' in it ia l search was unproductive , we fi nd the a rg ument meriUess and 
unworthy of discussion .  

5 Although the defendant in Beckwith was not g iven a l itera l reading of the Miranda warn ings ,  he was advised of h is right 
against compelled self-incrim ination,  and his right to seek the ass istance of an attorney before responding .  Beckwith, 
supra, 425 U .S .  at 348--49, 95 S .Ct. at 1 6 1 7 , 48 L. Ed .2d at 8. 
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Synopsis 

104 S.Ct. 1735 Supreme Court of the United States 
Ray E. OLIVER, Petitioner 

v. UNITED STATES. MAINE, Petitioner V. Richard THORNTON. 
Nos. 82-15, 82-1273. 

I Argued Nov. 9, 1983. 
I Decided April 17, 1984. 

In a federal prosecution of a defendant charged with manufacturing marijuana, the United States appealed from an order of the United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, Edward H. Johnstone, J . ,  sustaining a motion to exclude evidence obtained in a warrantless search of land of the defendant. After a panel 657 F .2d 85 ,  affirmed the suppression order, the Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, sitting en bane, reversed the District Court, 686 F.2d 356. Certiorari was granted. In a state drug prosecution, the Supreme Judicial Court of Maine, 453 A.2d 489, affirmed a Superior Court order granting the defendant's motion to suppress observations made and items seized at the defendant's property by the police. Certiorari was granted. The Supreme Court, Justice Powell, held that the "open fields" doctrine was applicable to determine whether the discovery or seizure of marijuana in question was valid. 
Decision of Sixth Circuit affirmed; decision of Supreme Judicial Court of Maine reversed and remanded. 
Justice White, filed opinion concurring in part and concurring in the judgment. 
Justice Marshall, filed a dissenting opinion, m which Justice Brennan and Justice Stevens joined. 
Opinion on remand, 485 A.2d 952. 

West Headnotes ( 1 3) 
(1 ) 

(2) 

(3) 

14] 

[5] 

Searches and Seizures �- Persons, Places and Things Protected Special protection accorded by Fourth Amendment to people in their "persons, houses, papers, and effects" does not extend to open fields. U .S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4. 
1 20 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures ·.;= Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Open fields are not "effects" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. U . S .C.A. Const .Amend. 4 . 
90 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Government's intrusion upon open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" proscribed by the Fourth Amendment. U.S .C.A Const .Amend. 4. 
64 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Expectation of Privacy Touchstone of Fourth Amendment is question of whether a person has a constitutionally protected reasonable expectation of privacy. U.S .C .A Const.Amend . 4 .  
141  Cases that  cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Expectation of Privacy Fourth Amendment does not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, but only those expectations that society 
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(6) 

17) 

18) 

[9) 

is prepared to recognize as "reasonable. "  U .S .C.A Const.Amend. 4 .  
2 1 3  Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures -:>= Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Open fields do not provide the setting for those intimate activities that the Fourth Amendment is intended to shelter from government interference or surveillance. U .S .C.A Const.Amend . 4. 
1 30 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Because open fields are accessible to the public and police in ways that a home, office or commercial structure would not be, and because fences or "No Trespassing" signs do not effectively bar public from viewing open fields, asserted expectation of privacy in open fields is not one that society recognizes as reasonable. U .S .C.A Const .Amend. 4. 
1 80 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures P Curtilage or Open Fields;Yards and Outbuildings The common law, by implying that only the land immediately surrounding and associated with the home warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that attach to the home, conversely implies that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields . U .S .C.A Const.Amend. 4 .  
937 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures iF' Curtilage or Open Fields;Yards and Outbuildings Analysis of circumstances of search of open field on case-by-case basis to determine 

f ;..1 
.. 

whether reasonable expectations of privacy were violated would not provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment; ad hoc approach not only would make it difficult for policeman to discern the scope of his authority but would also create the danger that constitutional rights would be arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. U .S .C.A Const .Amend. 4. 
402 Cases that cite this headnote 

(10) Controlled Substances � Open Fields;Curtilage or Yard; Growing Plants Steps taken to protect privacy such as planting marijuana on secluded land and erecting fences and "No Trespassing" signs around property did not establish that expectations of privacy in an open field were "legitimate" in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment. U.S .C .A. Const.Amend. 4. 
292 Cases that cite this headnote 

( 11) Searches and Seizures ,·= Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Test of legitimacy of expectation of privacy in open field is not whether individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity, but whether government's intrusion infringes upon personal and societal values protected by Fourth Amendment. U.S .C .A Const.Amend . 4 .  
477 Cases that cite this headnote 

(12) Searches and Seizures if"' What Constitutes Search or Seizure Fact that government's intrusion upon an open field is a trespass at common law does not make it a "search" in the constitutional sense. U.S .C.A.  Const.Amend. 4. 
22 Cases that cite this headnote 
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[ 13) Searches and Seizures 
.j= Effect of Illegal Conduct;Trespass In case of open fields, general rights of property protected by common law of trespass have little or no relevance to applicability of Fourth Amendment. U.S .C.A Const .Amend. 4. 

39 Cases that cite this headnote 

Syllabus al 

In No. 82-15 ,  acting on reports that marihuana was being raised on petitioner's farm, narcotics agents of the Kentucky State Police went to the farm to investigate . Arriving at the farm, they drove past petitioner's house to a locked gate with a "No Trespassing" sign, but with a footpath around one side. The agents then walked around the gate and along the road and found a field ofmarihuana over a mile from petitioner's house. Petitioner was arrested and indicted for "manufactur[ing]" a "controlled substance" in violation of a federal statute. After a pretrial hearing, the District Court suppressed evidence of the discovery of the marihuana field, applying Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 88 S.Ct. 507, 1 9  L.Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967), and holding that petitioner had a reasonable expectation that the field would remain private and that it was not an "open" field that invited casual intrusion. The Court of Appeals reversed, holding that Katz had not impaired the vitality of the open fields doctrine of Hester v. United States, 265 U.S. 57, 44 S .Ct. 445,  68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924) , which permits police officers to enter and search a field without a warrant. In No. 82- 1 273 ,  after receiving a tip that marihuana was being grown in the woods behind respondent's residence, police officers entered the woods by a path between the residence and a neighboring house, and followed a path through the woods until they reached two marihuana patches fenced with chicken wire and having "No Trespassing" signs. Later, the officers, upon determining that the patches were on respondent's property, obtained a search warrant and seized the marihuana. Respondent was then arrested and indicted. The Maine trial court granted respondent's motion to suppress the fruits of the second search, holding that the initial warrantless search was unreasonable, that the "No Trespassing" signs and secluded location of the 

Hl3 1 � 9 c  
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marihuana patches evince9 a reasonable expectation of privacy, and that therefore the open fields doctrine did not apply. The Maine Supreme Judicial Court affirmed . 
Held: The open fields doctrine should be applied in both cases to determine whether the discovery or seizure of the marihuana in question was valid. Pp. 1 740-1 744. 
*171 (a) That doctrine was founded upon the explicit language of the Fourth Amendment, whose special protection accorded to "persons, houses, papers, and effects" does "not exten[d] to the open fields ."  Hester v. United States, supra, at 59, 44 S .Ct . , at 446. Open fields are not "effects" within the meaning of the Amendment, the term "effects" being less inclusive than "property" and not encompassing open fields. The government's intrusion upon open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" proscribed by the Amendment. P. 1 740. 

(b) Since Katz v. United States, supra, the touchstone of Fourth Amendment analysis has been whether a person has a "constitutionally protected reasonable expectation of privacy. "  Id. ,  389 U.S . ,  at 360, 88 S.Ct. , at 5 1 6. The Amendment does not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, but only those "expectation[s] that society is prepared to recognize as 'reasonable. '  " Id . ,  at 36 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6 . Because open fields are accessible to the public and the police in ways that a home, office, or commercial structure would not be, and because fences or "No Trespassing" signs do not effectively bar the public from viewing open fields, the asserted expectation of privacy in open fields is not one that society recognizes as reasonable. Moreover, the common law, by implying that only the land immediately surrounding and associated with the home warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that attach **1738 to the home, conversely implies that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields. Pp. 1 74 1-1 742. 
(c) Analysis of the circumstances of the search of an open field on a case-by-case basis to determine whether reasonable expectations of privacy were violated would not provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment. Such an ad hoc approach not only would make it difficult for the policeman to discern the scope of his authority but also would create the 
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danger that constitutional rights would b e  arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. P. 1 742. 
(d) Steps taken to protect privacy, such as planting the marihuana on secluded land and erecting fences and "No Trespassing" signs around the property, do not establish that expectations of privacy in an open field are legitimate in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment. The test of legitimacy is not whether the individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity, but whether the government's intrusion infringes upon the personal and societal values protected by the Amendment. The fact that the government's intrusion upon an open field is a trespass at common law does not make it a "search" in the constitutional sense . In the case of open fields, the general rights of property protected by the common law of trespass have little or no relevance to the applicability of the Fourth Amendment. Pp. 1 743-1 744. 
686 F.2d 356 (CA6 1 982), affirmed; 453 A.2d 489 (Me. 1 982), reversed and remanded. 
Attorneys and Law Firms 

*172 Frank E. Haddad, Jr. , argued the cause for petitioner in No. 82- 1 5 . With him on the briefs was Robert 
L. Wilson. Wayne S. Moss, Assistant Attorney General of Maine, argued the cause for petitioner in No. 82- 1 273. With him on the briefs were James E. Tierney, Attorney General, James W Brannigan, Jr. , Deputy Attorney General, Robert S. Frank, Assistant Attorney General, and David W Crook. 

Alan I Horowitz argued the cause for the United States in No. 82- 1 5 . With him on the brief were Solicitor General 
Lee, Assistant A ttorney General Jensen, and Deputy 
Solicitor General Frey. Donna L. Zeegers, by appointment of the Court, 46 1 U.S .  924, argued the cause and filed a brief for respondent in No. 82- 1 273 .  t 
t Briefs of amici curiae urging reversal in No. 82- 1 5  were filed for the American Civil Liberties Union of Northern California et al. by Eric Neisser, Alan Schlosser, Amitai 
Schwartz, Joaquin G. Avila, Morris J. Baller, and John E. 
Huerta; and for the California Farm Bureau Federation et al. by Thomas F. Olson. 

Briefs of amici curiae urging affirmance in No. 82- 1 5  were filed for Americans for Effective Law Enforcement, Inc., et al. by Fred E. Inbau, Wayne W Schmidt, and James 

P. Manak; for the State of California by John K. Van De 
Kamp, Attorney General, Harley D. Mayfield, Assistant Attorney General, and Jay M. Bloom, Deputy Attorney General. 
A Brief of amici curiae was filed in No. 82- 1 273 for the State of Alabama et al. by Charles A. Graddick, Attorney General of Alabama, and Joseph G.L. Marston III, Assistant Attorney General, and by the Attorneys General for their respective jurisdictions as follows: Norman C. 
Gorsuch of Alaska, Aviata F. Fa'alevao of American Samoa, Robert K. Corbin of Arizona, Duane Woodard of Colorado, Charles M. Oberly III of Delaware, Robert T. 
Stephen of Kansas, Steven L. Beshear of Kentucky, Paul 
L. Douglas ofNebraska, David L. Wilkinson of Utah, John 
J. Easton, Jr. , of Vermont, Chauncey H. Browning of West Virginia, Bronson C. La Follette of Wisconsin, and Archie 
G. McClintock of Wyoming. 
Opinion 

*173 Justice POWELL delivered the opinion of the Court. 

[J. 17 

The "open fields" doctrine, first enunciated by this Court 
• in Hester v. United States, 265 U.S .  57, 44 S .Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924), permits police officers to enter and -search a field without a warrant .  We granted certiorari in these cases to clarify confusion that has arisen as to the continued vitality of the doctrine. 

I 
No. 82-1 5 .  Acting on reports that marihuana was being raised on the farm of petitioner Oliver, two narcotics agents of the Kentucky State Police went to the farm to investigate. 1 Arriving at the farm, they drove past petitioner's house to a locked gate with a "No Trespassing" sign. A footpath led around one side of the gate. The agents walked around the gate and along the road for several hundred yards, passing a barn and a parked camper. At that point, someone standing in front of the camper shouted: "No hunting is allowed, come back up here ." The officers shouted back that they were Kentucky State Police officers, but found no one when they returned to the camper. The officers resumed their investigation of the farm and found a field of marihuana over a mile from petitioner's home. 
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Petitioner was arrested and indicted for "manufactur[ing]" a "controlled substance. "  2 1  U.S .C .  § 84 1 (a)( I ) .  After a pretrial hearing, the District Court suppressed evidence of the discovery of the marihuana field. Applying Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 357, 88 S .Ct .  507, 5 1 4, 19 L.Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967), the court found that petitioner had a reasonable expectation that the field would remain private because petitioner "had done all that could be expected of him to assert his privacy in the **1739 area of farm that was searched. "  He had posted "No Trespassing" signs at regular intervals and had locked the gate at the entrance to the center of the farm. App. to Pet. for Cert . in No. 82- 1 5, *174 pp. 23-24. Further, the court noted that the field itself is highly secluded: it is bounded on all sides by woods, fences, and embankments and cannot be seen from any point of public access. The court concluded that this was not an "open" field that invited casual intrusion. 
The Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, sitting en bane, reversed the District Court. United States v. Oliver, 686 F.2d 356 (CA6 1 982). 2 The court concluded that Katz, upon which the District Court relied, had not impaired the vitality of the open fields doctrine of Hester. Rather, the open fields doctrine was entirely compatible with Katz' emphasis on privacy. The court reasoned that the "human relations that create the need for privacy do not ordinarily take place" in open fields, and that the property owner's common-law right to exclude trespassers is insufficiently linked to privacy to warrant the Fourth Amendment's protection. 686 F .2d, at 360. 3 We granted certiorari . 459 U.S .  1 1 68 ,  1 03 S .Ct. 8 1 2, 74 L .Ed.2d 1 0 1 2  ( 1 983) . 
No. 82- 1273 .  After receiving an anonymous tip that marihuana was being grown in the woods behind respondent Thornton's residence, two police officers entered the woods by a path between this residence and a neighboring house. They followed a footpath through the woods until they reached two marihuana patches fenced with chicken wire. Later, the officers determined that the patches were on the property of respondent, obtained a warrant to search the property, and seized the marihuana. On the basis of this evidence, respondent was arrested and indicted. 
*175 The trial court granted respondent's motion to suppress the fruits of the second search. The warrant for this search was premised on information that the police had obtained during their previous warrantless 

# I  

search, that the court found to be unreasonable. 4 "No Trespassing" signs and the secluded location of the marihuana patches evinced a reasonable expectation of privacy. Therefore, the court held, the open fields doctrine did not apply. 
The Maine Supreme Judicial Court affirmed. State v. Thornton, 453 A .2d 489 (Me. 1 982) .  It agreed with the trial court that the correct question was whether the search "is a violation of privacy on which the individual justifiably relied," id . ,  at 493, and that the search violated respondent's privacy. The court also agreed that the open fields doctrine did not justify the search. That doctrine applies. according to the court. only when officers are lawfully present on property and observe "open and patent" activity. Id . ,  at 495 .  In this case, the officers had trespassed upon defendant's property, and the respondent had made every effort to conceal his activity . We granted certiorari. 460 U .S .  1 068 ,  1 03 S .Ct. 1 520, 75 L.Ed.2d 944 

5 ( 1 983) .  
**1740 *176 II  

[1 ) The rule announced in Hester v. United States was founded upon the explicit language of the Fourth Amendment. That Amendment indicates with some precision the places and things encompassed by its protections. As Justice Holmes explained for the Court in his characteristically laconic style: "[T]he special protection accorded by the Fourth Amendment to the people in their 'persons, houses, papers, and effects, '  is not extended to the open fields. The distinction between the latter and the house is as old as the common law." Hester v. United States, 265 U .S  .. at 59, 44 S .Ct . ,  at 446 . 6 
[2) [31 Nor are the open fields "effects" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. In this respect, it is suggestive that James Madison's proposed draft of what became the Fourth *177 Amendment preserves "[t]he rights of the people to be secured in their persons, their houses, their papers, and their other property, from all unreasonable searches and seizures . . . .  " See N .  Lasson, The History and Development of  the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution 1 00,  n .  77 ( 1 937). Although Congress' revisions of Madison's proposal broadened the scope of the Amendment in some respects, id. ,  at 1 00-1 03 ,  the term "effects" is less inclusive than "property" and cannot be said to encompass open 
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fields. 7 We conclude, as did the Court i n  deciding Hester 
v. United States, that the government's intrusion upon the 
open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" 
proscribed by the text of the Fourth Amendment. 

III 
[4] [51 This interpretation of the Fourth Amendment's 

language is consistent with the understanding of the 
right to privacy expressed in our Fourth Amendment 
jurisprudence. Since Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 
88 S .Ct. 507, 1 9  L .Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967), the touchstone 
of Amendment analysis has been the question whether 
a person has a "constitutionally protected **1741 
reasonable expectation of privacy." Id. , at 360, 88 S .Ct . ,  
at 5 I 6 (Harlan, J . ,  concurring) . The Amendment does 
not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, 
but only those "expectation[s] that society is prepared to 
recognize as 'reasonable . ' " Id . ,  at 36 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6 . See 
also Smith v. Maryland, 442 U.S .  735,  740-74 1 ,  99 S .Ct .  
2577, 2580-258 1 .  6 1  L.Ed .2d 220 ( 1 979) . 

A 

No single factor detern1ines whether an individual 
legitimately may claim under the Fourth Amendment 
that a place should be free of government intrusion not 
authorized by warrant. See *178 Rakas v. Illinois, 439 
U.S .  1 28, 1 52-1 53 ,  99 S .Ct. 42 1 ,  435-436, 58 L .Ed.2d 387 
( 1 978) (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . In assessing the degree 
to which a search infringes upon individual privacy, the 
Court has given weight to such factors as the intention 
of the Framers of the Fourth Amendment, e.g. , United 
States v. Chadwick, 433 U.S .  I ,  7-8, 97 S .Ct. 2476, 
248 1-2482, 53 L.Ed.2d 538 ( 1 977), the uses to which 
the individual has put a location, e .g . ,  Jones v. United 
States, 362 U .S .  257, 265, 80 S .Ct. 725, 733 ,  4 L.Ed.2d 697 
( 1 960), and our societal understanding that certain areas 
deserve the most scrupulous protection from government 
invasion, e .g . ,  Payton v. New York, 445 U .S .  573, 1 00 
S .Ct .  1 3 7 1 ,  63 L.Ed.2d 639 ( 1 980). These factors are 
equally relevant to determining whether the government's 
intrusion upon open fields without a warrant or probable 
cause violates reasonable expectations of privacy and is 
therefore a search proscribed by the Amendment . -

In this light, the rule of Hester v. United States, supra, 
that we reaffirm today, may be understood as providing 
that an individual may not legitimately demand privacy 
for activities conducted out of doors in fields, except 
in the area immediately surrounding the home. See also 
Air Pollution Variance Bd. v. Western Alfalfa Corp . .  
4 1 6  U .S .  86 1 ,  865 ,  94  S .Ct .  2 1 14 ,  2 1 1 5 , 40  L.Ed.2d 607 
( 1 974) . This rule is true to the conception of the right 
to privacy embodied in the Fourth Amendment. The 
Amendment reflects the recognition of the Framers that 
certain enclaves should be free from arbitrary government 
interference. For example, the Court since the enactment 
of the Fourth Amendment has stressed "the overriding 
respect for the sanctity of the home that has been 
embedded in our traditions since the origins of the 
Republic. " Payton v. New York, supra, 445 U.S . ,  at 60 1 ,  
1 00 S .Ct . ,  at 1 387 .  8 See also Si lverman v .  United States, 
365 U.S .  505, 5 1 1 ,  8 I S .Ct .  679, 682, 5 L.Ed .2d 734 ( 1 96 1  ) ; 
United States v. United States District Court, 407 U.S .  
297, 3 1 3 , 92 S .Ct. 2 1 25 ,  2 1 34, 32 L.Ed .2d 752 ( 1 972). 
*179 [61 (71 In contrast, open fields do not provide the 

setting for those intimate activities that the Amendment 
is intended to shelter from government interference or 

• surveillance. There is no societal interest in protecting 
the privacy of those activities, such as the cultivation of 
crops, that occur in open fields. Moreover, as a practical 
matter these lands usually are accessible to the public and 
the police in ways that a home, an office, or commercial 
structure would not be. It is not generally true that fences 
or "No Trespassing" signs effectively bar the public from 
viewing open fields in rural areas. And both petitioner 
Oliver and respondent Thornton concede that the public 
and police lawfully may survey lands from the air. 9 For 
these reasons, the asserted **1742 expectation of privacy 
in open fields is not an expectation that "society recognizes 
as reasonable. "  I O  

*180 [8] The historical underpinnings of the open fields 
doctrine also demonstrate that the doctrine is consistent 
with respect for "reasonable expectations of privacy. '' 
As Justice Holmes, writing for the Court, observed in 
Hester, 265 U.S . ,  at 59, 44 S .Ct. , at 446, the common law 
distinguished "open fields" from the "curtilage," the land 
immediately surrounding and associated with the home. 
See 4 W. Blackstone, Commentaries *225. The distinction 
implies that only the curtilage, not the neighboring open 
fields, warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that 
attach to the home. At common law, the curtilage is the 
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area to which extends the intimate activity associated with the "sanctity of a man's home and the privacies of life," Boyd v. United States, 1 1 6  U.S .  6 1 6, 630, 6 S .Ct .  524, 532, 29 L. Ed.  746 ( 1 886), and therefore has been considered part of home itself for Fourth Amendment purposes. Thus, courts have extended Fourth Amendment protection to the curtilage; and they have defined the curtilage, as did the common law, by reference to the factors that determine whether an individual reasonably may expect that an area immediately adjacent to the home will remain private. See, e.g. , United States v. Van Dyke, 643 F.2d 992, 993-994 (CA4 1 98 1 ) ; United States v. Will iams, 58 1 F.2d 45 1 , 453 (CA5 1 978); Care v.  United States, 23 1 F.2d 22, 25 (CA I O), cert . denied, 3 5 1  U.S .  932,  76 S .Ct .  788, 1 00 L.Ed. 1 46 1  ( 1 956) . Conversely, the common law implies, as we reaffirm today, that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields. 1 1  
*181 We conclude, from the text of the Fourth Amendment and from the historical and contemporary understanding of its purposes, that an individual has no legitimate expectation that open fields will remain free from warrantless intrusion by government officers. 

B 

[9] Petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton contend, to the contrary, that the circumstances of a search sometimes may indicate that reasonable expectations of privacy were violated; and that courts therefore should analyze these circumstances on a case-by-case basis. The language of the Fourth Amendment itself answers their contention. 
**1743 Nor would a case-by-case approach provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment. Under this approach, police officers would have to guess before every search whether landowners had erected fences sufficiently high, posted a sufficient number of warning signs, or located contraband in an area sufficiently secluded to establish a right of privacy. The lawfulness of a search would turn on " '[a] highly sophisticated set of rules, qualified by all sorts of ifs, ands, and buts and requiring the drawing of subtle nuances and hairline distinctions . . . .  ' " New York v. Belton , 453 U.S .  

1--18 } I 'J I') 

_J_11_,_'t __ . f  1c]_ CJ 

454, 458,  1 0 1  S .Ct .  2860, 2863, 69 L.Ed.2d 768 ( 1 9 8 1 )  (quoting Lafave, "Case-By-Case Adjudication" versus "Standardized Procedures" : The Robinson Dilemma, 1 974 S .Ct .Rev. 1 27,  1 42) . This Court repeatedly has acknowledged the difficulties created for courts, police, and citizens by an ad hoc, case-by-case definition of Fourth Amendment standards to be applied in differing factual circumstances. See Belton, supra, at 458-460, 1 0 1  S .Ct . ,  at 2863-2864; Robbins v .  California, 453 U .S .  420, 430, 1 0 1  S .Ct .  284 1 ,  2847, 69  L .Ed.2d 744 ( 1 98 1 )  (POWELL, J . ,  concurring in judgment); Dunaway v. New York, 442 U.S.  200, 2 1 3-2 1 4, 99 S .Ct. 2248 , 2257-2258, 60 L.Ed.2d 824 ( 1 979 ) ;  United States v. Robinson, 4 1 4  U.S .  2 1 8 , 235,  94 S .Ct. 467, 476, 3 8  L.Ed.2d 427 ( 1 973) .  The ad hoc approach not only makes it difficult for the policeman to discern the scope of his authority, Belton, supra, 453 U.S . ,  at 460, I O I  S .Ct . ,  at 2864; it also creates a danger that constitutional *182 rights will be arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. Cf. Smith v. Goguen, 4 1 5 U.S .  566,  572-573 ,  94 S .Ct .  1 242, 1 246-1 247 ,  39 L.Ed.2d 605 ( 1 974). 1 2  
IV 

[101 [ 1 1 1  In any event, while the factors that petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton urge the courts to consider may be relevant to Fourth Amendment analysis in some contexts, these factors cannot be decisive on the question whether the search of an open field is subject to the Amendment. Initially, we reject the suggestion that steps taken to protect privacy establish that expectations of privacy in an open field are legitimate. It is true, of course, that petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton, in order to conceal their criminal activities, planted the marihuana upon secluded land and erected fences and "No Trespassing" signs around the property. And it may be that because of such precautions, few members of the public stumbled upon the marihuana crops seized by the police. Neither of these suppositions demonstrates, however, that the expectation of privacy was legitimate in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment. The test of legitimacy is not whether the individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity. 1 3  Rather, the correct inquiry is whether the government's intrusion infringes upon the personal *183 and societal values protected by the Fourth Amendment. As we have explained, we find no basis for concluding that a police inspection of open fields accomplishes such an infringement .  
-------------------·-----
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[ 12) Nor i s  the government's intrusion upon an open field a "search" in the constitutional sense because that intrusion is a **1744 trespass at common law. The existence of a property right is but one element in determining whether expectations of privacy are legitimate. " 'The premise that property interests control the right of the Government to search and seize has been discredited. ' " Katz, 389 U.S . ,  at 353 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 2  (quoting Warden v. Hayden, 387 U.S .  294, 304, 87 S .Ct .  1 642, 1 648, 1 8  L.Ed.2d 782 ( 1 967)). "[E] ven a property interest in premises may not be sufficient to establish a legitimate expectation of privacy with respect to particular items located on the premises or activity conducted thereon."  Rakas v. Illinois, 439 U.S . ,  at 1 44, n. 1 2, 99 S.Ct . ,  at 43 1 ,  n. 1 2 . 
[ 13) The common law may guide consideration of what areas are protected by the Fourth Amendment by defining areas whose invasion by others is wrongful. Id . ,  at 1 53 ,  99 S .Ct . ,  a t  435  (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . 1 4  The law of trespass, however, forbids intrusions upon land that the Fourth Amendment would not proscribe. For trespass law extends to instances where the exercise of the right to exclude vindicates no legitimate privacy interest. 1 5  Thus, in the case of open fields, the general *184 rights of property protected by the common law of trespass have little or no relevance to the applicability of the Fourth Amendment. 

V 

We conclude that the open fields doctrine, as enunciated in Hester, is consistent with the plain language of the Fourth Amendment and its historical purposes . Moreover, Justice Holmes' interpretation of the Amendment in Hester accords with the "reasonable expectation of privacy" analysis developed in subsequent decisions of this Court. We therefore affirm Oliver v. United States; Maine v. Thornton is reversed and remanded for further proceedings not inconsistent with this opinion. 
It is so ordered. 
Justice WHITE, concurring in part and concurring in the judgment. 

# /  H- 8  JJ 9 D  
.;J - � - / 9  

I concur in the judgment and join Parts I and II of the Court's opinion. These Parts dispose of the issue before us; there is no need to go further and deal with the expectation of privacy matter. However reasonable a landowner's expectations of privacy may be, those expectations cannot convert a field into a "house" or an "effect. "  
Justice MARSHALL, with whom Justice BRENNAN and Justice STEVENS join, dissenting. 
In each of these consolidated cases, police officers, ignoring clearly visible "No Trespassing" signs, entered upon private land in search of evidence of a crime. At a spot that could *185 not be seen from any vantage point accessible to the public, the police discovered contraband, which was subsequently used to incriminate the owner of the land. In neither case did the police have a warrant authorizing their activities . 
The Court holds that police conduct of this sort does not constitute an "unreasonable search" within the meaning of the **1745 Fourth Amendment. The Court reaches that startling conclusion by two independent analytical routes. First, the Court argues that, because the Fourth Amendment by its terms renders people secure in their "persons, houses, papers, and effects," it is inapplicable to trespasses upon land not lying within the curtilage of a dwelling. Ante, at 1 740. Second, the Court contends that "an individual may not legitimately demand privacy for activities conducted out of doors in fields, except in the area immediately surrounding the home." Ante, at 1 74 1 .  Because I cannot agree with either o f  these propositions, I dissent. 

I 

The first ground on which the Court rests its decision is that the Fourth Amendment "indicates with some precision the places and things encompassed by its protections," and that real property is not included in the list of protected spaces and possessions. Ante, at 1 740. This line of argument has several flaws. Most obviously, it is inconsistent with the results of many of our previous decisions, none of which the Court purports to overrule. For example, neither a public telephone booth nor a conversation conducted therein can fairly be described as a person, house, paper, or effect; 1 yet we have held that the Fourth Amendment forbids the police without 
------ -----·------ ----·-·- - ·----
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a warrant to eavesdrop on such a conversation. Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 88 S .Ct. 507, 1 9  L.Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967) . Nor can it plausibly *186 be argued that an office or commercial establishment is covered by the plain language of the Amendment; yet we have held that such premises are entitled to constitutional protection if they are marked in a fashion that alerts the public to the fact that they are private. Marshall v. Barlow's Inc . ,  436 U .S .  307, 3 1 1 ,  98 S .C t .  1 8 1 6, 1 8 1 9. 56 L.Ed.2d 305  ( 1 978) ;  G .M.  Leasing Corp. v .  United States, 429 U .S .  338 ,  358-359, 97 S .Ct .  6 1 9, 63 1-632, 50 L.Ed.2d 530 ( 1 977). 2 
Indeed, the Court's reading of the plain language of the Fourth Amendment is incapable of explaining even its own holding in this case. The Court rules that the curtilage, a zone of real property surrounding a dwelling, is entitled to constitutional protection. Ante, at 1 742. We are not told, however, whether the curtilage is a "house" or an "effect"-or why, if the curtilage can be incorporated into the list of things and spaces shielded by the Amendment, a field cannot. 
The Court's inability to reconcile its parsimonious reading of the phrase "persons, houses, papers, and effects" with our prior decisions or even its own holding is a symptom of a more fundamental infirmity in the Court's reasoning. The Fourth Amendment, like the other central provisions of the Bill of Rights that loom large in our modern jurisprudence, was designed, not to prescribe with "precision" permissible and impermissible activities, but to identify a fundamental human liberty that should be shielded forever from government intrusion. 3 We do not construe constitutional provisions *187 of this sort the way we do statutes, whose drafters can be expected to **1746 indicate with some comprehensiveness and exactitude the conduct they wish to forbid or control and to change those prescriptions when they become obsolete. 4 Rather, we strive, when interpreting these seminal constitutional provisions, to effectuate their purposes-to lend them meanings that ensure that the liberties the Framers sought to protect are not undermined by the changing activities of government officials. 5 
The liberty shielded by the Fourth Amendment, as we have often acknowledged, is freedom "from unreasonable government intrusions into . . .  legitimate expectations of privacy." United States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S .  I ,  7, 97 S .Ct. 2476, 248 1 ,  53 L.Ed.2d 538 ( 1 977). That freedom would be incompletely protected if only government 

conduct that impinged upon a person, house, paper, or effect were subject to constitutional scrutiny. Accordingly, we have repudiated the proposition that the Fourth Amendment applies only to a limited set of locales or kinds of property. In Katz v .  United States, we expressly rejected a proffered locational theory of the coverage of the Amendment, holding that it "protects people, not places. "  389 U .S . ,  at 35 1 ,  88  S .Ct . ,  at 51 I .  Since that time we have consistently adhered *188 to the view that the applicability of the provision depends solely upon "whether the person invoking its protection can claim a 'justifiable, ' a 'reasonable, '  or a ' legitimate expectation of privacy' that has been invaded by government action." Smith v. Maryland , 442 U.S. 735 ,  740, 99 S .Ct .  2577, 2580, 61 L .Ed.2d 220 ( 1 979). 6 The Court's contention that, because a field is not a house or effect, it is not covered by the Fourth Amendment is inconsistent with this line of cases and with the understanding of the nature of constitutional adjudication from which it derives. 7 
**1747 II 

The second ground for the Court's decision is its contention that any interest a landowner might have in the privacy of his woods and fields is not one that "society is prepared to recognize as 'reasonable. '  " Ante, at 1 740 (quoting Katz v. United States, 389 U.S . ,  at 36 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6  (Harlan, J . ,  concurring)) . *189 The mode of analysis that underlies this assertion is certainly more consistent with our prior decisions than that discussed above. But the Court's conclusion cannot withstand scrutiny. 
As the Court acknowledges, we have traditionally looked to a variety of factors in determining whether an expectation of privacy asserted in a physical space is "reasonable. "  Ante, at 1 740. Though those factors do not lend themselves to precise taxonomy, they may be roughly grouped into three categories . First, we consider whether the expectation at issue is rooted in entitlements defined by positive law. Second, we consider the nature of the uses to which spaces of the sort in question can be put. Third, we consider whether the person claiming a privacy interest manifested that interest to the public in a way that most people would understand and respect. 8 When the expectations of privacy asserted by petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton 9 are examined through these 
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lenses, i t  becomes clear that those expectations are entitled 
to constitutional protection. 

A 

We have frequently acknowledged that privacy interests 
are not coterminous with property rights. E .g . ,  United 
States v. Salvucci, 448 U .S .  83 ,  9 1 ,  1 00 S .Ct .  2547, 2552, 
65 L .Ed .2d 6 1 9  ( 1 980). However, because "property rights 
reflect society's explicit recognition *190 of a person's 
authority to act as he wishes in certain areas, [they] should 
be considered in determining whether an individual's 
expectations of privacy are reasonable . "  Rakas v.  Illinois, 
439 U.S .  1 28 ,  1 53 ,  99 S .Ct .  435 ( 1 978)  (POWELL, J . ,  
concurring) . 1 0  Indeed, the Court has suggested that, 
insofar as "[ o ]ne of the main rights attaching to property 
is the right to exclude others, . . .  one who owns or lawfully 
possesses or controls property will in all likelihood have a 
legitimate expectation of privacy by virtue of this right to 
exclude." Id . ,  at 1 44, n .  1 2, 99 S .Ct . ,  at 43 1 n .  1 2  (opinion 
of the Court) . 1 1  

**1748 It is undisputed that Oliver and Thornton each 
owned the land into which the police intruded. That fact 
alone provides considerable support for their assertion 
of legitimate privacy interests in their woods and fields. 
But even more telling is the nature of the sanctions 
that Oliver and Thornton could invoke, under local law, 
for violation of their property rights . In Kentucky, a 
knowing entry upon fenced or otherwise enclosed land, 
or upon unenclosed land conspicuously posted with 
signs excluding the public, constitutes criminal trespass. 
Ky.Rev.Stat. §§ 5 1 1 .070( 1 ) , 5 1 1 .080, 5 1 1 .090(4) ( 1 975) .  
The law in Maine is similar. An intrusion into "any place 
from *191 which [the intruder] may lawfully be excluded 
and which is posted in a manner prescribed by law or in 
a manner reasonably likely to come to the attention of 
intruders or which is fenced or otherwise enclosed" is a 
crime. Me.Rev.Stat.Ann. ,  Tit. 1 7A, § 402( l )(C) ( 1 964) . 1 2  

Thus, positive law not only recognizes the legitimacy of 
Oliver's and Thornton's insistence that strangers keep off 
their land, but subjects those who refuse to respect their 
wishes to the most severe of penalties-criminal liability. 
Under these circumstances, it is hard to credit the Court's 
assertion that Oliver's and Thornton's expectations of 
privacy were not of a sort that society is prepared to 
recognize as reasonable. 

#-! 

B 

The uses to which a place is put are highly relevant to the 
assessment of a privacy interest asserted therein. Rakas 
v. Illinois, supra, at 1 53 ,  99 S .Ct . ,  at 435 (POWELL, J . ,  
concurring) . If, in light of our shared sensibilities, those 
activities are of a kind in which people should be able 
to engage without fear of intrusion by private persons 
or government officials, we extend the protection of the 
Fourth Amendment to the space in question, even in the 
absence of any entitlement derived from positive law. E .g . ,  
Katz v .  United States, 389 U.S . ,  at  352-353, 88  S .Ct . ,  at  
5 1 1-5 1 2 . 1 3  

*192 Privately owned woods and fields that are not 
exposed to public view regularly are employed in a 
variety of ways that society acknowledges deserve privacy. 
Many landowners like to take solitary walks on their 
property, confident that they will not be confronted in 
their rambles by strangers or policemen. Others conduct 
agricultural businesses on their property. 14 **1749 
Some landowners use their secluded spaces to meet lovers, 
others to gather together with fellow worshippers, still 
others to engage in sustained creative endeavor. Private 
land is sometimes used as a refuge for wildlife, where 
flora and fauna are protected from human intervention of 
any kind. 15 Our respect for the freedom of landowners 
to use *193 their posted "open fields" in ways such 
as these partially explains the seriousness with which 
the positive law regards deliberate invasions of such 
spaces, see supra, at 1 748, and substantially reinforces the 
landowners' contention that their expectations of privacy 
are "reasonable."  

C 

Whether a person "took normal precautions to maintain 
his privacy" in a given space affects whether his interest 
is one protected by the Fourth Amendment. Rawlings 
v. Kentucky, 448 U .S .  98 ,  1 05 ,  1 00 S .Ct .  2556, 256 1 ,  65 
L.Ed.2d 633 ( 1 980) .  16 The reason why such precautions 
are relevant is that we do not insist that a person who 
has a right to exclude others exercise that right. A claim 
to privacy is therefore strengthened by the fact that the 
claimant somehow manifested to other people his desire 
that they keep their distance. 
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Certain spaces are so  presumptively private that signals 
of this sort are unnecessary; a homeowner need not 
post a "Do Not Enter" sign on his door in order to 
deny entrance to uninvited guests. 1 7  Privacy interests 
in other spaces are more ambiguous, and the taking of 
precautions is consequently more important; placing a 
lock on one's footlocker strengthens one's claim that an 
examination of its contents is impermissible. See United 
States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S . ,  at 1 1 , 97 S .Ct. , at 2483 .  Still 
other spaces are, by positive law and social convention, 
presumed accessible to members of the public unless the 
owner manifests his intention to exclude them. 

Undeveloped land falls into the last-mentioned category. 
If a person has not marked the boundaries of his fields or 
woods in a way that informs passersby that they are not 
welcome, *194 he cannot object if members of the public 
enter onto the property. There is no reason why he should 
have any greater rights as against government officials. 
Accordingly, we have held that an official may, without 
a warrant, enter private land from which the public is 
not excluded and make observations from that vantage 
point. Air Pollution Variance Board v. Western Alfalfa 
Corp . ,  4 1 6  U .S .  86 1 .  865, 94 S .Ct . 2 1 14, 2 1 1 5 ,  40 L.Ed.2d 
607 ( 1 974). Fairly read, the case on which the majority 
so heavily relies, Hester v. United States, 265 U.S .  57, 44 
S .Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed .  898 ( 1 924), affirms little more than 
the foregoing unremarkable proposition. From aught that 
appears in the opinion in that case, the defendants, fleeing 
from revenue agents who had observed them committing a 
crime, abandoned incriminating evidence on private land 
from which the public had not been excluded. Under 
such circumstances, it is not surprising that the Court 
was unpersuaded by the defendants' argument that the 
entry onto their fields by the agents violated the Fourth 
Amendment. 1 8  

**1750 A very different case i s  presented when the owner 
of undeveloped land has taken precautions to exclude 
the public. As indicated above, a deliberate entry by a 
private citizen onto private property marked with "No 
Trespassing" signs will expose him to criminal liability. I 
see no reason why a government official should not be 
obliged to respect such *195 unequivocal and universally 
understood manifestations of a landowner's desire for 

privacy. 1 9  

In  sum, examination of  the three principal criteria we 
have traditionally used for assessing the reasonableness 

# J  

of a person's expectation that a given space would 
remain private indicates that interests of the sort asserted 
by Oliver and Thornton are entitled to constitutional 
protection. An owner's right to insist that others stay off 
his posted land is firmly grounded in positive law. Many 
of the uses to which such land may be put deserve privacy. 
And, by marking the boundaries of the land with warnings 
that the public should not intrude, the owner has dispelled 
any ambiguity as to his desires. 

The police in these cases proffered no justification for their 
invasions of Oliver's and Thornton's privacy interests; 
in neither case was the entry legitimated by a warrant 
or by one of the established exceptions to the warrant 
requirement. I conclude, therefore, that the searches of 
their land violated the Fourth Amendment, and the 
evidence obtained in the course of those searches should 
have been suppressed. 

III 
A clear, easily administrable rule emerges from the 
analysis set forth above: Private land marked in a fashion 
sufficient to render entry thereon a criminal trespass under 
the law of the State in which the land lies is protected 
by the Fourth Amendment's proscription of unreasonable 
searches and seizures. One of the advantages of the 
foregoing rule is that *196 it draws upon a doctrine 
already familiar to both citizens and government officials. 
In each jurisdiction, a substantial body of statutory and 
case law defines the precautions a landowner must take 
in order to avail himself of the sanctions of the criminal 
law. The police know that body of law, because they are 
entrusted with responsibility for enforcing it against the 
public; it therefore would not be difficult for the police to 
abide by it themselves. 

By contrast, the doctrine announced by the Court today 
is incapable of determinate application. Police officers, 
making warrantless entries upon private land, will be 
obliged in the future to make on-the-spot judgments as 
to how far the curtilage extends, and to stay outside that 
zone. 20 In addition, we may expect to see a spate of 
litigation over the question of how much improvement 
is necessary to remove private **1751 land from the 
category of "unoccupied or undeveloped area" to which 
the "open fields exception" is now deemed applicable. See 
ante, at 1 742, n.  1 1 .  
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The Court's holding not only ill serves the need to make 
constitutional doctrine "workable for application by 
rank-and-file, trained police officers,"  Illinois v. Andreas, 
463 U.S .  765, 772, I 03 S .Ct .  33  I 9,  3325,  77 L.Ed.2d I 003 
( 1 983),  it withdraws the shield of the Fourth Amendment 
from privacy interests that clearly deserve protection .  
By  exempting from the coverage of the Amendment 
large areas of private land, the Court opens the way 
to investigative activities we would all find repugnant. 
Cf. ,  e .g. , United States v. Lace, 669 F.2d 46, 54 (CA2 
1 982) (Newman, J., concurring in result) ("[W] hen 
police officers execute military maneuvers on residential 
property for three weeks of round-the-clock surveillance, 
can that be called ' reasonable'?" *197 ); State v. Brady, 
406 So.2d 1 093,  1 094--1 095 (Fla . 1 98 1 )  ("In order to 
position surveillance groups around the ranch's airfield, 
deputies were forced to cross a dike, ram through one gate 
and cut the chain lock on another, cut or cross posted 
fences, and proceed several hundred yards to their hiding 

Footnotes 

places"), cert. granted, 456 U .S .  988 ,  1 02 S .Ct.  2266, 73  
L.Ed.2d 1 282, supplemental memoranda ordered and oral 
argument postponed, 459 U.S .  986,  1 03 S .Ct.  338 ,  74 

L.Ed.2d 38 1 ( 1 982) .  2 1  

The Fourth Amendment, properly construed, embodies 
and gives effect to our collective sense of the degree to 
which men and women, in civilized society, are entitled "to 
be let alone" by their governments. Olmstead v. United 
States, 277 U.S .  438, 478, 48 S .Ct .  564, 572, 72 L.Ed. 944 
( 1 928) (Brandeis, J . ,  dissenting); cf. Smith v. Maryland, 
442 U .S . ,  at 750, 99 S .Ct . ,  at 2585 (MARSHALL, J . ,  
dissenting) . The Court's opinion bespeaks and will help 
to promote an impoverished vision of that fundamental 
right . 

I dissent. 

All Citations 

466 U.S . 1 70, 1 04 S .Ct . 1 735 , 80 L.Ed.2d 2 1 4  

a 1 The syllabus constitutes no part of the opinion of the Court but has been prepared by the Reporter of Decisions for the 
convenience of the reader. See Un ited States v. Detroit Lumber Co., 200 U .S .  32 1 ,  337, 26 S .Ct. 282, 287, 50 L. Ed .  499. 

1 It is conceded that the pol ice did not have a warrant authorizing the search , that there was no probable cause for the 
search, and that no exception to the warrant requirement is appl icable. 

2 A panel of the Sixth Circuit had affirmed the suppression order. United States v. Ol iver, 657 F .2d 85 (CA6 1 98 1 ) .  
3 The four dissenting judges contended that the open fields doctrine did not apply where,  as in this case, ·reasonable 

effort[s] [have] been made to exclude the publ ic. "  686 F.2d, at 372. To that extent, the dissent considered that Katz v. 
Un ited States, impl icitly had overru led previous holdings of this Court. The dissent then concluded that petitioner had 
established a · reasonable expectation of privacy" under the Katz standard .  Judge Lively also wrote separately to argue 
that the open fields doctrine appl ied only to lands that could be viewed by the publ ic. 

4 The court also d iscredited other information , suppl ied by a confidential informant, upon which the pol ice had based their 
warrant appl ication. 

5 Respondent contends that the decision below rests upon adequate and independent state-law grounds. We do not 
read that decis ion, however, as excluding the evidence because the search violated the State Constitution. The Maine 
Supreme J udicial Court referred only to the Fourth Amendment of the Federal Constitution and purported to apply the Katz 
test; the prior state cases that the court cited also construed the Federal Constitution .  In any case, the Maine Supreme 
Judicial Court did not articulate an independent state ground with the clarity required by M ich igan v. Long , 463 U .S .  1 032, 
1 03 S.Ct. 3469, 77 L. Ed.2d 1 20 1  ( 1 983). 
Contrary to respondent's assertion,  we do not review here the state courts' finding as a matter of "fact" that the area 
searched was not an "open field . "  Rather, the question before us is the appropriate legal standard for determin ing whether 
search of that area without a warrant was lawfu l under the Federal Constitution. 
The confl ict between the two cases that we review here is i l lustrative of the confusion the open fields doctrine has 
generated among the state and federal courts. Compare, e.g. , State v. Byers ,  359 So.2d 84 (La . 1 978) (refusing to apply 
open fields doctrine) ; State v. Brady, 406 So.2d 1 093 (Fla . 1 981 ) (same), with Un ited States v. Lace, 669 F .2d 46, 50-51 
(CA2 1 982); Un ited States v. Freie, 545 F .2d 1 2 1 7  (CA9 1 976); Un ited States v. Brown,  473 F .2d 952, 954 (CA5 1 973); 
Atwel l  V. Un ited States, 4 1 4  F .2d 1 36 ,  1 38 (CA5 1 969). 

6 The dissent offers no basis for its suggestion that Hester rests upon some narrow, unarticu lated principle rather than 
upon the reasoning enunciated by the Court's opinion in that case. Nor have subsequent cases discredited Hester's 
reasoning. This Court frequently has relied on the explicit language of the Fourth Amendment as delineating the scope 
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o f  its affirmative protections. See, e .g . ,  Robbins v .  Cal iforn ia ,  453 U . S .  420, 426, 1 0 1  S .Ct. 2841 , 2845, 6 9  L. Ed .2d 
744 ( 1 981 ) (opinion of Stewart, J . ) ;  Payton v. New York, 445 U .S .  573, 589-590, 1 00 S .Ct. 1 37 1 , at 1 38 1-1 382 , 63 
L. Ed.2d 639 ( 1 980); Alderman v. Un ited States, 394 U .S .  1 65, 1 78-1 80, 89 S .Ct. 96 1 ,  969-970, 22 L. Ed.2d 1 76 ( 1 969). 
As these cases, decided after Katz, indicate, Katz' "reasonable expectation of privacy" standard did not sever Fourth 
Amendment doctrine from the Amendment's language. Katz itself construed the Amendment's protection of the person 
against unreasonable searches to encompass electronic eavesdropping of telephone conversations sought to be kept 
private; and Katz' fundamental recognition that "the Fourth Amendment protects people-and not simply 'areas'-against 
unreasonable searches and seizures, ·  see 389 U .S . ,  at 353, 88 S.Ct. , at 5 1 2 , is faithfu l  to the Amendment's language. 
As Katz demonstrates, the Court fairly may respect the constraints of the Constitution's language without wedding itself 
to an unreasoning l iteral ism. In contrast, the d issent's approach would ignore the language of the Constitution itself as 
well as overturn this Court's governing precedent. 

7 The Framers would have understood the term "effects" to be l im ited to personal ,  rather than real ,  property. See general ly 
Doe v. Dring, 2 M .  & S. 448, 454, 1 05 Eng. Rep. 447 , 449 (K. B . 1 8 1 4) (discussing prior cases); 2 W. Blackstone, 
Commentaries * 1 6, * 384-* 385. 

8 The Fourth Amendment's protection of offices and commercial bui ldings, in which there may be legitimate expectations 
of privacy, is also based upon societal expectations that have deep roots in  the h istory of the Amendment. See Marshal l 
v. Barlow's ,  Inc. , 436 U .S .  307, 31 1 ,  98 S .Ct. 1 8 1 6, 1 8 1 9, 56 L. Ed .2d 305 ( 1 978); G .M .  Leasing Corp. v. Un ited States, 
429 U .S .  338, 355, 97 S .Ct. 61 9 , 630, 50 L. Ed .2d 530 ( 1 977). 

9 Tr. of Oral Arg .  1 4-1 5 ,  58. See, e .g . ,  United States v. Allen ,  675 F .2d 1 373, 1 380-1 381 (CA9 1 980); Un ited States v. 
DeBacker, 493 F.Supp. 1 078, 1 081  (WO Mich . 1 980). In practical terms, petitioner Ol iver's and respondent Thornton's 
analysis merely would require law enforcement officers, in  most situations, to use aerial survei l lance to gather the 
information necessary to obtain a warrant or to justify warrantless entry onto the property. I t  is not easy to see how such 
a requirement would advance leg itimate privacy interests. 

1 0  The dissent conceives of open fields as bustl ing with private activity as diverse as lovers' trysts and worship services. Post, 
at 1 7  48-1 7 49. But in most instances pol ice will d isturb no one when they enter upon open fields. These fields, by their very 
character as open and unoccupied, are un l ikely to provide the setting for activities whose privacy is sought to be protected 
by the Fourth Amendment. One need think only of the vast expanse of some western ranches or of the undeveloped 
woods of the Northwest to see the unreal ity of the dissent's conception. Further, the Fourth Amendment provides ample 
protection to activities in the open fields that m ight impl icate an individual 's privacy. An individual who enters a place 
defined to be "publ ic" for Fourth Amendment analysis does not lose al l  claims to privacy or personal security. Cf. Arkansas 
v. Sanders, 442 U .S .  753, 766-767, 99 S .Ct. 2586, 2594-2595, 61 L. Ed.2d 235 ( 1 979) (BURGER,  C .J . ,  concurring in 
judgment) . For example, the Fourth Amendment's protections against unreasonable arrest or unreasonable seizure of 
effects upon the person remain fu lly appl icable. See, e .g . ,  Un ited States v. Watson, 423 U .S .  4 1 1 ,  96 S .Ct. 820, 46 
L .Ed .2d 598 ( 1 976). 

1 1  Neither petitioner Ol iver nor respondent Thornton has contended that the property searched was with in the curtilage. 
Nor is it necessary in these cases to consider the scope of the curtilage exception to the open fields doctrine or the 
degree of Fourth Amendment protection afforded the curtilage, as opposed to the home itself. I t  is clear, however, that 
the term "open fields" may include any unoccupied or undeveloped area outside of the curtilage. An open field need be 
neither "open" nor a "field" as those terms are used in common speech . For example, contrary to respondent Thornton's 
suggestion ,  Tr. of Oral Arg .  2 1-22, a thickly wooded area nonetheless may be an open field as that term is used in 
construing the Fourth Amendment. See, e .g . ,  United States v. Pruitt, 464 F .2d 494 (CA9 1 972); Bedel l v. State, 257 Ark. 
895, 52 1 S.W.2d 200 ( 1 975). 

1 2  The clarity of the open fields doctrine that we reaffirm today is not sacrificed, as the d issent suggests, by our recogn ition 
that the curtilage remains within the protections of the Fourth Amendment. Most of the many m il l ions of acres that are 
"open fields" are not close to any structure and so not arguably with in the curtilage. And, for most homes, the boundaries 
of the curti lage will be clearly marked ; and the conception defin ing the curtilage-as the area around the home to which 
the activity of home life extends-is a famil iar one easily understood from our daily experience. The occasional difficulties 
that courts might have in applying this, l ike other, legal concepts, do not argue for the unprecedented expansion of the 
Fourth Amendment advocated by the dissent. 

1 3  Certainly the Framers did not intend that the Fourth Amendment should shelter criminal activity wherever persons with 
criminal intent choose to erect barriers and post "No Trespassing" signs. 

1 4  As noted above, the common-law conception of the "curtilage" has served this function . 
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1 5  The law of trespass recogn izes the interest in possession and control of one's property and for that reason permits 
exclusion of unwanted intruders. But it does not fol low that the right to exclude conferred by trespass law embodies a 
privacy interest also protected by the Fourth Amendment. To the contrary, the common law of trespass furthers a range 
of interests that have noth ing to do with privacy and that would not be served by applying the strictures of trespass law to 
publ ic officers. Criminal  laws against trespass are prophylactic: they protect against intruders who poach , steal l ivestock 
and crops, or vandal ize property. And the civil action of trespass serves the important function of authorizing an owner 
to defeat claims of prescription by asserting his own title .  See, e.g . ,  0 .  Holmes, The Common Law 98-1 00, 244-246 
( 1 88 1 ) . In any event, un l icensed use of property by others is presumptively unjustified, as anyone who wishes to use 
the property is free to bargain for the right to do so with the property owner, cf. R .  Posner, Economic Analysis of Law 
1 0-1 3 ,  21 ( 1 973) . For these reasons, the law of trespass confers protections from intrusion by others far broader than 
those required by Fourth Amendment interests. 

1 The Court informs us that the Framers would have understood the term "effects" to encompass only personal property. 
Ante ,  at 1 740, n. 7. Such _a construction of the term would exclude both a publ ic phone booth and spoken words. 

2 On the other hand, an automobile surely does constitute an "effect. "  Under the Court's theory, cars should therefore stand 
on the same constitutional footing as houses. Our cases establish , however, that car owners' d im in ished expectations that 
their cars wil l remain free from prying eyes warrants a corresponding reduction in  the constitutional protection accorded 
cars. E .g . ,  United States v. Martinez-Fuerte, 428 U .S .  543, 561 ,  96 S .Ct. 3074 , 3084, 49 L. Ed .2d 1 1 1 6 ( 1 976). 

3 By their terms,  the provisions of the Bi l l  of Rights curtai l only activities by the Federal Government, see Barron v. Mayor 
and City Council of Baltimore ,  7 Pet. 243 ( 1 833), but the Fourteenth Amendment subjects state and local governments 
to the most important of those restrictions, see, e.g . ,  Cantwel l v. Connecticut, 3 1 0  U . S. 296, 60 S .Ct. 900, 84 L. Ed. 1 2 1 3  
( 1 940) (F irst Amendment) ;  Wolf v .  Colorado, 338 U .S .  25,  69 S .Ct. 1 359, 9 3  L. Ed. 1 782 ( 1 949) (Fourth Amendment). 

4 Cf. McCul loch v. Maryland, 1 7  U .S .  3 1 6 , 407, 4 Wheat. 3 1 6 , 407, 4 L. Ed. 579 ( 1 8 1 9) ("[W]e m ust never forget, that it is 
a constitution we are expounding. "  Such a document cannot be as detai led as a "legal code" ; "[ i ] ts nature . . .  requires, 
that only its great outl ines should be marked , its important objects designated , and the minor ingredients which compose 
those objects be deduced from the nature of the objects themselves") (emphasis in  orig inal) .  

5 Our rejection of the mode of interpretation appropriate for statutes is perhaps clearest in our treatment of the F irst 
Amendment. That Amendment provides, in pertinent part, that "Congress shal l  make no law . . .  abridging the freedom 
of speech , or of the press" but says noth ing, for example, about restrictions on expressive behavior or about access to 
the courts . Yet, to give effect to the purpose of the Amendment, we have appl ied it to regulations of conduct designed 
to convey a message, e .g . , Edwards v. South Carol ina, 372 U .S .  229, 83 S .Ct. 680, 9 L .Ed .2d 697 ( 1 963) , and have 
accorded constitutional protection to the publ ic's "right of access to criminal trials , "  G lobe Newspaper Co. v. Superior 
Court, 457 U .S .  596, 604-605, 1 02 S .Ct. 26 1 3, 261 8, 261 9, 73 L .Ed .2d 248 ( 1 982). 

6 See also Un ited States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S .  1 ,  7, 1 1 ,  97 S .Ct. 2476, 2481 , 2483, 53 L. Ed .2d 538 ( 1 977) (disagreeing with 
the suggestion that the Fourth Amendment "protects only dwell ings and other specifical ly designated locales" ; asserting 
instead that the purpose of the Amendment "is to safeguard individuals from unreasonable government invasions of 
legitimate privacy interests") ;  Rakas v. I l l i nois, 439 U .S .  1 28, 1 43 ,  99 S .Ct. 421 , 430, 58 L. Ed .2d 387 ( 1 978) (holding 
that the determinative question is "whether the person who claims the protection of the Amendment has a legitimate 
expectation of privacy in the invaded place") .  
Our most recent decisions continue to rely on the conception of the purpose and scope of the Fourth Amendment that 
we enunciated in Katz. See, e .g . ,  United States v. Jacobsen , 466 U .S .  1 09 ,  at 1 1 3-1 1 8 , 1 04 S .Ct. 1 652, 1 656-1 659, 
80 L .Ed .2d 85 ( 1 984); M ichigan v. Cl ifford ,  464 U .S .  287 , 292-293, 1 04 S .Ct. 64 1 , 646, 78 L . Ed.2d 477 ( 1 984); I l l inois 
v. Andreas, 463 U .S .  765, 771 , 1 03 S .Ct. 331 9 , 3324, 77 L .Ed .2d 1 003 ( 1 983); Un ited States v. Place,  462 U .S .  696, 
706-707, 1 03 S .Ct. 2637 , 2644, 77 L. Ed.2d 1 1 0 ( 1 983); Texas v. Brown,  460 U .S .  730, 738-740, 1 03 S . Ct. 1 535, 1 54 1-
1 542, 75 L .Ed .2d 502 ( 1 983) (p lural ity opinion) ;  Un ited States v .  Knotts , 460 U . S. 276, 280-281 , 1 03 S .Ct. 1 081 , 1 084-
1 085, 75 L. Ed.2d 55 ( 1 983). 

7 Sensitive to the weakness of its argument that the "persons and things" mentioned in the Fourth Amendment exhaust the 
coverage of the provision, the Court goes on to analyze at length the privacy interests that might leg itimately be asserted 
in "open fields." The inclusion of Parts I l l  and IV in the opinion, coupled with the Court's reaffirmation of Katz and its 
progeny, ante, at 1 7  40, strongly suggest that the plain-language theory sketched in Part II of the Court's opinion wil l have 
l ittle or no effect on our future decisions in this area. 

8 The privacy interests protected by the Fourth Amendment are not l im ited to expectations that physical areas wil l  
remain free from publ ic and government intrusion. See supra, at 1 740. The factors relevant to the assessment of the 
reasonableness of a nonspatia l privacy interest may well be different from the three considerations discussed here. 
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See, e.g . ,  Sm ith v. Maryland, 442 U .S .  735, 747-748, 99 S .Ct. 2577, 2583-2584, 6 1  L. Ed .2d 220 ( 1 979) (Stewart, J . ,  
dissenting); id . ,  at 750-752, 9 9  S .Ct. , a t  2585-2586 (MARSHALL, J . ,  dissenting) .  

9 The Court does not dispute that Oliver and Thornton had subjective expectations of privacy, nor could it in view of the 
lower courts' findings on that issue. See United States v. Ol iver, No. CR80-00005-01 -BG (W. D . Ky. Nov. 14 ,  1 980), App. 
to Pet. for Cert. in No. 82-1 5, pp. 1 9-20; Maine v. Thornton, No. CR82-1 0 (Me.Super.Ct. , Apr. 1 6 , 1 982), App. to Pet. 
for Cert. in No. 82-1 273, pp. 8-4-8-5. 

10 The Court today seeks to evade the force of this principle by contending that the law of property is designed to serve 
various "prophylactic" and "economic" purposes unrelated to the protection of privacy. Ante ,  at 1 7  44, and n. 1 5. Such 
efforts to rational ize the distribution of entitlements under state law are interesting and may have some explanatory 
power, but cannot support the weight the Court seeks to place upon them. The Court surely m ust concede that one of the 
purposes of the law of real property (and specifical ly the law of criminal trespass, see infra, at 1 7  48, and n. 1 2) is to define 
and enforce privacy interests-to empower some people to make whatever use they wish of certain tracts of land without 
fear that other people wil l intrude upon their activities. The views of commentators, old and new, as to other functions 
served by positive law are thus insufficient to support the Court's sweeping assertion that " in the case of open fields, the 
general rights of property . . .  have little or no relevance to the applicabil ity of the Fourth Amendment," ante, at 1 7  44. 

11  See also Rawl ings v .  Kentucky, 448 U . S .  98, 1 1 2, 1 00 S.Ct. 2556 , 2565, 6 5  L. Ed .2d 633 ( 1 980) (BLACKMUN ,  J . ,  
concurring) . 

1 2  Cf. Comment to ALI , Model Penal Code § 22 1 .2, p. 87 ( 1 980) ( "The common thread running through these provisions [a 
sample of state criminal trespass laws] is the element of unwanted intrusion, usual ly coupled with some sort of notice to 
would-be intruders that they may not enter. Most people do not object to strangers tramping through woodland or over 
pasture or open range. On the other hand , intrusions into bui ldings, onto property fenced in a manner manifestly designed 
to exclude intruders, or onto any private property in defiance of actual notice to keep away is generally considered 
objectionable and under some circumstances frightening") . 

1 3  I n  most ci rcumstances, this inquiry requires analysis of the sorts of uses to wh ich a g iven space is susceptible, not the 
manner in wh ich the person asserting an expectation of privacy in the space was in fact employing it. See, e .g . ,  Un ited 
States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S . ,  at 1 3 , 97 S .Ct. , at 2484. We make exceptions to this principle and evaluate uses on a case­
by-case basis in only two contexts: when cal led upon to assess (what formerly was cal led) the "standing" of a particu lar 
person to challenge an intrusion by government officials into an area over which that person lacked primary control ,  see, 
e .g . ,  Rakas v. I l l inois, 439 U .S . ,  at 148-1 49, 99 S .Ct. , at 432-433; Jones v. Un ited States, 362 U .S .  257 , 265-266, 80 
S.Ct. 725, 733-734, 4 L. Ed.2d 697 ( 1 960), and when it is possible to ascertain how a person is using a particular space 
without violating the very privacy interest he is asserting, see, e .g . ,  Katz v. United States, 389 U .S . ,  at 352, 88 S .Ct. , at 
5 1 1 .  ( In  cases of the latter sort, the inquiries described in this Part and in Part 1 1-C, infra , are coextensive) . Neither of 
these exceptions is appl icable here. Thus, the majority's contention that, because the cultivation of marihuana is not an 
activity that society wishes to protect, Ol iver and Thornton had no legitimate privacy interest in their fields, ante, at 1 7  42, 
and n .  1 3 , reflects a m isunderstanding of the level of general ity on which the constitutional analysis must proceed. 

1 4  We accord constitutional protection to businesses conducted in office bui ldings, see supra ,  at 1 7  45; it is not apparent why 
businesses conducted in fields that are not open to the public are less deserving of the benefit of the Fourth Amendment. 

15 This last-mentioned use implicates a kind of privacy interest somewhat different from those to which we are accustomed. 
It involves neither a person's interest in immunity from observation nor a person's interest in shielding from scrutiny the 
residues and manifestations of his personal life. Cf. Weinreb, General ities of the Fourth Amendment, 42 U .Chi . L .Rev. 
47, 52-54 ( 1 974). It derives, rather, from a person's desire to preserve inviolate a portion of his world. The id iosyncracy 
of this interest does not, however, render it less deserving of constitutional protection .  

1 6  See also Rakas v. I l l inois, supra, 439 U .S . ,  at 1 52, 99 S .Ct. , at 435 (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) ;  Un ited States v. Chadwick, 
supra ,  433 U .S . ,  at 1 1 ,  97 S .Ct. , at 2483; Katz v. Un ited States, supra, 389 U .S . ,  at 352, 88 S .Ct. , at 5 1 1 .  

17 However, if the homeowner acts affirmatively to invite someone into his abode, he cannot later insist that his privacy 
interests have been violated . Lewis v. Un ited States, 385 U .S .  206, 87 S .Ct. 424, 1 7  L. Ed .2d 3 1 2  ( 1 966). 

1 8  An argument supportive of the position taken by the Court today might be constructed on the basis of an examination 
of the record in Hester. It appears that, in his approach to the house, one of the agents crossed a pasture fence. See 
Tr. in Hester v. United States, 0.  T. 1 923, No. 243, p. 1 6. However, the Court, in its opin ion, placed no weight upon­
indeed , did not even mention-that circumstance. 
In any event, to the extent that Hester may be read to support a rule any broader than that stated in Air Pol lution Variance 
Board v. Western Alfalfa Corp. , 4 1 6  U .S .  861 , 94 S .Ct. 2 1 14 ,  40 L .Ed .2d 607 ( 1 974). It is undercut by our decision in  
Katz, which repudiated the locational theory of  the coverage of the Fourth Amendment enunciated in Olmstead v .  Un ited 
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States, 277 U .S .  438, 48 S .Ct. 564, 72 L .Ed.  944 ( 1 928), and by the l ine of decisions originating in Katz, see supra at 
1 746, and n. 6. 

1 9  I ndeed , important practical considerations suggest that the police should not be empowered to invade land closed to the 
public. In many parts of the country, landowners feel entitled to use self-help in expel l ing trespassers from their posted 
property. There is thus a serious risk that police officers, making unannounced , warrantless searches of "open fields," wil l  
become involved in violent confrontations with irate landowners, with potentially tragic results . Cf. McDonald v. Un ited 
States, 335 U .S .  451 , 460-461 ,  69 S .Ct. 1 91 ,  93 L .Ed.  1 53 (1 948) (Jackson ,  J . ,  concurring) .  

20 The l ikel ihood that the police wil l err in making such judgments is suggested by the difficulty experienced by courts when 
trying to define the curtilage of dwel l ings. See, e .g . ,  Un ited States v. Berrong, 7 1 2  F .2d 1 370, 1 37 4 ,  and n. 7 (CA 1 1  
1 983), cert. pending, No.  83-988; Un ited States v. Van Dyke, 643 F.2d 992, 993-994 (CA4 1 98 1 ) .  

2 1  Perhaps the most serious danger i n  the decision today i s  that, if the police are perm itted routinely to engage i n  such 
behavior, it wil l gradual ly become less offensive to us all. As Justice Brandeis once observed: "Our Government is the 
potent, the omnipresent teacher. For good or for i l l ,  it teaches the whole people by its example. Crime is contagious. If 
the Government becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for law . . . .  " Olmstead v. Un ited States, 277 U .S . ,  at 485, 48 
S .Ct. , at 575 (dissenting opinion) . See also Solem v. Stumes, 465 U .S .  638, 667, 1 04 S.Ct. 1 338, 1 354, 79 L. Ed.2d 579 
( 1 984) (STEVENS,  J . ,  d issenting) .  

End of Document © 201 9 Thomson Reuters . No  c la im to or ig i na l  U .S .  Government Works . 
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Probab le  Cause 
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"Probable cause" genera l ly refers to the requirement in criminal law that police have adequate reason to a rrest 
.(https ://criminaLfindlaw.com/criminal:P.rocedure/arrest. html) someone, conduct a search, or seize prope!:!Y. 
.(bllps://criminaLfindlaw.com/criminal-rights/the-fourth-amendment-reasonableness-requirement.html). relating to an a l leged crime. 

requirement comes from the Fourth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution (https://criminal .findlaw.com/cr imina!-rights/u-s­
titution-fourth-amendment .html), which states that: 

SEARCH 

As seen in those words, in order for a court to issue a warrant - for someone's arrest, .Qi.!Qa§ei�Wi!J...�� PLQPJIDX - \IJefe- m.u..t-��qbJ�iUS.i. In  situations 
where police are a l lowed to effect an arrest, search o r  seizure without a warrant, they a lso must have probable cause and it's required for prosecutors to charge a 
defendant with a crime as wel l .  

Warrants and Probable Cause 

Typical ly, to obtain a warrant_(https://criminaLfind!aw.com/criminal-rights/the-fourth-amendment-warrant-requirement.html), an  officer will sign an affidavit stating the 
facts as to why there is an  adequate reason to arrest someone, conduct a search or seize property. Judges issue warrants if they agree, based on '1Q1.afily..Qf!he. 
circumstances (https://constitution .findlaw.com/amendment4/annotation02.html)." that adequate cause exists. 

There are many instances where warrants are not requ i red to arrest or  search, such as a rrests for felonies witnessed in  publ ic by an officer. Here is more information 
on when warrants are not requi red_(bllps://criminal fmd!aw com/crimina l-rights/the-fourth-amendment-reasonableness-requi rement.html) .. 

If a warrantless arrest occurs, probable cause must sti l l  be shown after the fact, and wil l be required in order to prosecute a defendant. 

Probable Cause for Arrest 

Probable cause for a rrest exists when facts and circumstances withi n  the pol ice officer's knowledge would lead a reasonable person to bel ieve that the suspect has 
committed, i s  committing, or is about to commit a crime. Probable cause must come from specific facts and circumstances, rather than s imply from the officer's 
hunch or suspicion. 

"Detentions" short of a rrest do not require probable cause. Such temporary detentions require only "reasonable suspicion (bttps://crimina l.fmdlaw.com/criminal­
/the-fourth-amendment-reasonableness-requirement.html)." This includes car stops, pedestrian stops and detention of occupants while officers execute a search 
nt. "Reasonable suspicion" means specific facts which would lead a reasonable person to bel ieve criminal activity was at hand and further investigation was 

Detentions can ripen into arrests, and the point where that happens is not a lways clear. Often, pol ice state that they are a rresting a person, place h im/her in physical 
restra ints, or take other action crossing the l ine into arrest. These police actions may trigger the constitutiona l  requ i rement of p robable cause. 

Someone arrested or charged without legal cause may seek redress through a civi l lawsuit for false arrest or malicious prosecution (bllRJ>JL'.pubHc.findlaw.com/civil­
rights/more-ciyil-rig�Pi.C.s/police-mjsconduct-rigbts.b1mJ). 
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Search warrants must specify the place to be searched, as well as items to be seized. � - � - )9  
There a re many instances where a search warrant is  not requ i red. Common s ituations i n  which police are a l lowed to search without a warrant include: 

• when they have consent from the person i n  charge of the premises (although who that person is can be a tr icky legal question); 
• when conducting certain searches connected to a lawfu l arrest; and 
• i n  emergency situat ions which threaten publ ic safety or the loss of evidence. 

Pol ice also do not need a warrant to search or seize contraband " in plain site' when the officer has a right to be present. 

Probable Cause to Seize Property 

Probable cause to seize property exists when facts and circumstances known to the officer would lead a reasonable person to believe that the item is contraband, is 
stolen, or constitutes evidence of a crime. 

When a search warrant is in  play, police genera l ly must search only for the items described in the warrant. However, any contraband or evidence of other crimes they 
come across may, for the most part, be seized as well. 

Should evidence prove to have resulted from an il legal search, it becomes subject to the 'exclusionary rule" (httP-s:/JcriminaJ.fmdJaw.com/criminaJ-rights/the-fourth­
amendment-and-the-exc!usionary-ruJe.html). and cannot be used against the defendant in court. After hearing arguments from the prosecuting and defense attorneys, 
the judge decides whether evidence should be excluded. 

Conclusion 

Probab le  cause refers to the amount and qua l ity of information requi red to arrest someone, to search or seize private property in many cases, or to charge someone 
with a crime. Legal cause to arrest, search, or seize property exists when facts and circumstances known to the pol ice officer would lead a reasonable person to 
bel i eve: 

• that the person to be arrested has committed a crime; 
• that the place to be searched was the scene of a cr ime; 
• that the place to be searched contains evidence of a crime; and/or 
• that property to be seized is contraband, stolen, or constitutes evidence of a crime. 

Get Legal Help with Your Probable Cause Questions 

Probable cause i s  perhaps one of the most important concepts when it comes to crimina l  law. However, determining whether actions by law enforcement were 
supported by probable cause often depends on the un ique facts of your case. To learn more about probable cause, or to discuss your particular case, you should 
contact an experienced criminal defense Jawy.fil_(httP-s:/Jiawyers.findlaw.com/lawy.filLwactice/criminaHaw?fli=dcta). near you. 

Next Steps 

Contact a qualified c rimina l  lawyer to make sure your rights are protected. 

j (e. g . ,  Chicago, IL or 6061 1 )  Find Lawyers 

Help Me Find a Do-It-Yourself Solution 

• Criminal Law Forms (htt11s://www.usJegaJforms.com/findlaw/criminaUaw/) 
• Motion for Continuance Form {httP-s://www.uslegalforms.com/P.rod1)gges/US-00872.htm%7Cfdlaw). 
• Ex12ungement Handbook - Procedures and Law (htt12s://www.us1ega1forms.com/wod1)gges/US-EXPCR-2.htm%7Cfdlaw). 

Popular Di rectory Searches 
• Drug Charge Attorney (https://lawyers.flndlaw.com/lawyer/practice/criminal-law) 
• Assault Defense (https://lawyers.flndlaw.com/lawyer/practice/criminal-law) 
• White Collar Defense (https://lawyers.fmdlaw.com/lawyer/practice/white-collar-crimes) 

Criminal Rights 
• Miranda Rights (https://criminal.findlaw.com/criminal-rights/miranda-rights.html) 
• Right to Counsel (https://criminal.fmdlaw.com/criminal-rights/right-to-counsel .html) 
• Search and Seizure (https://criminal.findlaw.com/criminal-rights/search-seizure.html) 
• Trial Rights (https://criminal.fmdlaw.com/crimina l-rights/trial-rights.html) 
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und r SUSPICION. [Cases: Arrest �63.4(2) .] 
Probable cause ma:y not be establ i shed s imply by showing  

that the officer who made the  chal l enged arrest or search 

ubjective fy believed he  had g rounds  fo r h i s act i-0n. As 
emphas ized i n Beck v. Ohio [ 379 U . S . 89, 85 S .Ct . 2 23  

1 964)] : ' If subjective good fai�h al one  were the te-st, th e 
protection of the Fou rth Amendment wou l d  evaporate , 
and the people wou ld  be "secure i;n their p·ersons ,  houses ,  
papers 1 and effects" on ly  i n  the d i s cretion of the poUce .' 
The probable cause test, then ,  is afrl objective one ;  for there to be probab le cause ,  th e facts must be such as wou l d  warrant a beUef by a rea-sonabJ ,e ma-n ." Wayne R. LaFave 
& Jero ld H .  I s rae l ,  Criminal Procedure § 3 . 3 ,  at 1 40 (2d ed . 1 992). 

2 . Torts. A reasonable belief in the existence of facts on which_ a �ain1 is base� and in the legal validity of the claim itself. • In th1,s sense, probable cause is u u. assessed as of the time when the claimant brings the cla im (as by filing suit) . 3 .  A reasonable basis to support issuance of an administrative warrant ha ed on either ( I )  specific evidence of an existing vi9la n of a�ministra�ive rules, or (2) ev!dence showini a particular business meets the legislat ive or adm tive standards pern1itting an inspect ion of the b'.'.".u,�Hi&-
l

!N..e,�. s� premises .  [ Cases: Searches and Seizures (;::> 129.]'�·1:t�,�i:rr 

probable-cause hearing. I .  See PRELIMI NARY B 
2.  See shelter hearing under HEARING. 

f .,  r ' • .-v. . 
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H B1290 

Cha i rman  Koppe lman  and members of the House J u d i c i a ry Com m ittee . 

For  the  record I am J ason Z ieg ler, and  today I am  he re as  t he  Ch i ef of Po l ice from the City of 

Mandan ,  a nd  in oppos it ion of House B i l l  1290.  

As a n  exper ienced l aw enfo rcement offi cer  I am opposed to H B 1290 .  Th i s  B i l l  wi l l  p roh i b it l aw 

enforcement offi cers from conduct ing the i r  duty, not on ly to p rotect the p ub l i c, but a l so to 

reasonab ly conduct the i r  sworn duty. 

Th i s  B i l l  wou l d  restr ict the  fo l lowi ng: 

1 .  Welfa re Checks: When officers conduct welfa re checks, t hey do  it as a com m u n ity 

ca reta ker .  They may end  up i nvest igat i ng  a cr ime  but  when they i n it i a l ly go the re they 

a re j u st check i ng  on  the  welfa re of the  person .  Th i s  b i l l  l im its offi cer' s  a b i l i ty as  a 

commun ity ca reta ker if the  on ly way for them to go on  someone's  p rope rty i s  i n  sect ion 

3c .  None  of the exceptions  i n  3c wi l l  g ive a n  offi cer the  ab i l ity to ass i st a s  a commun ity 

ca reta ker .  

2. Investigat ions :  M any cr im i n a l  i nvest igat ions  do  not sta rt based on  p robab l e  cause .  A 

ca l l  fo r service comes  i n  to a d i spatch center, wh ich then  sends  a n  offi cer  to the  

locat ion . D i spatche rs, u nder th i s  B i l l , wi l l  h ave to  not on ly ask  if t he  i n d iv id u a l  ca l l i n g  i s  

the  lawfu l owner  o r  l essee, but h ave some means  to ve rify t h at th i s  i s  t rue and factua l .  

Without ve rif icat ion t h e  officer wi l l  not h ave any  pe rm iss ion t o  i nvest igate any  s ituat i on .  

Th i s  B i l l  wou l d  p roh i b it ne igh borhood canvases, where the  offi cer  wou l d  go  doo r  to  

doo r  to  see  i f  they ca n locate any  witnesses to  a cr ime .  

Law enforcement offi cers exist t o  protect o u r  pub l i c  a nd  a re ca l l ed upon  to  b r i n g  those who  

wish to  h a rm the i n nocent to  face t he  j u st ice system .  Th i s  l aw wi l l  not a l low the  good men  and  

women of  ou r  honorab l e  p rofess ion to reasonab ly do ou r  d uty to p rotect a n d  serve .  

I wou l d  st rongly encou rage th is  comm ittee to g ive a do  not pass on  th is B i l l .  

Ch ief Jason J .  Z ieg ler 



• 
#3 ti� I '). 9o 

,:Z, - �  -d._ o I? 
Testimony of Lynn D. Helms 

Director, North Dakota Industrial Commission Department of Mineral Resources 
February 6, 2019 
House Judiciary 

HB 1290 

f'f I 

The NDIC is very concerned about the potential negative impacts of HB1290 on our oil and gas 
inspection and enforcement program and urges a do not pass from this committee. 

Over 90% of the oil and gas sites and pipelines in North Dakota are located on private land and 
are there by virtue of the dominant rights of the mineral estate and a surface damage 
compensation agreement or an easement. Many salt water disposal and waste treating facility 
operators purchase the surface rights so under this bill they could deny our field inspectors 
access unless we could demonstrate probable cause, an emergency, an accident, a threat to 
public safety, or produce a search warrant. A current example of this is a salt water disposal 
operator who has purchased land adjacent to the new Williston airport and applied for a 
disposal permit. Clearly this facility will need substantial oversight. 

The language in line nine of the bill would supersede the authority that the NDIC has held for 
over 35 years to enter, inspect, plug and reclaim problem sites. For your convenience I have 
provided those citations below: 

38-08-04. JURISDICTION OF COMMISSION. 

1 .  he commission has continuing jurisdiction and authority over all persons and 2ro2erty, public and 
rivate, necessary to enforce effectively the rovisions of this cha ter. The commission has authority, 

and it is its duty, to make such investigations as it deems proper to determine whether waste exists or 
is imminent or whether other facts exist which justify action by the commission. The commission has 
the authority : 

38-08-04.7. RIGHT OF ENTRY. he commission, its agents, employees, or contractors shall have 
the right to enter any land for the purpose of lugging or replugging a well or the restoration of a 
well site as rovided in section 38-08-04.4 .  

43-02-03-14. ACCESS TO SITES AND RECORDS. The comm1ss10n, director, and their 
representatives shall have access to all records wherever located. All owners, operators, drilling 
contractors, drillers, service companies, or other persons engaged in drilling, completing, 
roducing, o eration, or servicing oil and gas wells, pipelines, injection wells, or treating plants 

shall permit the commission, director, and their representatives to come upon any lease, property, 
pi eline right-of-way, well, or drilling rig operated or controlled by them, complying with state 
safety rules and to ins ect the records and o eration, and to have access at all times to any and all 
records. If requested, copies of such records must be filed with the commission. The confidentiality 
of any data submitted which is confidential pursuant to subsection 6 of North Dakota Century Code 
section 3 8-08-04 and section 43 -02-03 -3 1 must be maintained. 
History: Amended effective April 30 ,  1 98 1 ;  January 1 ,  1 983 ; May 1 ,  1 992; May 1 ,  1 994 ; April 1 ,  
20 1 4 ; October 1 ,  20 1 6 . 
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f'ei< � 43-05-01 -04. ACCESS TO RECORDS. The industrial comm1ss10n and the commission's 
authorized agents shall have access to all storage facility records wherever located. All owners, 
operators, drilling contractors, drillers, service companies, or other persons engaged in drill ing, 
completing, operating, or servicing storage facilities shall permit the industrial commission, or its 
authorized agents, to come upon any lease, property, well, or drilling rig operated or controlled by 
them, complying with state safety rules and to ins ect the records and o eration of wells and to 
conduct sam ling and testing. Any information so obtained shall be public information. If 
requested, copies of storage facility records must be filed with the commission. 
History : Effective April 1 ,  20 1 0 . 

I would like to provide a couple of examples: 

In February 2014 an abandoned gas station in Noonan, N D  was reported to be full of garbage bags believed 

to be filled with low level radioactive waste. 

The absentee land owner had an address in western Montana, was delinquent on payment of property taxes, 

and multiple attempts to contact her failed. Her son, who operated the disposal company believed to be 

responsible, had relocated to Mexico. 

Until the bags were retrieved and opened by inspectors wearing proper personal protective equipment the 

contents of the bags was uncertain so no evidence of a violation, emergency situation, accident or threat to 

public safety could be confirmed. The packing slip for the purchase of the filter bags was found in one of the 

bags with the used filter socks. 

The only recourse would have been to secure a large area including the Main Street of the city of Noonan 

and request a search warrant. 

Currently a well site exists in Burke County that was drilled by Monsanto in 1980, transferred to Avalon, then 

JN ,  then Bay Rock, then Earl Schwartz, and finally to Carlson Oil. In 2007 Carlson plugged the well. Surface 

ownership has changed twice and the current owner surface owner is a huge problem. 

The operator has filed the following: 

• 
When we were plugging the well, we were approached by a man that said he wanted the well pad and road 

left into well. Turns out he was Darcy Nicholson's boyfriend. When we finished plugging well, we cleaned out 

treater and all the tanks on location with vac truck and hot oil truck. Once tanks were cleaned out, we had a 

crew there to remove equipment and the crew called to say there was a guy watching them through a scope 

on a rifle. I told them to leave and contacted the sheriff . Turns out that the individual said that he owned the 

equipment since it was their land and we were not going to remove it. Since then, he has filled the tanks with 

grain and parked a bunch of vehicles and other equipment on well site. We have had the Burke County States 

Attorney send them letters through regular mail, also certified, and that they can sign a waiver to take 

ownership of equipment or we need to remove per N D IC.  There was no response, they would not even open 

the mail before returning. The current Burke County sheriff has tried to serve papers concerning this matter, 

with no response. The attached documents will show proof of our efforts. 

The operator is clearly in violation of N D IC rules, but can't get access to the site. Until the equipment is 

inspected by inspectors wearing proper personal protective equipment the threat to public safety can't be 

confirmed, a situation of more than 10 years can't be considered an emergency situation, and it is clearly not 

an accident. 



Testi mony 
House Bi l l  1 290 - Office of the State Eng i neer 

Hou se J u d iciary Com mittee 
Representative Koppel man, Chairman 

February 6,  2 0 1 9  

Cha i rm a n  Koppe l m a n  a nd m e m bers o f  t h e  H o u se J u d ic ia ry Com m ittee,  

my  n a m e  i s  Garl and  E rbe le  and I am the State E n g i neer  for the  State 

Water Com m iss ion . 

H o u se B i l l  1 290 proposes to p l ace l i m itat i ons  on  p rivate l a n d  access by 

" l aw  enforcement  officers" u n l ess spec ifi c  cri te ri a  a re m et .  W h i le n ot 

i ntu it ive, the reg u l atory staff of my offi ce fit th e l eg a l  d efi n i t ion  of a l a w  

enforcement  officer as  North  Da kota Centu ry Cod e ( N . D . C . C) § 1 2 . 1 - 0 1 -

0 4  d efi nes the term to mea n " a  pu b l i c  serva nt  authori zed by l aw o r  b y  a 

g overn ment  agency or b ra nch to enforce the l aw  a n d  to con d u ct or  

engage  i n  i nvestigat ions  or  p rosecut i ons  for v io l at ions  of  l aw . " 

Th e state eng i neer has  the reg u l atory authori ty to enforce the water l a ws 

of the  state . H u nd reds of water perm its a re i n spected each yea r, as  wel l 

a s  n u merous  other  s ite i nvest igat ions, u nder  a uthorizat i on  from 

n u merou s  secti ons  of N . D . C . C, wh i ch i nc l u d e  6 1 - 0 3 - 2 1 . 1 , 6 1 - 04-09 ,  6 1 -

04- 1 1 , and  6 1 -04-23 (Attachm ent  1 ) .  

Th e state e n g i n eer's sta n d a rd operat i ng  p roced u re p rio r  to enteri n g  o n  to 

p rivate l and  i s  to n otify th e l a ndowner  a h ead of the  i nten d ed s i te v i s i t .  

W h i l e  th i s  i s  an  agency ch osen method ,  there a re sce n a rios where 

n ot ifi cati on may be e ither n ot possi b l e  or  n ot p ract ica l .  As such ,  th i s  b i l l  

cou ld  have a p rofo u n d  effect on  t h e  sou nd  m a nagem ent  of state's water 

resou rces by l i m iti ng  the process of entry onto p rivate p roperty . 
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My offi ce con d u cts s i te v is i ts for th e pu rposes of m a ki n g  d eterm i n at ions  

at  the  req uest of  l oca l wate r resou rce d istri cts and  road  a uth or it ies,  

i nvest igat ion of con stru cti on  and d ra i nage  perm i tt i ng  com p l a i n ts, fie l d  

veri fi cat ion of  water a ppropr iat ion perm its, and  a l l eg ed v io l a t ions  of  water 

a p p ropriat ion  l aw .  

With  th e advent  of  hyd ra u l i c  fractu ri n g ,  v io l a t ions  of  water l aw  h ave ri sen 

d ra m at ica l ly .  M a ny of  these v io l a t ions  occu r when a pa rty ta kes water 

w i thout  a perm it .  I n  these cases, i m m ed i ate entry u pon  p rivate p roperty 

to i nvest ig ate a n d  gather i n form at ion  i s  cru c i a l .  Th i s  u su a l ly i nvolves 

ta k i ng  photos, ident ify i ng  eq u i pm e nt owners h i p , etc . 

For these reasons, we oppose the p roposed b l a n ket l i m itat i ons  on entry 

to p rivate p roperty by law enforcement offi cers .  H owever, we we l come a 

conversat ion to d i scu ss th e spec ifi c  con cern s  the  b i l l  i ntend s  to add ress so 

a worka b l e  so l ut ion that  d oes not contra d i ct ex ist i ng  reg u l atory 

respons i b i l i t ies of my office ca n be d eve loped . 

I w i l l  sta nd  for a ny q u estions .  
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Attach ment 1 

Be l ow a re some of the sect ions  i n  North  Da kota Centu ry Cod e ( N . D . C . C . )  

re la t i ng  to the respons i b i l i t ies for access o n  to p rivate p roperty by Offi ce 

of t he  State Eng i n eer  staff:  

N . D . C.C .  § 6 1 -0 1 -23 .  Investigation or removal of obstructions i n  

channel .  

I n  order  to  i nvest igate or rem ove obstruct ions  from the  ch a n ne l  or  bed  of 

a ny watercou rse a n d  thus  p revent  i ce from gorg i ng there i n  a n d  to 

p revent  fl ood i n g  or po l l ut ion of such watercou rse, t he  state water 

com m i ss ion ,  a ny water resou rce d i stri ct, a ny m u n ic ipa l i ty, a ny boa rd of 

cou nty com m i ss ioners, and  a ny federa l  agency authori zed to constru ct 

works for prevent ion of d a m a g e  by fl oods or for a bate m e nt of strea m 

po l l u t ion ,  may enter  u pon l a nds  ly i n g  adjacent  to such  watercou rse to 

i nvest ig ate or remove, or ca u se to be rem oved from the  bed , cha n n e l ,  or 

ba n ks of su ch watercou rse obstru cti ons  wh ich  p revent  or  h i nder  the free 

fl ow of water or  passage of i ce there i n . H owever, such entry u pon  

adj a cent  l a nds  m u st be by  the  m ost access i b l e  route and  the  enteri ng  

a g e n cy i s  respons i b l e  to  t he  l a ndowner  for a ny d a m a g e .  

N . D .C.C .  § 6 1 -02-4 1 .  Su rveys for the d iversion of waters. 

For the pu rpose of reg u l ati ng  the  d ivers ion of the natu ra l  fl ow of waters, 

t he  state eng i neer  may ente r  u pon the mea n s  a n d  p l a ce of u se of a l l  

a pp ropri ators for the purpose of mak i ng  su rveys of respect ive rig hts a n d  

seasona l  needs .  
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N . D.C .C .  § 6 1 -03-2 1 . 1 .  Inspection by state eng i neer. 

Whenever the state eng i neer  is au thori zed or  m a n d ated by law to i nspect 

or  i nvestigate a n  a l l eged v io l at ion of a statute u nd e r  th i s  t i t le ,  the  state 

e n g i neer  sha l l  h ave the authori ty to enter u pon  l a n d  for th e pu rposes of 

cond u cti ng  su ch an i n spect ion  or i nvest ig at ion . Except i n  emerg e n cy 

s i tu at ions  as  determ i ned by the state eng i n eer, th e state e n g i neer  sh a l l  

req u est wri tten perm i ss ion from t h e  l a ndowner  to enter the p roperty . If 

the l a ndowner refu ses to g ive wri tten perm iss io n ,  or  fa i l s  to respond 

w ith i n  five days of the req u est, th e state e n g i n eer  may req u est the 

d i stri ct cou rt of  the d i strict conta i n i n g  the p roperty for an  order  

a u thori z i ng  the  state eng i neer  to  enter  th e p roperty to  i n spect or  

i nvest igate the  a l leged v io lat ion . 

N . D .C.C .  § 6 1 -04-09 . Appl ication to beneficia l  u se - Inspection -

Perfected water perm it. 

After th e perm it 's  ben efi ci a l  u se date ,  or u pon noti ce from the  

perm itho lder  that  water h a s  been a p p l i ed to a benefici a l  u se,  the  state 

e n g i n eer  sha l l  not ify the cond it ion a l  water  perm itho lder  a n d  i n spect t h e  

works . T h e  i nspect ion must determ i n e  th e safety,  effi c iency,  a n d  actu a l  

ca pac ity of the works . If the works a re not p roperly  a nd safe ly  

con stru cted , the state eng i neer m ay req u i re the  n ecessa ry cha ng es to  be  

made with i n  a reasonab le t i m e .  Fa i l u re to  m a ke the  c h a n ges with i n  the  

t i m e  prescri bed by  the  state e n g i neer  sha l l  ca u se postpon e m ent  of  th e 

perm it 's  priori ty date to the date t he  cha n g es a re made  to the  sat isfa ct ion  

of  the  state eng i n eer .  Any i nte rven i ng a p p l i cat ion  su bm itted before the  

d ate the changes a re made wi l l  h ave the benefi t of  the  postponem ent of 

p rio ri ty .  When  the works a re p roper ly a n d  safe ly  constru cted a n d  

i nspected , the  state eng i neer  sha l l  i ssu e the  perfected water perm it,  

sett i ng  forth the actu a l  ca pac i ty of the works a n d  the l i m itat i ons  or 
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cond i t ions  u pon the water perm it  a s  stated i n  the  cond it ion a l  water 

perm it  a uthori zed by sectio n  6 1 - 04-06 . 2 .  A l l cond it ions  attached to a ny 

perm it  i ssu ed before J u ly 1 ,  1 975 ,  a re b i n d i ng u pon th e perm ittee . 

N . D.C .C .  § 6 1 -04- 1 1 .  Inspection of works. 

If the state e n g i n eer, in the cou rse of the state e n g i n eer's  d u ti es, sha l l  

fi nd  that  a ny works used for the  storage, d ivers ion , o r  ca rri age  of water 

a re u nsafe a n d  a menace to l i fe or  p roperty, the state e n g i neer  at  once 

sha l l  not ify the own er or the  owner's  agent ,  specify i ng  the  ch a ng es 

n ecessa ry a nd a l l owi ng a rea so n a b le ti me for putt i ng  the  works i n  safe 

cond i t ion . U pon the req uest of any  pa rty, acco m pq n i ed by the est i mated 

cost of i nspect ion ,  the state e n g i neer  sha l l  ca u se a ny a l l eg ed u nsafe 

works to be i nspected . If they s h a l l  be fou nd u n safe by the  state 

eng i n eer, the money depos i ted by such  pa rty sha l l  be refu nded ,  a nd the  

fees for i nspection sha l l  be  pa id  by  the owner  of  such  works . I f  such fees 

a re n ot pa id  by the owner of such works with i n  th i rty d ays after the 

d ec is ion  of the  state eng i n eer, they s h a l l  be a l i en a g a i n st any property of 

such  owner  and sha l l  be recovered by a su i t  i n st i tuted by the  state 's  

attorn ey of the cou nty at the req u est of the state e n g i n eer .  The state 

e n g i n eer, when  in the state e n g i n eer's  op i n ion  i t  is n ecessa ry ,  may 

i n spect any  works u nder constru ct ion  for the  storage, d ivers ion ,  or  

ca rri age  of  water and  may req u i re a ny ch a ng es necessa ry to  secu re the i r  

safety . The fees for such i n spect ion  s h a l l  be a l i en on a ny p roperty of  t he  

owner  a n d  sh a l l  be  su bject to  co l l ect ion  a s  p rov ided i n  t h i s  cha pter bu t  

ne i t her  th e U n ited States nor  the state o f  North  Da kota nor  a ny agency 

thereof sha l l  be req u i red to pay such  fees .  
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N . D .C .C .  § 6 1 -04-23 .  Forfeitu re of water r ig hts - Inspection of 

works. 

Any a p p ropria t ion  of water m u st be for a benefi c i a l  u se,  and when  the  

a p p ropri ato r fa i l s  to a pp ly  i t  to  the benefi c i a l  u se c i ted i n  the perm it or  

ceases to  u se it  for the  ben efi c i a l  u se c i ted i n  the  perm it for th ree 

su ccess ive yea rs,  u n l ess the fa i l u re or  cessat ion  of u se has  been d u e  to 

the  u nava i l a b i l i ty of water, a j u st i fi a b l e  i n a b i l i ty to com p lete th e works, or  

oth e r  g ood and  suffic ient  ca u se, the  state e n g i neer  may dec l a re the  water 

perm it or  ri g ht forfe ited . For pu rposes of th i s  cha pter, a n  i ncorporated 

m u n i ci p a l i ty or ru ra l water system h a s  good a n d  suffic ient  ca u se excu s i ng  

the  fa i l u re to  u se a water perm it, i f  the  water perm i t  may  rea son a b ly  be  

n ecessa ry for the  futu re water req u i rements of  the  m u n i ci p a l i ty or  the  

ru ra l water system .  Th e state e n g i n eer  sh a l l ,  as  often as  necessa ry,  

exa m i n e  the  cond i t ion of  a l l  works constru cted or  pa rt i a l ly constru cted 

w ith i n  the state a n d  com p i l e  i n format ion con cern i n g  the  cond it i on  of 

every water perm it or rig h t  a n d  a l l  d i tches a nd oth er  works con stru cted or  

pa rt i a l ly constru cted thereu nder. 

N . D .C .C .  § 6 1 - 1 6 . 1 -53 . 1 ( 1 ) . Appea l of board decisions - State 

eng ineer review - Closi ng  of noncomplyi ng dams, d i kes, or other 

devices for water conservation, flood control, reg u lation, and 

watershed i m provement. 

1 .  Th e boa rd sha l l  make the d ec is ion  req u i red by secti on  6 1 - 1 6 . 1 - 5 3  

with i n  a rea sonab l e  t i me ,  n ot exceed i n g  one  h u n d red twenty d ays, 

after rece iv i n g  the com p l a i n t .  The boa rd sh a l l  not ify a l l  pa rt ies of i ts 

dec is ion  by cert ifi ed m a i l .  Any agg ri eved pa rty m ay a p pea l the 

boa rd 's d ec is ion  to  the  state e n g i n eer .  The a ppea l to  the  state 

eng i n eer  m u st be made  with i n  th i rty days from the  date n ot ice of 

the  boa rd 's dec is ion h a s  been rece ived . The a ppea l m u st be made  

by  su b m itt i ng  a wri tten n ot ice to  the  state eng i n eer, wh ich  m u st 

4 



specifi ca l ly set forth the  rea son  why  the boa rd 's d ec is ion  i s  

erroneou s .  T h e  a ppea l i n g  pa rty s h a l l  a l so su b m it cop ies o f  t h e  

written a ppea l not ice t o  t h e  boa rd a nd to a l l  n o n a ppea l i ng pa rt ies .  

U pon rece i pt of  th i s  n ot i ce the  boa rd ,  i f  it  has  o rd e red rem ova l  of  a 

d a m ,  d i ke,  or other  d ev ice,  i s  re l i eved of i ts ob l i gat ion  to p rocu re 

the remova l of the d a m ,  d i ke,  or other  dev i ce .  Th e state e n g i n eer  

sha l l  h a n d l e  the appea l by  con d u ct i ng  a n  i ndependent  i nvest igat ion  

a n d  m a ki ng a n  i ndependent  d eterm i n at ion of  the  matter .  The state 

eng i n eer  may enter p roperty affected by the com p l a i nt to 

i nvest igate the  com p l a i n t .  

N . D.C .C .  § 6 1 - 1 6 . 2-1 1 .  Authority to  enter and i nvestigate lands  or  

waters. 

Th e state e n g i neer or a ny com m u n ity m u st not ify a l l  l a ndowners p rior  to 

m a ki n g  a ny entry u pon any l a n d s  a n d  waters i n  the  state for the  pu rpose 

of m a ki n g  an i nvestigat ion , su rvey, remova l ,  or  repa i r  conte m p l ated by 

t h i s  cha pter. An i nvest igat ion of a nonconform i n g  u se or  ex i sti ng  

con stru ct ion  or  stru ctu re sha l l  be  made  by  the state eng i neer  e i ther  on  

the  state e n g i n eer's  own i n i t iat ive,  on  the  wri tten req uest of  a n  owner  of 

l a n d  a butt i ng  the watercou rse i nvolved , or on the  wri tten req u est of a 

com m u n ity . 

N . D .C.C .  § 6 1 -3 2-08 . Appea l of board decis ions - State engi neer 

review - Clos ing of noncom plyi ng d ra i ns.  

1 .  The boa rd sha l l  make the  dec is ion  req u i red by secti on  6 1 - 3 2 -07 

with i n  a reasonab le  t i me ,  bu t  n ot to exceed one  h u nd red twenty 

days, after rece iv i ng  the com p la i n t .  Th e boa rd s h a l l  not ify a l l  pa rt ies 

of  i ts dec is ion  by cert ifi ed m a i l . Any agg rieved pa rty may a ppea l the 

boa rd 's dec is ion to the state e n g i n eer .  Th e a p pea l to the state 

eng i n eer  m u st be made  with i n  th i rty days from the  date not ice of 
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the  boa rd 's dec is ion h a s  been rece ived . Th e a p pea l m u st be m a d e  

b y  su bm itt i ng  a written n ot ice t o  t h e  state eng i n eer, wh ich  m u st 

specifi ca l ly set forth  the  reason why the  boa rd 's dec is ion  i s  

erroneou s .  The  a ppea l i n g  pa rty sha l l  a l so su b m it cop ies  of  the  

wri tten a ppea l not ice to  the  boa rd a n d  to  a l l  nona ppea l i ng pa rt ies .  

U pon rece i pt of  th i s  n ot ice the boa rd ,  i f  i t  h a s  ordered c losu re of  a 

d ra i n ,  l atera l  d ra i n ,  or  d i tch ,  i s  re l i eved of i ts ob l i gat ion  to p rocu re 

the  cl osi ng  or fi l l i ng  of the  d ra i n ,  l ate ra l  d ra i n ,  or d i tch . Th e state 

eng i n eer  sha l l  h a n d l e  the a p pea l by cond u ct i ng  an i nd ependent  

i nvestigat ion a nd ma k i ng  an  i nd ependent determ i nat ion of  the  

matter. The state eng i n eer  m ay enter  p roperty affected by  the 

com p l a i n t  to  i nvestig ate the  com p l a i nt .  
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BURLEIGH COUNTY 

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT 

Test imony provided for :  House J u d ic i a ry 

By: Dust i n  Olson, L ieutena nt, Bu r le igh County Sheriff's Department 

KELLY LEBEN 
SHERIFF 

My name  is  Dust in  Olson and  I am a L ieutenant with the  Bu r le igh Cou nty Sheriff's Depa rtment .  

I oversee the Enforcement D iv is ion wh ich i n c l udes our Patro l  and I nvestigat ion Sect ions .  I com e  
here today i n  opposit ion to House Bi l l  ( H B) 1290. 

The Bu r le igh County Sheriff's Department i s  opposed to HB 1290 becau se th i s  b i l l  contrad i cts 

severa l dec is ions a l ready made  by the U .S .  Sup reme Cou rt .  HB 1290 wi l l  affect every aspect of 

what law enforcement ca n do. Th is b i l l  puts more restr ict ions on law enforcement t han  the  
cit i zens  of  North Dakota . We wou ld  h ave to obta i n  perm iss ion to  go i n s i de  a conven ience store 

or a restau ra nt i n  order  to buy a beverage o r  get someth i ng  to eat wh i l e  tak ing a b reak .  
Present ly, North Dakota Statute rega rd i ng  Crim i n a l  Trespass " 12 . 1-22-03 (6) " does not app ly to a 

peace offi cer i n  the cou rse of d i scha rgi ng  the  peace officer 's  offici a l  d ut i es .  H B  1290 wi l l  change 

that . 

Dut ies that law enforcement a re i nvo lved with that th i s  b i l l  wi l l  affect wou l d  be  a ne ighbo rhood 
canvas for a m iss i ng ch i ld ,  conduct ing a wa l k  and ta l k  with ne igh bori ng  res i dents when a cr ime  

occu rred and  p robab le  ca use has  not been  esta b l i shed,  o r  to s imp ly  notify res idents of  a pub l i c  
concern that i s  non-emergency i n  nat u re .  Othe r  examp l es of  how th i s  b i l l  wou l d  restr ict l aw 

enforcement wou l d  be conduct ing we lfa re checks or  respond i ng  to  a l a rm ca l l s .  S i nce these a re 

non-crim i n a l  i n  natu re, we wou l d  h ave to obta i n  perm iss ion to enter the  p roperty which i s  not 

a lways possi b l e .  

I n  add it ion ,  Sheriff Depa rtments across the  state a re tasked with de l iver i ng Civi l Papers .  HB  
1290 wi l l  req u i re us  to  obta i n  perm iss ion o r  get a search warrant i n  o rder  to  ente r  the  
i n d iv id ua l ' s  p roperty to  se rve that paper. Th i s  i s  s imp ly not cost effective a nd  wou l d  p ut a 

stra i n  on  other  agencies such as the D istr ict Cou rt and  the  State ' s  Attorney's Office .  

For these reasons, I ask that you oppose HB 1290 and recommend  a do  not pass . 

• .___ ____________ _ 
COURTHOUSE 
514 E. Thayer • PO Box 1416 
Bismarck, ND 58502-1416 
P 701-222-6651 • F 701-221-6899 

www.facebook.com/BurleighCountySheriffsDepartment 

BURLEIGH MORTON 
DETENTION CENTER 

4000 Apple Creek Road • PO Box 2499 
Bismarck, ND 58502-2499 

P 701-255-3113 • F 701-258-5319 
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House Judiciary Committee 
Testimony on HB 1 290 

North Dakota Game and Fish Department 
Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden 

February 6, 20 1 9  

Chairman Koppelman, Vice Chair Karls, and members of the House Judiciary Committee, my 

name is Robert Timian, Chief Game Warden of the North Dakota Game and Fish Department. I 

am testifying today in opposition of HB 1 290 . 

The fourth amendment to the US Constitution prohibits unreasonable search and seize by the 

State . This creates a balance between an individual ' s  rights and the State ' s  need to protect the 

whole. In addition to subsequent Federal and State laws, the United States Supreme Court and 

North Dakota Supreme Court have produced rulings that more clearly define what the State may 

or may not do related to search and seizure . Game Wardens and all other North Dakota licensed 

peace officers receive extensive and continuing training on all laws and court decisions dealing 

with search and seizure and the limits those place on law enforcement. In my experience in 

addition to any internal or States Attorney review of cases to ensure search and seizure was done 

appropriately, most all defenses involve filing a motion to suppress, in which case a Judge will 

look at the facts and if the Judge fines the State did not act appropriately the evidence is 

suppressed and generally results in the case being dismissed. As such I believe that based on the 

above there are currently laws and court rulings that do provide for a reasonable balance. 

The bill language uses the term, notwithstanding, and if passed as is greatly reduce a Game 

Warden' s  ability to enforce current laws and regulations as related to hunting, fishing, and 

trapping. It may be possible that under this bill a private person would still be able to utilize 

section line trails while hunting, but Game Wardens would not be able to unless the Game 
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Warden received permission from every landowner and lessee along the entire trail .  Violators 

could simply leave over limits or illegally killed game laying in the field and with a much greater 

chance the violation would go undetected. There are other possible scenarios that may 

unreasonably favor the violator should this bill be enacted. 

This bill would also impact the ability of Game Wardens provide service to public outside of 

enforcing game and fish law. Two examples of this from my personal experience. Early in my 

career as a Game Warden, I was patrolling in a rural area during hunting season when I noticed 

two vehicles, one a flatbed truck and a pickup, parked by an empty farmhouse with no one in 

sight. While this was curious, I had no probable cause to believe a violation had or was 

occurring. I drove up the driveway to the house to see if anyone was around and if they were 

hunting. It turned out there were two individuals using chainsaws to cut the window frames out 

to the house and load them unto the flatbed and were not the property owners . A second 

example is this past fall while patrolling southeast of Bismarck, I came across some cows and 

calves out of the fenced pasture wandering along the rode in the ditch. There was an active 

farmstead about a mile away. I drove into the farmyard by way of about a quarter mile of private 

driveway. I met with husband and wife living there and informed them of the cattle, which were 

theirs. In both incidents under HB 1290 I would have been prohibited from entering the 

farmyards without prior permission. 

We believe there are appropriate and balanced protections under current law, while allowing 

Game Wardens to provide the services excepted. 

The Department respectfully requests a DO NOT PASS on HB 1 290 . 

p. � 



Department of H u ma n  Services 

House J ud icia ry Committee 

Representative Kim Koppelman, Cha i rman 
Februa ry 6, 20 1 9  
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Cha i rman Koppelman and members of the Jud iciary Comm ittee , I am J im F leming , 
D i rector of the Ch i ld Support D ivis ion of the Department of H uman Services 
(Department) . The Department defers to this Comm ittee on the merits of House B i l l  
1 290 ,  bu t  requests an amendment that would continue cu rrent p rocesses to  ho ld 
parents responsib le for support ing their  ch i ld ren . 

The fi rst part of the Department's requested amendment wou ld authorize service of 
a summons and compla int on a parent who is located on private land . Ch i ld support 
ob l igations i n  North Dakota are estab l ished by court order in  a lega l  action ,  which is 
commenced with a summons and compla int served on the defendant persona l ly .  
The Department frequently attempts to serve the parent by certified ma i l ,  but it often 
must resort to hand-del ivery by the county sheriff's office . Even if the parent works 
in a pub l ic  p lace ,  parents often prefer not to be served at thei r  p lace of work. 

The second part of the Department's requested amendment wou ld authorize a cou rt­
issued warrant or order to be served on a parent who owes past-d ue ch i ld support .  
Fa i l u re to pay a cou rt-ordered ch i ld support ob l igat ion can cause the cou rt to issue 
an  order requ i ring the parent to come to a heari ng and exp la in  the fa i l u re to pay. If 
the parent does not show up for the hearing , a warrant can be issued by the court to 
take the parent i nto custody. The ab i l ity of law enforcement officia ls to serve these 
orders and warrants is an important part of enforci ng the court 's ch i ld support o rder .  

We encou rage the Committee's favorable consideration of these amendments . Th is 
concludes my testimony, and I am happy to answer any questions you may have .  

1 



Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of H uman Services 

02/06/20 1 9  

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO HOUSE B ILL  NO .  1 290 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , remove "or" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 6 , replace the underscored period with an underscored sem icolon 

Page 1 ,  after l i ne 1 6 , insert :  

"d . Lega l process in  a civi l action needs to be served; or  

e .  An order to show cause, warrant of  attachment, or  warrant for 
fa i l u re to appear has been issued by a cou rt" 

Ren umber accord ing ly 

2 
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Watford City 

www.cityofwatfordcjty.£Qlll 
2/6/201 9 
3: 1 0  PM - Prairie Room 

City of Watford City 
2 13  2

nd 

St. NE I P.O. Box 494 
Watford City, ND 58854 
Ph. 701 -444-2533 
Fax 701 -444-3004 

Urge a DO NOT Pass Recommendation for HB 1 290 

Chairman Koppelman and members of House Jud iciary, 

The city of Watford City wou ld l ike to take this opportunity to ask the committee to 
recommend a DO NOT Pass recommendation for HB 1 290. For the last 30 plus years ,  local 
law enforcement agencies have been in itiating commun ity policing.  This concept of working 
with the community and property owners has served to br ing commun ities together and foster 
publ ic safety, together. This b i l l  would effectively end that i n itiative. 

Through commun ity pol icing and promotion of community wel lbeing,  law enforcement has 
bu i lt bridges, not fences. As proposed in 1 290, ONLY if "probable cause exists that a 
violation of law has occurred , is occurring, or is about to occur; a search warrant has been 
issued; or responding to an emergency situation ,  accident, or other threat to publ ic safety" 
occurs, we wi l l  be banned from activities that foster commun ity safety and wel lbeing .  

It is i ronic that if th is b i l l  were to pass, protesters in  North Dakota wou ld have greater access 
and freedom to 'place' than law enforcement officers that are rigorously vetted ,  trained , who 
are carrying out a sworn oath to protect and serve. 

Chairman Koppelman and House Jud iciary committee members,  thank you so much for your 
consideration of Watford City's concerns with HB 1 290 and for the opportunity to urge a DO 
NOT Pass recommendation on HB 1 290. 

Shawn Doble, Ch ief of Police 
Watford City 
sdoble@nd.gqy 
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HB 1290 Open Fields Doctrine 

Hello Chairman and Members of the Senate Judiciary Committee. 

For the record, I am Luke Simons of District 36. 

I bring before you HB 1290 which is a common sense bill regarding the farm and ranch private 
property rights as it pertains to lawless search and seizures. 

Would it surprise you that law officers do not need a warrant to go into a building 60 feet from 
your home if you live in the country? 

Barns, shops, outbuildings, chicken coops, garages, garden sheds, grain bins, quonsets, 
milking parlors, horse stables, calving barns, machine sheds . . .  none of these currently require 
a search warrant or permission to search if they are located 60 feet from your curtilage or 60 
feet from your home. 

I was recently talking to a veterinarian who went with a deputy to go look at a horse that was 
reported to be in bad shape. The deputy knocked on the owner's door and no one was home. 
The deputy then walked to the barn and opened the door, and the vet said, "This is where I 
stop. You don't have a search warrant. " 

The deputy looked at the vet and said, "We don't need one. We are far beyond 60 feet from 
their home. " 

It turned out that the horse was not in bad shape, but the veterinarian refused to look at the 
horse until there was a search warrant. Unfortunately , with open fields doctrine, you would not 
currently need a search warrant to enter any out-building. 

I, personally , had a situation where I was feeding haybet barley , which is equivalent to alfalfa 
hay and is some of the best you can buy. One person driving by thought I was feeding my cows 
straw and called the local authorities. The sheriff and I went out and looked at the cows, and he 
didn't see any issue. After about the fourth or fifth time with the same person calling the sheriff, I 
told the sheriff to get a search warrant. He informed me he didn't need my permission or a 
search warrant to go on my property because of open fields doctrine. As it turned out, he didn't 
do anything because he realized my girls were fat and happy. I thought he was full of hot air at 
the time. I was wrong. 

The fourth amendment protects one's house, person, papers, and effects against unreasonable 
searches and seizures. Effects covers motorized vehicle etc. 

\ 



A motorized veh icle is covered and a tractor is covered under effects of the fourth amendment. 

However, the shop that it is in ,  if it is in  the country ,  is not protected from unreasonable 

searches and seizures? 

If one's veh icle is covered under effects, I bel ieve outbu i ld ings should be protected in  statute , as 

wel l .  

The same bui ld ing i n  town with the same equipment in i t  is protected under the fourth 

amendment. Why is this not true for people that l ive in  the country? 

What open fields doctrine was supposed to be would be common sense . If there is a missing 

person and the deputy is driving down the road and sees a vehicle that went through a fence in 

the m iddle of a field and was overturned , he doesn 't need a search warrant or permission .  The 

officer has probable cause. He/she could clearly see it. Of course the officer would investigate it . 

It would be l itera l ly the same as someone driving without a working ta i l  l ight, and getting pul led 

over, and the officer noticed there was someone tied in  the backseat and beaten up severely .  

He/she would not need perm ission to search the vehicle, which is covered under the fourth 

amendment. He/she would have probable cause to search and investigate the situation . 

If we pass this b i l l  i nto statute , it would g ive a l l  out-bui ld ings on farms and ranches the same 

rights as people in  town with the ir  shops, yard sheds, detached garages , etc. 

I would happi ly stand for any questions. 

Thank you for your t ime Chairman and members of the Senate Judiciary committee. 

Respectfu l ly 

Luke R Simons 
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. . l 'd l as to show a 
a "t ion. person ttpply- u1g for lega a1 1 . · 

reusonublt: t nsis for the proposed f.egal action. 

. , , • 1 A asonable 'lL - pr >b ,hi us . ( 1 6c} I .  Crrnunal aw. r� · d · s  
ground to  suspect tha t  a person has com1·�11tte 0�fi 

· r t h  con1n1itt i ng 1.l �ri n1 or tha t  a place contains speci � 
items connec t  J w ith a crhue. • Under the Fourt 
A111t'1H.hn n t ,  pr bablc cause - which amounts to 

· ·,n r,S n1orl' than a bu re suspicion but less than evidence that 
�a l .  · ,vould justifv a conviction - must be shown befo,re an 

nrrest ,\ya rrai1t or search warrant may be issued. - Also 
.ov �r- tenned rc:ason,1ble cause; sufficien1t cause; reaso�cz�,le 

grounds; reasonable excuse Cf. reasonable susp·tcion 

I 

under SUSPICION. [Cases: Arrest C::'>63.4(2) .] 
''Probable cause may not be establ i shed s.imply by showing 

!'l fa that the officer who made the challenged arrest or  s.earch 

·c , ,lt subJectivel·y beHeved he  hacl g rounds for h·i.s acti.on . As 

·. and emphasized i n  Beck v. Ohio [379 U . S .  89 ,  85 S .Ct. 223  

(1 964)]: ' If subjective good fai,th al-o·ne  were the te-st, the 

r -
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I 
protectio.n of the Fourth Amer1.dment wo,uld evaraorate, 
and the peaple woukl be "s·ecure in  thei:r persons ,  h-ouses ,  
papers ,  and effects" only i n  the d'i-s-cret ion of the poUce.' 
The probable cause test, then, is ari o bJective one; fo!r there 
to be ,robable cause ,  the facts m,ust be such as wou ld 
warra·nt a beHef by a reasonable man ." Wayne R. LaFave 
& Jerold H .  I srae l ,  Criminal Procedure § 3 . 3 ,  at 1 40 (2d 
ed . 1 992). 

2 .  Torts. A reasonable belief in the existence of facts 
on which a claim is bas,ed and i n  the legal val · dity 
of the claim itself. • In this sense, probable cau � 
usu. assessed as of the time when the cla imant bi __ "'_., 
the claim (as by filing suit) . 3. A reasonable ba 
support issuance of an administrat ive war,.t.Mljlii'�u .. a;-
on either ( 1 )  specific evidence of an exist 
of administrative rules, or (2) evidence sh

r
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particular business 1neets the legislative or·��:iiiei 
tive standards permitting an inspection of e 
premises . [ Cases: Searches and Seizures �1 

probable-cause hearing. 1 .  See PRBLIMIN:A 

f a 2 .  See shelter hearing under HEARING. 
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MURTHA LAW OFFICE 
Thomas F. Murtha IV 
Attorney licensed in MN and ND 
murtha lawoffice@gmail.com 
Cell (218) 838-2829 

Brian T. Murtha 
Attorney licensed in CA 
Of Counsel 

February 6, 20 1 9  

135 Sims, Suite 217 
P.O. Box 1111 

Dickinson, North Dakota 58602 
Telephone (701) 227-0146 

Fax (701) 225-0319 

North Dakota House Judiciary Committee 
RE: HB 1290 

Dear Members of the Committee, 

Thomas F. Murtha 
(1934-2017) 

Donald M. Murtha 
(1905-1993) 

Thomas F. Murtha 

(1904-1965) 
Thomas F. Murtha 

(1878-1927) 

My name is Thomas F. Murtha IV, I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State 
of North Dakota. Representative Luke Simons (HB 1 290 sponsor) requested that I testify 
regarding HB 1290. Unfortunately I am scheduled for a hearing in Stark County District Court 
at the same time as the hearing on HB 1 290 and the District Court (Judge Ehlis) on that case 
denied my request to continue that matter in order to testify on HB 1290 . 

HB 1290 addresses a concern that all of us in North Dakota have that the Fourth 
Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article 1 Section 8 of North Dakota' s 
Constitution do not protect what has come to be known as "open fields." 1 The language of the 
Fourth Amendment and Article 1 ,  Section 8 i s  identical : 

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers and effects, 
against unreasonable searches and seizures shall not be violated; and no warrant 
shall i ssue but upon probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation, particularly 
describing the place to be searched and the persons and things to be seized. 

Our courts have determined that "land" is not included in the term "effects" and therefore the 
Fourth Amendment and Article 1 ,  Section 8 do not apply to a person's  lands outside of a 
person 's  home. Law enforcement therefore can trespass on private property without suspicion or 
any reason to collect evidence against the landowner. HB 1290 will remedy that concern. 

HB 1290 would discourage law enforcement or other government from randomly 
trespassing on private lands by prohibiting the admission in court of any evidence gathered 
during that trespass. I believe this i s  a reasonable expectation of privacy that our society here in 
North Dakota currently supports. HB 1 290 would require permission, probable cause, or a 
warrant before the government to enter and search private lands. 

1 Hester v. United States, 265 U. S .  57 ( 1 924) first introduced the doctrine that the Fourth 
Amendment protection does not extend to open fields. 

l D 
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Thank you for your consideration of my writing, feel free to contact me with any 
questions you may have. 

February 6, 20 1 9  

Sincerely, 

TluJ.m.tw 1=-. Mur� IV 
Thomas F. Murtha IV 
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Ol iver v. U .S . , 466 U.S.  1 70 ( 1 984) 
1 04 S.Ct. 1 735, 80 L. Ed.2d 2 1 4  

KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment 
Not Followed on State Law Grounds People v. Scott, N.Y., April 2, 1 992 

Synopsis 

104 S.Ct. 1735 Supreme Court of the United States 
Ray E. OLIVER, Petitioner 

v. UNITED STATES. MAINE, Petitioner 
v. Richard THORNTON. 

Nos. 82-15, 82-1273. 
I Argued Nov. 9, 1983. 
I Decided April 17, 1984. 

In a federal prosecution of a defendant charged with manufacturing marijuana, the United States appealed from an order of the United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky, Edward H. Johnstone, J., sustaining a motion to exclude evidence obtained in a warrantless search of land of the defendant. After a panel 657 F.2d 85 ,  affirmed the suppression order, the Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, sitting en bane, reversed the District Court, 686 F.2d 356. Certiorari was granted. In a state drug prosecution, the Supreme Judicial Court of Maine, 453 A.2d 489, affirmed a Superior Court order granting the defendant's motion to suppress observations made and items seized at the defendant's property by the police. Certiorari was granted. The Supreme Court, Justice Powell, held that the "open fields" doctrine was applicable to determine whether the discovery or seizure of marijuana in question was valid. 
Decision of Sixth Circuit affirmed; decision of Supreme Judicial Court of Maine reversed and remanded. 
Justice White, filed opinion concurring in part and concurring in the judgment. 
Justice Marshall, filed a dissenting opinion, in which Justice Brennan and Justice Stevens joined. 
Opinion on remand, 485 A.2d 952. 

I Z-

West Headnotes ( 1 3) 
[1 ) 

[2) 

[3) 

[4] 

[5] 

Searches and Seizures � Persons, Places and Things Protected Special protection accorded by Fourth Amendment to people in their "persons, houses, papers, and effects" does not extend to open fields. U .S .C.A. Const .Amend. 4. 
1 20 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Open fields are not "effects" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. U . S .C.A. Const .Amend. 4. 
90 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Government's intrusio� upon open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" proscribed by the Fourth Amendment .  U.S.C.A Const .Amend. 4. 
64 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Expectation of Privacy Touchstone of Fourth Amendment is question of whether a person has a constitutionally protected reasonable expectation of privacy. U.S .C.A Const .Amend. 4. 
141 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures 
v= Expectation of Privacy Fourth Amendment does not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, but only those expectations that society 

WESTLA.W @ 20 1 9  Thomson Reuters .  No c la im to or ig i na l  U .S .  Government  Works . 



Oliver v. U .S . ,  466 U .S .  1 70 ( 1 984) 
1 04 S.Ct. 1 735, 80 L.Ed.2d 2 1 4  

[6) 

171 

[8) 

(9) 

is prepared to recognize as "reasonable. "  U.S .C.A Const.Amend. 4 .  
2 1 3  Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures <,;;.. Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Open fields do not provide the setting for those intimate activities that the Fourth Amendment is intended to shelter from government interference or surveillance. U.S .C.A Const.Amend. 4. 
1 30 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings Because open fields are accessible to the public and police in ways that a home, office or commercial structure would not be, and because fences or "No Trespassing" signs do not effectively bar public from viewing open fields, asserted expectation of privacy in open fields is not one that society recognizes as reasonable. U.S .C.A Const.Amend. 4. 
1 80 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields; Yards and Outbuildings The common law, by implying that only the land immediately surrounding and associated with the home warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that attach to the home, conversely implies that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields. U.S.C.A Const.Amend. 4 .  
937 Cases that cite this headnote 
Searches and Seizures � Curtilage or Open Fields;Yards and Outbuildings Analysis of circumstances of search of open field on case-by-case basis to determine 

whether reasonable expectations of privacy were violated would not provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment; ad hoc approach not only would make it difficult for policeman to discern the scope of his authority but would also create the danger that constitutional rights would be arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. U.S.C.A Const.Amend . 4. 
402 Cases that cite this headnote 

( 10) Controlled Substances V" Open Fields;Curtilage or Yard; Growing Plants Steps taken to protect privacy such as planting marijuana on secluded land and erecting fences and "No Trespassing" signs around property did not establish that expectations of privacy in an open field were "legitimate" in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment. U.S .C.A. Const .Amend. 4. 
292 Cases that cite this headnote 

( 1 1 )  Searches and Seizures c.= Curtilage or Open Fields;Yards and Outbuildings Test of legitimacy of expectation of privacy in open field is not whether individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity, but whether government's intrusion infringes upon personal and societal values protected by Fourth Amendment. U.S .C.A Const.Amend. 4. 
477 Cases that cite this headnote 

(12) Searches and Seizures 

I � 

·- What Constitutes Search or Seizure Fact that government's intrusion upon an open field is a trespass at common law does not make it a "search" in the constitutional sense. U.S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4. 
22 Cases that cite this headnote 
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Ol iver v. U .S . , 466 U.S.  1 70 (1 984) 
1 04 S .Ct. 1 735, 80 L.Ed .2d 2 14 

(13) Searches and Seizures � Effect of Illegal Conduct;Trespass In case of open fields, general rights of property protected by common law of trespass have little or no relevance to applicability of Fourth Amendment. U.S.C.A Const.Amend. 4. 
39 Cases that cite this headnote 

Syllabus al 

In No. 82-1 5, acting on reports that marihuana was being raised on petitioner's farm, narcotics agents of the Kentucky State Police went to the farm to investigate. Arriving at the farm, they drove past petitioner's house to a locked gate with a "No Trespassing" sign, but with a footpath around one side. The agents then walked around the gate and along the road and found a field ofmarihuana over a mile from petitioner's house. Petitioner was arrested and indicted for "manufactur[ing]" a "controlled substance" in violation of a federal statute. After a pretrial hearing, the District Court suppressed evidence of the discovery of the marihuana field, applying Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 88 S .Ct .  507, 1 9  L.Ed.2d 576 ( I  967), and holding that petitioner had a reasonable expectation that the field would remain private and that it was not an "open" field that invited casual intrusion. The Court of Appeals reversed, holding that Katz had not impaired the vitality of the open fields doctrine of Hester v. United States, 265 U.S .  57, 44 S .Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924), which permits police officers to enter and search a field without a warrant .  In No. 82-1 273, after receiving a tip that marihuana was being grown in the woods behind respondent's residence, police officers entered the woods by a path between the residence and a neighboring house, and followed a path through the woods until they reached two marihuana patches fenced with chicken wire and having "No Trespassing" signs. Later, the officers, upon determining that the patches were on respondent's property, obtained a search warrant and seized the marihuana. Respondent was then arrested and indicted. The Maine trial court granted respondent's motion to suppress the fruits of the second search, holding that the initial warrantless search was unreasonable, that the "No Trespassing" signs and secluded location of the 
1 4  

marihuana patches evinced a reasonable expectation of privacy, and that therefore the open fields doctrine did not apply. The Maine Supreme Judicial Court affirmed.  
Held: The open fields doctrine should be applied in both cases to determine whether the discovery or seizure of the marihuana in question was valid. Pp. l 74�1 744. 
*171 (a) That doctrine was founded upon the explicit language of the Fourth Amendment, whose special protection accorded to "persons, houses, papers, and effects" does "not exten[d] to the open fields. "  Hester v. United States, supra, at 59, 44 S .Ct . ,  at 446. Open fields are not "effects" within the meaning of the Amendment, the term "effects" being less inclusive than "property" and not encompassing open fields. The government's intrusion upon open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" proscribed by the Amendment. P. 1 740. 

(b) Since Katz v. United States, supra, the touchstone of Fourth Amendment analysis has been whether a person has a "constitutionally protected reasonable expectation of privacy. "  Id. , 389 U.S . ,  at 360, 88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6. The Amendment does not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, but only those "expectation[s] that society is prepared to recognize as 'reasonable . '  " Id . ,  at 36 1 ,  88  S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6. Because open fields are accessible to the public and the police in ways that a home, office, or commercial structure would not be, and because fences or "No Trespassing" signs do not effectively bar the public from viewing open fields, the asserted expectation of privacy in open fields is not one that society recognizes as reasonable. Moreover, the common law, by implying that only the land immediately surrounding and associated with the home warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that attach **1738 to the home, conversely implies that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields. Pp. 1 74 1-1 742. 
(c) Analysis of the circumstances of the search of an open field on a case-by-case basis to determine whether reasonable expectations of privacy were violated would not provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment. Such an ad hoc approach not only would make it difficult for the policeman to discern the scope of his authority but also would create the 
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danger that constitutional rights would b e  arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. P. 1 742. 
(d) Steps taken to protect privacy, such as planting the marihuana on secluded land and erecting fences and "No Trespassing" signs around the property, do not establish that expectations of privacy in an open field are legitimate in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment. The test of legitimacy is not whether the individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity, but whether the government's intrusion infringes upon the personal and societal values protected by the Amendment. The fact that the government's intrusion upon an open field is a trespass at common law does not make it a "search" in the constitutional sense. In the case of open fields, the general rights of property protected by the common law of trespass have little or no relevance to the applicability of the Fourth Amendment. Pp. 1 743-1 744. 
686 F.2d 356 (CA6 1 982), affirmed; 453 A.2d 489 (Me. 1 982), reversed and remanded. 
Attorneys and Law Firms 

*172 Frank E. Haddad, Jr. , argued the cause for petitioner in No. 82- 1 5 . With him on the briefs was Robert 

L. Wilson. Wayne S. Moss, Assistant Attorney General of Maine, argued the cause for petitioner in No. 82- 1 273. With him on the briefs were James E. Tierney, Attorney General, James W Brannigan, Jr. , Deputy Attorney General, Robert S. Frank, Assistant Attorney General, and David W Crook. 

Alan I. Horowitz argued the cause for the United States in No. 82- 1 5 . With him on the brief were Solicitor General 

Lee, Assistant A ttorney General Jensen, and Deputy 

Solicitor General Frey. Donna L. Zeegers, by appointment of the Court, 46 1 U .S .  924, argued the cause and filed a brief for respondent in No. 82- 1 273 .t 
t Briefs of amici curiae urging reversal in No. 82- 1 5  were filed for the American Civil Liberties Union of Northern California et al . by Eric Neisser, Alan Schlosser, Amitai 

Schwartz, Joaquin G. A vila, Morris J. Baller, and John E. 

Huerta; and for the California Farm Bureau Federation et al. by Thomas F. Olson. 

Briefs of amici curiae urging affirmance in No. 82- 1 5  were filed for Americans for Effective Law Enforcement, Inc. ,  et al. by Fred E. Jnbau, Wayne W Schmidt, and James 

P. Manak; for the State of California by John K. Van De 

Kamp, Attorney General, Harley D. Mayfield, Assistant Attorney General, and Jay M. Bloom, Deputy Attorney General. 
A Brief of amici curiae was filed in No. 82- 1 273 for the State of Alabama et al. by Charles A.  Graddick, Attorney General of Alabama, and Joseph G. L. Marston III, Assistant Attorney General, and by the Attorneys General for their respective jurisdictions as follows: Norman C. 
Gorsuch of Alaska, Aviata F. Fa'alevao of American Samoa, Robert K. Corbin of Arizona, Duane Woodard of Colorado, Charles M. Oberly III of Delaware, Robert T. 
Stephen of Kansas, Steven L. Beshear of Kentucky, Paul 

L. Douglas of Nebraska, David L. Wilkinson of Utah, John 

J. Easton, Jr. , of Vermont, Chauncey H. Browning of West Virginia, Bronson C. La Follette of Wisconsin, and Archie 

G. McClintock of Wyoming. 
Opinion 

*173 Justice POWELL delivered the opinion of the Court. 
The "open fields" doctrine, first enunciated by this Court in Hester v. United States, 265 U.S .  57, 44 S .Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924), permits police officers to enter and search a field without a warrant. We granted certiorari in these cases to clarify confusion that has arisen as to the continued vitality of the doctrine. 

I 

No. 82-1 5 .  Acting on reports that marihuana was being raised on the farm of petitioner Oliver, two narcotics agents of the Kentucky State Police went to the farm to investigate. 1 Arriving at the farm, they drove past petitioner's house to a locked gate with a "No Trespassing" sign. A footpath led around one side of the gate. The agents walked around the gate and along the road for several hundred yards, passing a barn and a parked camper. At that point, someone standing in front of the camper shouted: "No hunting is allowed, come back up here ." The officers shouted back that they were Kentucky State Police officers, but found no one when they returned to the camper. The officers resumed their investigation of the farm and found a field of marihuana over a mile from petitioner's home. 
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Petitioner was arrested and indicted for "manufactur[ing]" a "controlled substance. "  2 1  U.S .C.  § 84 1 (a) (  I ) .  After a pretrial hearing, the District Court suppressed evidence of the discovery of the marihuana field. Applying Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 357,  88  S .Ct. 507,  5 1 4, 19 L.Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967), the court found that petitioner had a reasonable expectation that the field would remain private because petitioner "had done all that could be expected of him to assert his privacy in the **1739 area of farm that was searched. "  He had posted "No Trespassing" signs at regular intervals and had locked the gate at the entrance to the center of the farm. App. to Pet. for Cert. in No. 82-15, *174 pp. 23-24. Further, the court noted that the field itself is highly secluded: it is bounded on all sides by woods, fences, and embankments and cannot be seen from any point of public access. The court concluded that this was not an "open" field that invited casual intrusion. 
The Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, sitting en bane, reversed the District Court. United States v. Oliver, 686 F.2d 356 (CA6 1 982). 2 The court concluded that Katz, upon which the District Court relied, had not impaired the vitality of the open fields doctrine of Hester. Rather, the open fields doctrine was entirely compatible with Katz' emphasis on privacy. The court reasoned that the "human relations that create the need for privacy do not ordinarily take place" in open fields, and that the property owner's common-law right to exclude trespassers is insufficiently linked to privacy to warrant the Fourth Amendment's protection. 686 F.2d, at 360. 3 We granted certiorari . 459 U.S. 1 1 68, 1 03 S.Ct. 8 1 2, 74 L.Ed.2d 1 0 1 2  ( 1 983) . 
No. 82-1 273. After receiving an anonymous tip that marihuana was being grown in the woods behind respondent Thornton's residence, two police officers entered the woods by a path between this residence and a neighboring house. They followed a footpath through the woods until they reached two marihuana patches fenced with chicken wire. Later, the officers determined that the patches were on the property of respondent, obtained a warrant to search the property, and seized the marihuana. On the basis of this evidence, respondent was arrested and indicted. 
*175 The trial court granted respondent's motion to suppress the fruits of the second search. The warrant for this search was premised on information that the police had obtained during their previous warrantless 

\ v  
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search, that the court found to be unreasonable. 4 "No Trespassing" signs and the secluded location of the marihuana patches evinced a reasonable expectation of privacy. Therefore, the court held, the open fields doctrine did not apply. 
The Maine Supreme Judicial Court affirmed. State v. Thornton, 453 A .2d 489 (Me. I 982) .  It agreed with the trial court that the correct question was whether the search "is a violation of privacy on which the individual justifiably relied," id . ,  at 493, and that the search violated respondent's privacy. The court also agreed that the open fields doctrine did not justify the search. That doctrine applies, according to the court, only when officers are lawfully present on property and observe "open and patent" activity. Id. ,  at 495 .  In this case, the officers had trespassed upon defendant's property, and the respondent had made every effort to conceal his activity. We granted certiorari . 460 U .S .  1 068 ,  1 03 S .Ct. 1 520, 75 L.Ed.2d 944 5 ( 1 983 ) .  

**1740 *176 I I  
(1 ) The rule announced in  Hester v .  United States was founded upon the explicit language of the Fourth Amendment. That Amendment indicates with some precision the places and things encompassed by its protections. As Justice Holmes explained for the Court in his characteristically laconic style: "[T]he special protection accorded by the Fourth Amendment to the people in their 'persons, houses, papers, and effects,' is not extended to the open fields. The distinction between the latter and the house is as old as the common law."  Hester v. United States, 265 U .S . ,  at 59, 44 S .Ct . ,  at 446. 6 
[2) (31 Nor are the open fields "effects" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. In this respect, it is suggestive that James Madison's proposed draft of what became the Fourth *177 Amendment preserves "[t]he rights of the people to be secured in their persons, their houses, their papers, and their other property, from all unreasonable searches and seizures . . . .  " See N. Lasson, The History and Development of the Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution 1 00, n .  77 ( 1 937). Although Congress' revisions of Madison's proposal broadened the scope of the Amendment in some respects, id. ,  at 1 00-1 03 ,  the term "effects" is less inclusive than "property" and cannot be said to encompass open 
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fields. 7 We conclude, a s  did the Court i n  deciding Hester v. United States, that the government's intrusion upon the open fields is not one of those "unreasonable searches" proscribed by the text of the Fourth Amendment. 

III 

In this light, the rule of Hester v .  United States, supra, that we reaffirm today, may be understood as providing that an individual may not legitimately demand privacy for activities conducted out of doors in fields, except in the area immediately surrounding the home. See also Air Pollution Variance Bd. v. Western Alfalfa Corp. ,  4 16 U .S .  86 1 ,  865, 94 S .Ct .  2 1 1 4, 2 1 1 5 , 40 L.Ed.2d 607 ( 1 974). This rule is true to the conception of the right (4) [51 This interpretation of the Fourth Amendment's to privacy embodied in the Fourth Amendment. The language is consistent with the understanding of the right to privacy expressed in our Fourth Amendment jurisprudence. Since Katz v. United States, 389 U.S .  347, 88 S .Ct. 507, 19 L .Ed.2d 576 ( 1 967), the touchstone of Amendment analysis has been the question whether a person has a "constitutionally protected **1741 reasonable expectation of privacy." Id . ,  at 360, 88 S .Ct. , at 5 1 6  (Harlan, J . ,  concurring) . The Amendment does not protect the merely subjective expectation of privacy, but only those "expectation[s] that society is prepared to recognize as 'reasonable . ' " Id . ,  at 36 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6. See also Smith v. Maryland, 442 U.S .  735 ,  740-74 1 ,  99 S.Ct .  2577, 2580-258 1 .  61 L.Ed.2d 220 ( 1 979). 

A 

No single factor determines whether an individual legitimately may claim under the Fourth Amendment that a place should be free of government intrusion not authorized by warrant. See *178 Rakas v. Illinois, 439 U.S. 1 28 ,  1 52-1 53 ,  99 S .Ct .  42 1 ,  435-436, 58  L .Ed.2d 387 ( 1 978) (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . In assessing the degree to which a search infringes upon individual privacy, the Court has given weight to such factors as the intention of the Framers of the Fourth Amendment, e .g . ,  United States v. Chadwick, 433 U.S .  1 ,  7-8, 97 S .Ct. 2476, 248 1-2482, 53 L.Ed.2d 538  ( 1 977), the uses to which the individual has put a location, e .g . ,  Jones v. United States, 362 U .S .  257, 265, 80 S .Ct. 725, 733 ,  4 L.Ed.2d 697 ( 1 960), and our societal understanding that certain areas deserve the most scrupulous protection from government invasion, e .g . ,  Payton v. New York, 445 U.S .  573, 1 00 S .Ct. 1 3 7 1 ,  63 L.Ed.2d 639 ( 1 980). These factors are equally relevant to determining whether the government's intrusion upon open fields without a warrant or probable cause violates reasonable expectations of privacy and is therefore a search proscribed by the Amendment. 

1 7  ·-----·-·--·---------

Amendment reflects the recognition of the Framers that certain enclaves should be free from arbitrary government interference. For example, the Court since the enactment of the Fourth Amendment has stressed "the overriding respect for the sanctity of the home that has been embedded in our traditions since the origins of the Republic ." Payton v. New York, supra, 445 U.S . ,  at 60 1 ,  100 S.Ct. ,  at 1 387 .  8 See also Si lverman v. United States, 365 U.S .  505, 5 1 1 ,  8 1  S .Ct. 679, 682, 5 L.Ed.2d 734 ( 1 96 1 ) ;  United States v. United States District Court, 407 U.S .  297, 3 1 3 , 92 S .Ct. 2 1 25, 2 1 34, 32 L .Ed.2d 752 ( 1 972) . 
*179 (6) 171 In contrast, open fields do not provide the setting for those intimate activities that the Amendment is intended to shelter from government interference or surveillance. There is no societal interest in protecting the privacy of those activities, such as the cultivation of crops, that occur in open fields. Moreover, as a practical matter these lands usually are accessible to the public and the police in ways that a home, an office, or commercial structure would not be. It is not generally true that fences or "No Trespassing" signs effectively bar the public from viewing open fields in rural areas. And both petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton concede that the public and police lawfully may survey lands from the air. 9 For these reasons, the asserted **1742 expectation of privacy in open fields is not an expectation that "society recognizes as reasonable. "  I O  
*180 (81 The historical underpinnings of the open fields doctrine also demonstrate that the doctrine is consistent with respect for "reasonable expectations of privacy." As Justice Holmes, writing for the Court, observed in Hester, 265 U.S . ,  at 59, 44 S .Ct. , a t  446, the common law distinguished "open fields" from the "curtilage," the land immediately surrounding and associated with the home. See 4 W. Blackstone, Commentaries *225. The distinction implies that only the curtilage, not the neighboring open fields, warrants the Fourth Amendment protections that attach to the home. At common law, the curtilage is the 
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area to  which extends the intimate activity associated with the "sanctity of a man's home and the privacies of life," Boyd v. United States, 1 1 6 U.S .  6 1 6, 630, 6 S.Ct. 524, 532, 29 L.Ed. 746 ( 1 886), and therefore has been considered part of home itself for Fourth Amendment purposes . Thus, courts have extended Fourth Amendment protection to the curtilage; and they have defined the curtilage, as did the common law, by reference to the factors that determine whether an individual reasonably may expect that an area immediately adjacent to the home will remain private . See, e .g . ,  United States v. Van Dyke, 643 F.2d 992, 993-994 (CA4 1 9 8 1 ) ; United States v . Williams, 58 1 F.2d 45 1 , 453 (CA5 1 978); Care v. United States, 23 1 F.2d 22, 25 (CA I O), cert . denied, 3 5 1  U.S .  932,  76 S .Ct .  788, 1 00 L.Ed. 1 46 1  ( 1 956) . Conversely, the common law implies, as we reaffirm today, that no expectation of privacy legitimately attaches to open fields. 1 1  
*181 We conclude, from the text of the Fourth Amendment and from the historical and contemporary understanding of its purposes, that an individual has no legitimate expectation that open fields will remain free from warrantless intrusion by government officers. 

B 

(9) Petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton contend, to the contrary, that the circumstances of a search sometimes may indicate that reasonable expectations of privacy were violated; and that courts therefore should analyze these circumstances on a case-by-case basis. The language of the Fourth Amendment itself answers their contention. 
**1743 Nor would a case-by-case approach provide a workable accommodation between the needs of law enforcement and the interests protected by the Fourth Amendment. Under this approach, police officers would have to guess before every search whether landowners had erected fences sufficiently high, posted a sufficient number of warning signs, or located contraband in an area sufficiently secluded to establish a right of privacy. The lawfulness of a search would turn on " '[a] highly sophisticated set of rules, qualified by all sorts of ifs, ands, and buts and requiring the drawing of subtle nuances and hairline distinctions . . .  .' " New York v. Belton , 453 U.S .  

\ �  

454, 458, 1 0 1  S .Ct. 2860, 2863, 69 L.Ed.2d 768 ( 1 98 1 )  (quoting LaFave, "Case-By-Case Adjudication" versus "Standardized Procedures" : The Robinson Dilemma, 1 974 S .Ct.Rev. 1 27 ,  1 42) . This Court repeatedly has acknowledged the difficulties created for courts, police, and citizens by an ad hoc, case-by-case definition of Fourth Amendment standards to be applied in differing factual circumstances. See Belton, supra, at 458-460, 1 0 1  S .Ct . ,  at 2863-2864; Robbins v .  California, 453 U.S .  420, 430, 1 0 1  S .Ct .  284 1 ,  2847, 69 L.Ed.2d 744 ( 1 98 1 )  (POWELL, J . ,  concurring i n  judgment); Dunaway v. New York, 442 U.S .  200, 2 1 3-2 1 4, 99 S .Ct. 2248, 2257-2258, 60 L.Ed.2d 824 ( 1 979); United States v. Robinson, 4 1 4  U.S .  2 1 8 , 235, 9 4  S .Ct. 467, 476, 38  L.Ed.2d 427 ( 1 973). The ad hoc approach not only makes it difficult for the policeman to discern the scope of his authority, Belton, supra, 453 U.S . ,  at 460, 1 0 1  S .Ct . ,  at 2864; it also creates a danger that constitutional *182 rights will be arbitrarily and inequitably enforced. Cf. Smith v. Goguen, 4 1 5  U.S .  566 ,  572-573,  94 S .Ct. 1 242, 1 246-1 247, 39 L.Ed.2d 605 ( 1 974) . 1 2  
IV 

[101 [11 )  In any event, while the factors that petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton urge the courts to consider may be relevant to Fourth Amendment analysis in some contexts, these factors cannot be decisive on the question whether the search of an open field is subject to the Amendment. Initially, we reject the suggestion that steps taken to protect privacy establish that expectations of privacy in an open field are legitimate. It is true, of course, that petitioner Oliver and respondent Thornton, in order to conceal their criminal activities, planted the marihuana upon secluded land and erected fences and "No Trespassing" signs around the property. And it may be that because of such precautions, few members of the public stumbled upon the marihuana crops seized by the police. Neither of these suppositions demonstrates, however, that the expectation of privacy was legitimate in the sense required by the Fourth Amendment .  The test of legitimacy is not whether the individual chooses to conceal assertedly "private" activity. 1 3  Rather, the correct inquiry is whether the government's intrusion infringes upon the personal *183 and societal values protected by the Fourth Amendment. As we have explained, we find no basis for concluding that a police inspection of open fields accomplishes such an infringement. 
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(12] Nor i s  the government's intrusion upon an open field a "search" in the constitutional sense because that intrusion is a **1744 trespass at common law. The existence of a property right is but one element in determining whether expectations of privacy are legitimate. " 'The premise that property interests control the right of the Government to search and seize has been discredited. '  " Katz, 389 U.S . ,  at 353 ,  88 S .Ct. , at 5 1 2  (quoting Warden v. Hayden, 387 U.S .  294, 304, 87 S .Ct. 1 642, 1 648, 1 8  L.Ed.2d 782 ( 1 967)). "[E] ven a property interest in premises may not be sufficient to establish a legitimate expectation of privacy with respect to particular items located on the premises or activity conducted thereon." Rakas v. Illinois, 439 U.S . ,  at 1 44, n. 1 2, 99 S .Ct . ,  at 43 1 ,  n. 1 2 . 
( 13] The common law may guide consideration of what areas are protected by the Fourth Amendment by defining areas whose invasion by others is wrongful. Id . ,  at 1 53 ,  99 S .Ct . ,  at 435 (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . 1 4  The law of trespass, however, forbids intrusions upon land that the Fourth Amendment would not proscribe. For trespass law extends to instances where the exercise of the right to exclude vindicates no legitimate privacy interest .  15 Thus, in the case of open fields, the general *184 rights of property protected by the common law of trespass have little or no relevance to the applicability of the Fourth Amendment. 

V 

We conclude that the open fields doctrine, as enunciated in Hester, is consistent with the plain language of the Fourth Amendment and its historical purposes. Moreover, Justice Holmes' interpretation of the Amendment in Hester accords with the "reasonable expectation of privacy" analysis developed in subsequent decisions of this Court. We therefore affirm Oliver v. United States; Maine v. Thornton is reversed and remanded for further proceedings not inconsistent with this opinion. 
It is so ordered. 
Justice WHITE, concurring in part and concurring in the judgment. 

1 9  

I concur in the judgment and join Parts I and II of the Court's opinion. These Parts dispose of the issue before us; there is no need to go further and deal with the expectation of privacy matter. However reasonable a landowner's expectations of privacy may be, those expectations cannot convert a field into a "house" or an "effect."  
Justice MARSHALL, with whom Justice BRENNAN and Justice STEVENS join, dissenting. 
In each of these consolidated cases, police officers, ignoring clearly visible "No Trespassing" signs, entered upon private land in search of evidence of a crime. At a spot that could *185 not be seen from any vantage point accessible to the public, the police discovered contraband, which was subsequently used to incriminate the owner of the land. In neither case did the police have a warrant authorizing their activities. 
The Court holds that police conduct of this sort does not constitute an "unreasonable search" within the meaning of the **1745 Fourth Amendment. The Court reaches that startling conclusion by two independent analytical routes. First, the Court argues that, because the Fourth Amendment by its terms renders people secure in their "persons, houses, papers, and effects," it is inapplicable to trespasses upon land not lying within the curtilage of a dwelling. Ante, at 1 740. Second, the Court contends that "an individual may not legitimately demand privacy for activities conducted out of doors in fields, except in the area immediately surrounding the home." Ante, at 1 74 1 .  Because I cannot agree with either o f  these propositions, I dissent. 

I 
The first ground on which the Court rests its decision is that the Fourth Amendment "indicates with some precision the places and things encompassed by its protections," and that real property is not included in the list of protected spaces and possessions. Ante, at 1 740. This line of argument has several flaws. Most obviously, it is inconsistent with the results of many of our previous decisions, none of which the Court purports to overrule. For example, neither a public telephone booth nor a conversation conducted therein can fairly be described as a person, house, paper, or effect; 1 yet we have held that the Fourth Amendment forbids the police without 
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a warrant t o  eavesdrop o n  such a conversation. Katz v .  
United States, 3 8 9  U.S .  347, 88 S .Ct. 507, 1 9  L.Ed.2d 
576 (I 967). Nor can it plausibly *186 be argued that an 
office or commercial establishment is covered by the plain 
language of the Amendment; yet we have held that such 
premises are entitled to constitutional protection if they 
are marked in a fashion that alerts the public to the fact 
that they are private. Marshall v. Barlow's Inc. , 436 U .S .  
307, 3 1 1 ,  98 S.Ct . 1 8 1 6, 1 8 19 .  56 L.Ed.2d 305  ( 1 978); G .M.  
Leasing Corp. v .  United States, 429 U.S .  338 ,  358-359, 97  
S .Ct. 6 1 9, 63 1-632, 50  L .Ed.2d 530  ( 1 977). 2 

Indeed, the Court's reading of the plain language of 
the Fourth Amendment is incapable of explaining even 
its own holding in this case. The Court rules that the 
curtilage, a zone of real property surrounding a dwelling, 
is entitled to constitutional protection. Ante, at 1 742. 
We are not told, however, whether the curtilage is a 
"house" or an "effect"-or why, if the curtilage can be 
incorporated into the list of things and spaces shielded by 
the Amendment, a field cannot. 

The Court's inability to reconcile its parsimonious reading 
of the phrase "persons, houses, papers, and effects" 
with our prior decisions or even its own holding is a 
symptom of a more fundamental infirmity in the Court's 
reasoning. The Fourth Amendment, like the other central 
provisions of the Bill of Rights that loom large in our 
modern jurisprudence, was designed, not to prescribe 
with "precision" permissible and impermissible activities, 
but to identify a fundamental human liberty that should 
be shielded forever from government intrusion. 3 We do 
not construe constitutional provisions *187 of this sort 
the way we do statutes, whose drafters can be expected 
to **1746 indicate with some comprehensiveness and 
exactitude the conduct they wish to forbid or control 
and to change those prescriptions when they become 
obsolete. 4 Rather, we strive, when interpreting these 
seminal constitutional provisions, to effectuate their 
purposes-to lend them meanings that ensure that the 
liberties the Framers sought to protect are not undermined 
by the changing activities of government officials. 5 

The liberty shielded by the Fourth Amendment, as we 
have often acknowledged, is freedom "from unreasonable 
government intrusions into . . .  legitimate expectations of 
privacy."  United States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S .  1 ,  7, 97 
S .Ct. 2476, 248 1 ,  53 L.Ed.2d 538 ( 1 977). That freedom 
would be incompletely protected if only government 

conduct that impinged upon a person, house, paper, or 
effect were subject to constitutional scrutiny. Accordingly, 
we have repudiated the proposition that the Fourth 
Amendment applies only to a limited set of locales or 
kinds of property. In Katz v. United States, we expressly 
rejected a proffered locational theory of the coverage of 
the Amendment, holding that it "protects people, not 
places. "  389 U .S . ,  at 35 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 1 .  Since that 
time we have consistently adhered *188 to the view that 
the applicability of the provision depends solely upon 
"whether the person invoking its protection can claim a 
'justifiable, '  a 'reasonable,' or a 'legitimate expectation of 
privacy' that has been invaded by government action ."  
Smith v .  Maryland, 442 U.S .  735 ,  740, 99 S .Ct. 2577, 

2580, 61 L .Ed.2d 220 ( 1 979). 6 The Court's contention 
that, because a field is not a house or effect, it is not 
covered by the Fourth Amendment is inconsistent with 
this line of cases and with the understanding of the nature 
of constitutional adjudication from which it derives. 7 

**1747 II 

The second ground for the Court's decision is its 
contention that any interest a landowner might have 
in the privacy of his woods and fields is not one that 
"society is prepared to recognize as 'reasonable. '  " Ante, 
at 1 740 (quoting Katz v. United States, 389 U .S . ,  at 
36 1 ,  88 S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 6  (Harlan, J., concurring)). *189 
The mode of analysis that underlies this assertion is 
certainly more consistent with our prior decisions than 
that discussed above. But the Court's conclusion cannot 
withstand scrutiny. 

As the Court acknowledges, we have traditionally looked 
to a variety of factors in determining whether an 
expectation of privacy asserted in a physical space is 
"reasonable. "  Ante, at 1 740. Though those factors do not 
lend themselves to precise taxonomy, they may be roughly 
grouped into three categories. First, we consider whether 
the expectation at issue is rooted in entitlements defined 
by positive law. Second, we consider the nature of the 
uses to which spaces of the sort in question can be put. 
Third, we consider whether the person claiming a privacy 
interest manifested that interest to the public in a way 
that most people would understand and respect. 8 When 
the expectations of privacy asserted by petitioner Oliver 
and respondent Thornton 9 are examined through these 
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lenses, it becomes clear that those expectations are entitled to constitutional protection. 

A 

We have frequently acknowledged that privacy interests are not coterminous with property rights. E.g. , United States v . Salvucci, 448 U.S .  83 ,  9 1 ,  1 00 S .Ct. 2547, 2552, 65 L.Ed.2d 6 1 9  ( 1 980). However, because "property rights reflect society's explicit recognition *190 of a person's authority to act as he wishes in certain areas, [they] should be considered in determining whether an individual's expectations of privacy are reasonable . "  Rakas v. Illinois, 439 U.S .  1 28 ,  1 53 ,  99 S .Ct .  435 ( 1 978) (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . J O  Indeed, the Court has suggested that, insofar as "[o]ne of the main rights attaching to property is the right to exclude others, . . .  one who owns or lawfully possesses or controls property will in all likelihood have a legitimate expectation of privacy by virtue of this right to exclude."  Id . ,  at 1 44, n. 1 2, 99 S .Ct . ,  at 43 1 n. 1 2  (opinion of the Court) . 1 1  
**1748 It is undisputed that Oliver and Thornton each owned the land into which the police intruded. That fact alone provides considerable support for their assertion of legitimate privacy interests in their woods and fields. But even more telling is the nature of the sanctions that Oliver and Thornton could invoke, under local law, for violation of their property rights. In Kentucky, a knowing entry upon fenced or otherwise enclosed land, or upon unenclosed land conspicuously posted with signs excluding the public, constitutes criminal trespass. Ky.Rev.Stat. §§ 5 1 1 .070( 1 ) , 5 1 1 .080, 5 1 1 .090(4) ( 1 975) . The law in Maine is similar. An intrusion into "any place from *191 which [the intruder] may lawfully be excluded and which is posted in a manner prescribed by law or in a manner reasonably likely to come to the attention of intruders or which is fenced or otherwise enclosed" is a crime. Me.Rev.Stat .Ann. ,  Tit. 1 7A, § 402( 1 )(C) ( 1 964) . 1 2  

Thus, positive law not only recognizes the legitimacy of Oliver's and Thornton's insistence that strangers keep off their land, but subjects those who refuse to respect their wishes to the most severe of penalties-criminal liability. Under these circumstances, it is hard to credit the Court's assertion that Oliver's and Thornton's expectations of privacy were not of a sort that society is prepared to recognize as reasonable. 

Z.\ 

B 

The uses to which a place is put are highly relevant to the assessment of a privacy interest asserted therein. Rakas v. Illinois, supra, at 1 53 ,  99 S .Ct . ,  at 435 (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) . If, in light of our shared sensibilities, those activities are of a kind in which people should be able to engage without fear of intrusion by private persons or government officials, we extend the protection of the Fourth Amendment to the space in question, even in the absence of any entitlement derived from positive law. E.g . ,  Katz v. United States, 389 U.S. ,  at 3 52-353, 88  S .Ct . ,  at 5 1 1-5 1 2 . 1 3  
*192 Privately owned woods and fields that are not exposed to public view regularly are employed in a variety of ways that society acknowledges deserve privacy. Many landowners like to take solitary walks on their property, confident that they will not be confronted in their rambles by strangers or policemen. Others conduct agricultural businesses on their property. 14 **1749 Some landowners use their secluded spaces to meet lovers, others to gather together with fellow worshippers, still others to engage in sustained creative endeavor. Private land is sometimes used as a refuge for wildlife, where flora and fauna are protected from human intervention of any kind. 1 5  Our respect for the freedom of landowners to use *193 their posted "open fields" in ways such as these partially explains the seriousness with which the positive law regards deliberate invasions of such spaces, see supra, at 1 748, and substantially reinforces the landowners' contention that their expectations of privacy are "reasonable."  

C 
Whether a person "took normal precautions to maintain his privacy" in a given space affects whether his interest is one protected by the Fourth Amendment. Rawlings v. Kentucky, 448 U .S .  98 ,  1 05 ,  1 00 S.Ct. 2556, 256 1 ,  65 L.Ed.2d 633 ( 1 980) .  16 The reason why such precautions are relevant is that we do not insist that a person who has a right to exclude others exercise that right. A claim to privacy is therefore strengthened by the fact that the claimant somehow manifested to other people his desire that they keep their distance. 
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Certain spaces are s o  presumptively private that signals 
of this sort are unnecessary; a homeowner need not 
post a "Do Not Enter" sign on his door in order to 

d · , d 1 7  p · · eny entrance to unmv1te guests. nvacy mterests 
in other spaces are more ambiguous, and the taking of 
precautions is consequently more important; placing a 
lock on one's footlocker strengthens one's claim that an 
examination of its contents is impermissible. See United 
States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S . ,  at 1 1 , 97 S .Ct. ,  at 2483 .  Still 
other spaces are, by positive law and social convention, 
presumed accessible to members of the public unless the 
owner manifests his intention to exclude them. 

Undeveloped land falls into the last-mentioned category. 
If a person has not marked the boundaries of his fields or 
woods in a way that informs passersby that they are not 
welcome, *194 he cannot object if members of the public 
enter onto the property. There is no reason why he should 
have any greater rights as against government officials . 
Accordingly, we have held that an official may, without 
a warrant, enter private land from which the public is 
not excluded and make observations from that vantage 
point. Air Pollution Variance Board v. Western Alfalfa 
Corp . ,  4 1 6  U .S .  86 1 .  865, 94 S .Ct. 2 1 14, 2 1 1 5 , 40 L.Ed .2d 
607 ( 1 974) . Fairly read, the case on which the majority 
so heavily relies, Hester v. United States, 265 U.S .  57, 44 
S .Ct. 445 ,  68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924), affirms little more than 
the foregoing unremarkable proposition. From aught that 
appears in the opinion in that case, the defendants, fleeing 
from revenue agents who had observed them committing a 
crime, abandoned incriminating evidence on private land 
from which the public had not been excluded. Under 
such circumstances, it is not surprising that the Court 
was unpersuaded by the defendants' argument that the 
entry onto their fields by the agents violated the Fourth 

Amendment. 1 8  

**1750 A very different case i s  presented when the owner 
of undeveloped land has taken precautions to exclude 
the public. As indicated above, a deliberate entry by a 
private citizen onto private property marked with "No 
Trespassing" signs will expose him to criminal liability. I 
see no reason why a government official should not be 
obliged to respect such *195 unequivocal and universally 
understood manifestations of a landowner's desire for 

privacy. 1 9  

In sum, examination of  the three principal criteria we 
have traditionally used for assessing the reasonableness 

of a person's expectation that a given space would 
remain private indicates that interests of the sort asserted 
by Oliver and Thornton are entitled to constitutional 
protection. An owner's right to insist that others stay off 
his posted land is firmly grounded in positive law. Many 
of the uses to which such land may be put deserve privacy. 
And, by marking the boundaries of the land with warnings 
that the public should not intrude, the owner has dispelled 
any ambiguity as to his desires . 

The police in these cases proffered no justification for their 
invasions of Oliver's and Thornton's privacy interests; 
in neither case was the entry legitimated by a warrant 
or by one of the established exceptions to the warrant 
requirement. I conclude, therefore, that the searches of 
their land violated the Fourth Amendment, and the 
evidence obtained in the course of those searches should 
have been suppressed. 

III 

A clear, easily administrable rule emerges from the 
analysis set forth above: Private land marked in a fashion 
sufficient to render entry thereon a criminal trespass under 
the Jaw of the State in which the land lies is protected 
by the Fourth Amendment's proscription of unreasonable 
searches and seizures. One of the advantages of the 
foregoing rule is that *196 it draws upon a doctrine 
already familiar to both citizens and government officials . 
In each jurisdiction, a substantial body of statutory and 
case law defines the precautions a landowner must take 
in order to avail himself of the sanctions of the criminal 
law. The police know that body of Jaw, because they are 
entrusted with responsibility for enforcing it against the 
public; it therefore would not be difficult for the police to 
abide by it themselves. 

By contrast, the doctrine announced by the Court today 
is incapable of determinate application. Police officers, 
making warrantless entries upon private land, will be 
obliged in the future to make on-the-spot judgments as 
to how far the curtilage extends, and to stay outside that 
zone. 20 In addition, we may expect to see a spate of 
litigation over the question of how much improvement 
is necessary to remove private **1751 land from the 
category of "unoccupied or undeveloped area" to which 
the "open fields exception" is now deemed applicable. See 
ante, at 1 742, n. 1 1 .  

1,..1.--
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The Court's holding not only ill serves the need t o  make constitutional doctrine "workable for application by rank-and-file, trained police officers," Illinois v. Andreas, 463 U.S .  765, 772, 1 03 S.Ct .  33 1 9, 3325 ,  77 L.Ed.2d 1 003 ( 1 983) ,  it withdraws the shield of the Fourth Amendment from privacy interests that clearly deserve protection. By exempting from the coverage of the Amendment large areas of private land, the Court opens the way to investigative activities we would all find repugnant. Cf. , e .g . ,  United States v .  Lace, 669 F.2d 46, 54 (CA2 1 982) (Newman, J . , concurring in result) ("[W] hen police officers execute military maneuvers on residential property for three weeks of round-the-clock surveillance, can that be called 'reasonable'?" *197 ) ; State v. Brady, 406 So.2d 1 093,  1 094-1 095 (Fla. 1 98 1 ) ("In order to position surveillance groups around the ranch's airfield, deputies were forced to cross a dike, ram through one gate and cut the chain lock on another, cut or cross posted fences, and proceed several hundred yards to their hiding 

Footnotes 

* \ 
\--\to I Ztl 0 

"3 • 2-lP • I °I 

places"), cert. granted, 456 U .S .  988 ,  1 02 S.Ct. 2266, 73 L.Ed.2d 1 282, supplemental memoranda ordered and oral argument postponed, 459 U.S .  986, 103 S .Ct. 338 ,  74 2 1  L .Ed.2d 38 1 ( 1 982) .  
The Fourth Amendment, properly construed, embodies and gives effect to our collective sense of the degree to which men and women, in civilized society, are entitled "to be let alone" by their governments. Olmstead v. United States, 277 U.S .  438, 478, 48 S .Ct .  564, 572, 72 L.Ed. 944 ( 1 928) (Brandeis, J . ,  dissenting) ; cf. Smith v. Maryland, 442 U.S . ,  at 750, 99 S .Ct . ,  at 2585 (MARSHALL, J . ,  dissenting) . The Court's opinion bespeaks and will help to promote an impoverished vision of that fundamental right. 
I dissent. 
All Citations 

466 U.S .  1 70, I 04 S .Ct .  1 735 ,  80 L.Ed.2d 2 1 4  

a 1 The syl labus constitutes no part of the opinion of the Court but has been prepared by the Reporter of Decisions for the 
convenience of the reader. See Un ited States v. Detroit Lumber Co. , 200 U .S .  32 1 , 337, 26 S .Ct. 282, 287 , 50 L .Ed.  499. 

1 It is conce9ed that the pol ice did not have a warrant authorizing the search , that there was no probable cause for the 
search, and that no exception to the warrant requirement is applicable. 

2 A panel of the Sixth Circuit had affirmed the suppression order. United States v. Ol iver, 657 F .2d 85 (CA6 1 981 ) .  
3 The four d issenting j udges contended that the open fields doctrine did not apply where, as in this case, "reasonable 

effort[s] [have] been made to exclude the public." 686 F.2d, at 372. To that extent, the dissent considered that Katz v. 
United States, impl icitly had overru led previous holdings of this Court. The d issent then concluded that petitioner had 
established a "reasonable expectation of privacy" under the Katz standard. Judge Lively also wrote separately to argue 
that the open fields doctrine applied only to lands that could be viewed by the publ ic. 

4 The court also d iscredited other information, suppl ied by a confidential informant, upon which the pol ice had based their 
warrant application. 

5 Respondent contends that the decision below rests upon adequate and independent state-law grounds. We do not 
read that decision , however, as excluding the evidence because the search violated the State Constitution. The Maine 
Supreme Judicial Court referred only to the Fourth Amendment of the Federal Constitution and purported to apply the Katz 
test; the prior state cases that the court cited also construed the Federal Constitution. In any case, the Maine Supreme 
Judicial Court did not articulate an independent state ground with the clarity required by Michigan v. Long, 463 U .S .  1 032, 
1 03 S.Ct. 3469, 77 L. Ed.2d 1 20 1  ( 1 983). 
Contrary to respondent's assertion ,  we do not review here the state courts' finding as a matter of "fact" that the area 
searched was not an "open field . "  Rather, the question before us is the appropriate legal standard for determining whether 
search of that area without a warrant was lawful under the Federal Constitution. 
The conflict between the two cases that we review here is i l lustrative of the confusion the open fields doctrine has 
generated among the state and federal courts. Compare, e .g . ,  State v. Byers, 359 So.2d 84 (La . 1 978) (refusing to apply 
open fields doctrine); State v. Brady, 406 So.2d 1 093 (Fla. 1 981 ) (same), with Un ited States v. Lace, 669 F.2d 46, 50-51 
(CA2 1 982); Un ited States v. Freie, 545 F .2d 1 2 1 7  (CA9 1 976); Un ited States v. Brown, 473 F.2d 952, 954 (CA5 1 973); 
Atwell v. Un ited States, 4 1 4  F.2d 1 36, 1 38 (CA5 1 969) . 

6 The d issent offers no basis for its suggestion that Hester rests upon some narrow, unarticulated principle rather than 
upon the reasoning enunciated by the Court's opinion in that case. Nor have subsequent cases discredited Hester's 
reasoning. This Court frequently has relied on the expl icit language of the Fourth Amendment as delineating the scope 
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o f  its affinnative protections. See, e.g . ,  Robbins v .  Cal ifornia ,  453 U . S .  420, 426, 1 0 1  S . Ct. 284 1 , 2845, 6 9  L. Ed .2d 
744 ( 1 98 1 ) (opinion of Stewart, J . ) ; Payton v. New York, 445 U .S .  573, 589-590, 1 00 S .Ct. 1 37 1 ,  at 1 38 1 -1 382, 63 
L. Ed.2d 639 ( 1 980); Alderman v. Un ited States, 394 U .S .  1 65 ,  1 78-1 80, 89 S.Ct. 96 1 ,  969-970, 22 L. Ed.2d 1 76 ( 1 969) . 
As these cases, decided after Katz, ind icate, Katz' "reasonable expectation of privacy" standard did not sever Fourth 
Amendment doctrine from the Amendment's language. Katz itself construed the Amendment's protection of the person 
against unreasonable searches to encompass electronic eavesdropping of telephone conversations sought to be kept 
private; and Katz' fundamental recognition that "the Fourth Amendment protects people-and not simply 'areas'-against 
unreasonable searches and seizures," see 389 U .S . ,  at 353, 88 S .Ct. , at 5 1 2 , is faithfu l  to the Amendment's language. 
As Katz demonstrates, the Court fairly may respect the constraints of the Constitution's language without wedding itself 
to an unreasoning l iteral ism. In contrast, the d issent's approach would ignore the language of the Constitution itself as 
wel l  as overturn this Court's governing precedent. 

7 The Framers would have understood the tenn "effects" to be l imited to personal ,  rather than real ,  property. See general ly 
Doe v. Dring , 2 M .  & S .  448, 454, 1 05 Eng. Rep. 447 ,  449 (K.B . 1 8 1 4) (discussing prior cases) ; 2 W. Blackstone, 
Commentaries * 1 6, * 384-* 385. 

8 The Fourth Amendment's protection of offices and commercial bui ldings, in which there may be legitimate expectations 
of privacy, is also based upon societal expectations that have deep roots in  the h istory of the Amendment. See Marshal l  
v. Barlow's, Inc. ,  436 U.S. 307, 3 1 1 ,  98 S .Ct. 1 8 1 6, 1 8 1 9, 56 L. Ed .2d 305 ( 1 978); G .M .  Leasing Corp. v. Un ited States, 
429 U.S. 338, 355, 97 S.Ct. 6 1 9 ,  630, 50 L .Ed .2d 530 ( 1 977). 

9 Tr. of Oral Arg .  1 4-1 5 ,  58. See, e .g . ,  Un ited States v. Allen ,  675 F .2d 1 373, 1 380-1 381 (CA9 1 980); United States v. 
DeBacker, 493 F .Supp. 1 078, 1 08 1  (WD M ich . 1 980). I n  practical tenns, petitioner Ol iver's and respondent Thornton's 
analysis merely would require law enforcement officers , i n  most situations, to use aerial surveil lance to gather the 
information necessary to obtain a warrant or to justify warrantless entry onto the property. I t  is not easy to see how such 
a requirement would advance legitimate privacy interests. 

1 0 The dissent conceives of open fields as bustl ing with private activity as diverse as lovers' trysts and worship services. Post, 
at 1 7  48-1 7 49. But in most instances pol ice wil l d isturb no one when they enter upon open fields. These fields, by their very 
character as open and unoccupied, are un l ikely to provide the setting for activities whose privacy is sought to be protected 
by the Fourth Amendment. One need think only of the vast expanse of some western ranches or of the undeveloped 
woods of the Northwest to see the unreal ity of the dissent's conception. Further, the Fourth Amendment provides ample 
protection to activities in the open fields that m ight impl icate an individual's privacy .  An individual who enters a place 
defined to be "publ ic" for Fourth Amendment analysis does not lose al l  claims to privacy or personal security. Cf. Arkansas 
v. Sanders, 442 U .S .  753, 766-767, 99 S .Ct. 2586, 2594-2595, 61 L .Ed .2d 235 ( 1 979) (BURG ER, C .J . ,  concurring in 
judgment) .  For example, the Fourth Amendment's protections against unreasonable arrest or unreasonable seizure of 
effects upon the person remain fu lly applicable. See, e.g . ,  U nited States v. Watson , 423 U .S .  4 1 1 ,  96 S .Ct. 820, 46 
L. Ed .2d 598 ( 1 976). 

1 1  Neither petitioner Ol iver nor respondent Thornton has contended that the property searched was with in  the curtilage. 
Nor is it necessary in these cases to consider the scope of the curtilage exception to the open fields doctrine or the 
degree of Fourth Amendment protection afforded the curtilage, as opposed to the home itself. I t  is clear, however, that 
the tenn "open fields" may include any unoccupied or undeveloped area outside of the curtilage. An open field need be 
neither "open" nor a "field" as those tenns are used in common speech . For example, contrary to respondent Thornton's 
suggestion , Tr. of Oral Arg . 2 1 -22, a thickly wooded area nonetheless may be an open field as that tenn is used in 
construing the Fourth Amendment. See, e .g . ,  United States v. Pru itt, 464 F .2d 494 (CA9 1 972); Bedel l  v. State, 257 Ark. 
895, 521 S .W.2d 200 ( 1 975). 

1 2  The clarity of the open fields doctrine that we reaffinn today is not sacrificed , as the d issent suggests, by our recognition 
that the curti lage remains within the protections of the Fourth Amendment. Most of the many m il l ions of acres that are 
"open fields" are not close to any structure and so not arguably with in the curtilage. And, for most homes, the boundaries 
of the curti lage wil l be clearly marked ; and the conception defin ing the curtilage-as the area around the home to which 
the activity of home l ife extends-is a fami l iar one easily understood from our dai ly experience. The occasional difficulties 
that courts might have in applying this, l ike other, legal concepts, do not argue for the unprecedented expansion of the 
Fourth Amendment advocated by the dissent. 

1 3  Certainly the Framers did not intend that the Fourth Amendment should shelter criminal  activity wherever persons with 
criminal intent choose to erect barriers and post "No Trespassing" signs. 

1 4  As noted above, the common-law conception of the "curtilage" has served this function . 
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1 5  The law of trespass recognizes the interest in possession and control of one's property and for that reason permits 
exclusion of unwanted intruders. But it does not follow that the right to exclude conferred by trespass law embodies a 
privacy interest also protected by the Fourth Amendment. To the contrary, the common law of trespass furthers a range 
of interests that have nothing to do with privacy and that would not be served by applying the strictures of trespass law to 
public officers .  Criminal  laws against trespass are prophylactic: they protect against intruders who poach , steal l ivestock 
and crops, or vandal ize property. And the civil action of trespass serves the important function of authorizing an owner 
to defeat claims of prescription by asserting his own title. See, e .g . , 0 .  Holmes, The Common Law 98-1 00, 244-246 
( 1 88 1 ) .  In any event, un l icensed use of property by others is presumptively unjustified, as anyone who wishes to use 
the property is free to bargain for the right to do so with the property owner, cf. R. Posner, Economic Analysis of Law 
1 0-1 3, 21 ( 1 973). For these reasons, the law of trespass confers protections from intrusion by others far broader than 
those required by Fourth Amendment interests. 

1 The Court informs us that the Framers would have understood the term "effects" to encompass only personal property. 
Ante, at 1 740, n. 7. Such a construction of the term would exclude both a publ ic phone booth and spoken words. 

2 On the other hand, an automobile surely does constitute an "effect.· Under the Court's theory, cars should therefore stand 
on the same constitutional footing as houses. Our cases establ ish, however, that car owners' d imin ished expectations that 
their cars will remain free from prying eyes warrants a corresponding reduction in the constitutional protection accorded 
cars. E .g . ,  United States v. Martinez-Fuerte, 428 U .S .  543,  561 ,  96 S .Ct. 3074, 3084, 49 L. Ed . 2d 1 1 1 6 ( 1 976). 

3 By their terms, the provisions of the Bi l l  of Rights curtai l  on ly activities by the Federal Government, see Barron v. Mayor 
and City Counci l of Baltimore, 7 Pet. 243 ( 1 833), but the Fourteenth Amendment subjects state and local governments 
to the most important of those restrictions, see, e .g . ,  Cantwell v. Connecticut, 3 1 0  U .S .  296, 60 S.Ct. 900, 84 L. Ed .  1 2 1 3  
( 1 940) (First Amendment); Wolf v. Colorado, 338 U .S .  25, 69 S.Ct. 1 359, 93 L .Ed .  1 782 ( 1 949) (Fourth Amendment). 

4 Cf. McCul loch v. Maryland, 1 7  U .S .  3 1 6, 407, 4 Wheat. 3 1 6, 407, 4 L .Ed .  579 ( 1 8 1 9) ("[W]e must never forget, that it is 
a constitution we are expounding." Such a document cannot be as detai led as a "legal code"; "[ii ts nature . . .  requires, 
that only its g reat outlines should be marked , its important objects designated, and the m inor ingredients which compose 
those objects be deduced from the nature of the objects themselves") (emphasis in orig inal) .  

5 Our rejection of the mode of interpretation appropriate for statutes is perhaps clearest in our treatment of the First 
Amendment. That Amendment provides, in pertinent part, that "Congress shal l make no law . . .  abridging the freedom 
of speech , or of the press" but says nothing, for example, about restrictions on expressive behavior or about access to 
the courts. Yet, to give effect to the purpose of the Amendment, we have appl ied it to regulations of conduct designed 
to convey a message, e.g . ,  Edwards v. South Carol ina, 372 U .S .  229, 83 S.Ct. 680, 9 L .Ed .2d 697 ( 1 963), and have 
accorded constitutional protection to the publ ic's "right of access to criminal trials," Globe Newspaper Co. v. Superior 
Court, 457 U .S .  596, 604-605, 1 02 S .Ct. 261 3, 261 8, 261 9, 73 L. Ed.2d 248 ( 1 982). 

6 See also Un ited States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S .  1 ,  7, 1 1 ,  97 S.Ct. 2476, 2481 , 2483, 53 L. Ed.2d 538 ( 1 977) (disagreeing with 
the suggestion that the Fourth Amendment "protects only dwell ings and other specifical ly designated locales" ; asserting 
instead that the purpose of the Amendment " is to safeguard individuals from unreasonable government invasions of 
legitimate privacy interests") ;  Rakas v. I l l inois, 439 U .S .  1 28, 1 43 ,  99 S .Ct. 42 1 ,  430, 58 L . Ed.2d 387 ( 1 978) (holding 
that the determinative question is "whether the person who claims the protection of the Amendment has a legitimate 
expectation of privacy in the invaded place") .  
Our most recent decisions continue to  rely on the conception of  the purpose and scope of the Fourth Amendment that 
we enunciated in Katz. See, e .g . ,  U nited States v. Jacobsen, 466 U .S .  1 09, at 1 1 3-1 1 8 , 1 04 S .Ct. 1 652, 1 656-1 659, 
80 L. Ed.2d 85 ( 1 984) ;  Michigan v. Cl ifford, 464 U .S .  287, 292-293, 1 04 S .Ct. 641 , 646, 78 L. Ed.2d 477 ( 1 984); I l l inois 
v. Andreas, 463 U .S .  765, 771 , 1 03 S .Ct. 331 9 ,  3324, 77 L .Ed.2d 1 003 ( 1 983); Un ited States v. Place, 462 U .S .  696, 
706-707, 1 03 S.Ct. 2637, 2644, 77 L. Ed.2d 1 1 0 ( 1 983); Texas v. Brown,  460 U .S .  730, 738-740, 1 03 S.Ct. 1 535, 1 54 1-
1 542, 75 L . Ed .2d 502 ( 1 983) (plural ity opinion); United States v .  Knotts, 460 U .S .  276, 280-281 ,  1 03 S .Ct. 1 081 , 1 084-
1 085, 75 L. Ed.2d 55 ( 1 983). 

7 Sensitive to the weakness of its argument that the "persons and things" mentioned in the Fourth Amendment exhaust the 
coverage of the provision, the Court goes on to analyze at length the privacy interests that might legitimately be asserted 
in "open fields." The inclusion of Parts I l l  and IV in the opinion, coupled with the Court's reaffi rmation of Katz and its 
progeny, ante, at 1 7  40, strongly suggest that the plain-language theory sketched in Part I I  of the Court's opinion will have 
l ittle or no effect on our future decisions in this area. 

8 The privacy interests protected by the Fourth Amendment are not l imited to expectations that physical areas wil l 
remain free from public and government intrusion. See supra, at 1 740. The factors relevant to the assessment of the 
reasonableness of a nonspatial privacy interest may wel l  be different from the three considerations d iscussed here. 
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See, e.g . ,  Smith v .  Maryland , 442 U.S. 735, 747-748, 9 9  S.Ct. 2577, 2583-2584, 6 1  L. Ed.2d 220 ( 1 979) (Stewart, J . ,  
d issenting); id . ,  at 750-752, 9 9  S .Ct. , a t  2585-2586 (MARSHALL, J . ,  dissenting) .  

9 The Court does not dispute that Oliver and Thornton had subjective expectations of privacy, nor could it in view of the 
lower courts' findings on that issue. See United States v. Ol iver, No. CR80-00005-01 -BG (W O .Ky. Nov. 1 4 ,  1 980), App. 
to Pet. for Cert. in No. 82-1 5, pp. 1 9-20 ;  Maine v. Thornton, No. CR82-1 0 (Me.Super.Ct. , Apr. 1 6 , 1 982), App. to Pet. 
for Cert. in No. 82-1 273, pp. 8-4-8-5. 

1 0 The Court today seeks to evade the force of this principle by contending that the law of property is designed to serve 
various "prophylactic" and "economic" purposes unrelated to the protection of privacy. Ante ,  at 1 744, and n. 1 5. Such 
efforts to rationalize the distribution of entitlements under state law are interesting and may have some explanatory 
power, but cannot support the weight the Court seeks to place upon them. The Court surely m ust concede that one of the 
purposes of the law of real property (and specifical ly the law of criminal trespass, see infra, at 1 748, and n. 1 2) is to define 
and enforce privacy interests-to empower some people to make whatever use they wish of certain tracts of land without 
fear that other people wil l intrude upon their activities. The views of commentators, old and new, as to other functions 
served by positive law are thus insufficient to support the Court's sweeping assertion that "in the case of open fields, the 
general rights of property . . .  have little or no relevance to the applicabi l ity of the Fourth Amendment," ante, at 1 7  44. 

1 1  See also Rawl ings v. Kentucky, 448 U .S .  98, 1 1 2 ,  1 00 S .Ct. 2556, 2565, 65 L. Ed.2d 633 ( 1 980) (BLACKMUN ,  J . ,  
concurring). 

1 2  Cf. Comment to ALI , Model Penal Code § 221 .2 ,  p. 87 ( 1 980) ( "The common thread runn ing through these provisions [a 
sample of state criminal trespass laws] is the element of unwanted intrusion , usual ly coupled with some sort of notice to 
would-be intruders that they may not enter. Most people do not object to strangers tramping through woodland or over 
pasture or open range. On the other hand , intrusions into bui ldings, onto property fenced in a manner manifestly designed 
to exclude intruders, or onto any private property in defiance of actual notice to keep away is general ly considered 
objectionable and under some circumstances frightening") . 

1 3  I n  most circumstances, this inquiry requires analysis of the sorts of uses to wh ich a g iven space is susceptible, not the 
manner in wh ich the person asserting an expectation of privacy in the space was in fact employing it. See, e.g . ,  Un ited 
States v. Chadwick, 433 U .S . ,  at 1 3, 97 S .Ct. , at 2484. We make exceptions to th is principle and evaluate uses on a case­
by-case basis in only two contexts: when called upon to assess (what formerly was cal led) the "standing" of a particular 
person to challenge an intrusion by government officials into an area over which that person lacked primary contro l ,  see, 
e .g . ,  Rakas v. I l l inois, 439 U .S . ,  at 1 48-1 49,  99 S .Ct. , at 432-433; Jones v. Un ited States, 362 U .S .  257, 265-266, 80 
S.Ct. 725, 733-734, 4 L. Ed.2d 697 ( 1960), and when it is possible to ascertain how a person is using a particular space 
without violating the very privacy interest he is asserting, see, e .g . ,  Katz v. United States, 389 U .S . ,  at 352, 88 S .Ct. , at 
5 1 1 .  ( In  cases of the latter sort, the inqu iries described in this Part and in Part 1 1-C, infra , are coextensive). Neither of 
these exceptions is applicable here. Thus, the majority's contention that, because the cultivation of marihuana is not an 
activity that society wishes to protect, Ol iver and Thornton had no legitimate privacy interest in their fields, ante, at 1 7  42, 
and n .  1 3 , reflects a misunderstanding of the level of general ity on which the constitutional analysis must proceed. 

1 4  We accord constitutional protection to businesses conducted in office bui ldings, see supra ,  at 1 7  45; it is not apparent why 
businesses conducted in fields that are not open to the public are less deserving of the benefit of the Fourth Amendment. 

1 5  This last-mentioned use impl icates a kind of privacy interest somewhat different from those to which we are accustomed. 
It involves neither a person's interest in immunity from observation nor a person's interest in shielding from scrutiny the 
residues and manifestations of his personal l ife. Cf. Weinreb, General ities of the Fourth Amendment, 42 U .Ch i .L . Rev. 
47, 52-54 ( 1 974). It derives, rather, from a person's desire to preserve inviolate a portion of his world.  The idiosyncracy 
of th is interest does not, however, render it less deserving of constitutional protection. 

1 6  See also Rakas v. I l l inois, supra, 439 U .S . ,  at 1 52 ,  99 S.Ct. , at 435 (POWELL, J . ,  concurring) ;  United States v. Chadwick, 
supra, 433 U .S . ,  at 1 1 ,  97 S .Ct. , at 2483; Katz v. United States, supra, 389 U .S . ,  at 352, 88 S .Ct. , at 5 1 1 .  

1 7  However, if the homeowner acts affirmatively to invite someone into his abode, he cannot later insist that his privacy 
interests have been violated . Lewis v. United States, 385 U .S .  206, 87 S .Ct. 424, 1 7  L. Ed.2d 3 1 2  ( 1 966). 

1 8  An argument supportive of the position taken by the Court today m ight be constructed on the basis of an examination 
of the record in Hester. It appears that, in  his approach to the house, one of the agents crossed a pasture fence. See 
Tr. in Hester v. United States, O.T. 1 923, No. 243, p .  1 6. However, the Court, in  its opinion, placed no weight upon­
indeed, did not even mention-that circumstance. 
I n  any event, to the extent that Hester may be read to support a rule any broader than that stated in Air Pol lution Variance 
Board v. Western Alfalfa Corp . ,  4 1 6  U .S .  861 , 94 S .Ct. 2 1 1 4, 40 L. Ed .2d 607 ( 1 974). It is undercut by our decision in  
Katz, which repudiated the locational theory of  the coverage of  the Fourth Amendment enunciated in Olmstead v. U n ited 

1NESTL AW @ 20 1 9  Thomson Reuters .  1\Jo cla im  to or ig i :1 ::i l  U . S .  Gove rnment \/\forks .  



Oliver v. U.S. ,  466 U.5. 1 70 (1 984) 
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States, 277 U . S .  438, 4 8  S .Ct. 564, 7 2  L. Ed. 944 ( 1 928), and by the l ine o f  decisions orig inating i n  Katz, see supra at 
1 746, and n. 6 .  

1 9  I ndeed , important practical considerations suggest that the police should not be empowered to invade land closed to the 
public. In many parts of the country, landowners feel entitled to use self-help in expel l ing trespassers from their posted 
property. There is thus a serious risk that police officers, making unannounced , warrantless searches of "open fields, "  wil l  
become involved in violent confrontations with irate landowners, with potential ly tragic results . Cf. McDonald v. Un ited 
States, 335 U .S .  451 , 460-461 , 69 S .Ct. 1 9 1 , 93 L .Ed .  1 53 ( 1 948) (Jackson,  J . ,  concurring) .  

20 The l ikel ihood that the pol ice wi l l  err  in making such judgments is suggested by the difficulty experienced by courts when 
trying to define the curtilage of dwel l ings. See, e.g . ,  Un ited States v. Berrong , 7 1 2  F.2d 1 370, 1 374, and n .  7 (CA 1 1  
1 983), cert. pend ing, No. 83-988; Un ited States v. Van Dyke, 643 F .2d 992, 993-994 (CM 1 98 1 ) .  

21  Perhaps the most serious danger in  the decision today i s  that, i f  the police are permitted routinely to engage i n  such 
behavior, it wi l l  g radual ly become less offensive to us all. As Justice Brandeis once observed: "Our Government is the 
potent, the omnipresent teacher. For good or for il l , it teaches the whole people by its example. Crime is contagious. If 
the Government becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for law . . . .  " Olmstead v. United States, 277 U .S . ,  at 485, 48 
S.ct. , at 575 (dissenting opinion) . See also Solem v. Stumes, 465 U .S .  638, 667 , 1 04 S .Ct. 1 338, 1 354, 79 L. Ed.2d 579 
( 1 984) (STEVENS,  J . ,  d issenting) .  
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KeyCite Yellow Flag - Negative Treatment 

Not Followed on State Law Grounds People v. Scott, N.Y., April 2, 1 992 

44 S.Ct. 445 
Supreme Court of the United States. 

HESTER 
v. 

UNITED STATES. 

No. 243. 
I 

Submitted April 24, 1924. 
I 

Decided May 5, 1924. 

Synopsis 
In Error to the District Court of the United States for the 
Western District of South Carolina. 

Charlie Hester was convicted of concealing distilled 
spirits, and he brings error. Affirmed. 

West Headnotes (2) 

(1 ) Criminal Law 
� Place of business or other premises 

Criminal Law 
,�= Compelling Self-Incrimination 

Intoxicating Liquors 
;";-= Incriminating or Exculpatory 

Circumstances 
Intoxicating Liquors 
,.;.:. Grounds for seizure and forfeiture 

Searches and Seizures 
•F Effect of Illegal Conduct;Trespass 

Testimony of officers that they concealed 
themselves near defendant's house. saw 
defendant taking a jug out of a car, and 
when they were discovered defendant ran 
and dropped the jug, which on examination 
was found to contain moonshine whisky, 
held not to violate U.S .C.A. Const.Amend . 
4, as to unlawful searches and seizures, or 
Amendment 5, as to compelling accused 
to give testimony against himself, though 

(2) 

officers had no search warrant and were on 
defendant's land. 

1 69 Cases that cite this headnote 

Searches and Seizures 
�- Curtilage or open fields;yards and 

outbuildings 
Protection accorded by Const.Amend. 4, to 
the people in their "persons, houses, papers 
and effects," is not extended to open fields. 

682 Cases that cite this headnote 

Attorneys and Law Firms 

**446 *57 Mr. Richard A. Ford, of Washington, D. C. ,  
for plaintiff in error. 

Messrs. James M. Beck, Sol. Gen. ,  of Washington, D. C. ,  
and Mabel Walker Willebrandt, Asst. Atty. Gen. ,  for the 
United States. 

Opinion 

Mr. Justice HOLMES delivered the opinion of the Court. 

[ l ]  The plaintiff in error, Hester, was convicted of 
concealing distilled spirits, etc . ,  under Rev. St. § 3296 
(Comp. St. § 6038). The case is brought here directly from 
the District Court on the single ground that by refusing 
to exclude the testimony of two witnesses and to direct 
a verdict for the defendant, the plaintiff in error, the 
Court violated his *58 rights under the Fourth and Fifth 
Amendments of the Constitution of the United States. 

[2] The witnesses whose testimony is objected to were 
revenue officers . In consequence of information they went 
toward the house of Hester's father, where the plaintiff in 
error lived, and as they approached saw one Henderson 
drive near to the house. They concealed themselves from 
fifty to one hundred yards away and saw Hester come out 
and hand Henderson a quart bottle. An alarm was given. 
Hester went to a car standing near, took a gallon jug from 
it and he and Henderson ran. One of the officers pursued, 
and fired a pistol. Hester dropped his jug, which broke 
but kept about a quart of its contents. Henderson threw 
away his bottle also. The jug and bottle both contained 
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44 S.Ct. 445, 68 L.Ed. 898 

what the officers, being experts, recognized as moonshine 
whisky, that is, whisky illicitly distilled; said to be easily 
recognizable. The other officer entered the house, but 
being told there was no whisky there left it, but found 
outside a jar that had been thrown out and broken and 
that also contained whisky. While the officers were there 
other cars stopped at the house but were spoken to by 
Hester's father and drove off. The officers had no warrant 
for search or arrest, and it is contended that this made their 
evidence inadmissible, it being assumed, on the strength of 
the pursuing officer's saying that he supposed they were on 
Hester's land, that such was the fact. It is obvious that even 
if there had been a trespass, the above testimony was not 
obtained by an illegal search or seizure. The defendant's 
own acts, and those of his associates, disclosed the jug, 
the jar and the bottle-and there was no seizure in the 
sense of the law when the officers examined the contents of 
each after it had been abandoned. This evidence was not 
obtained by the entry into the house and it is immaterial 

End of Document 

to discuss that. The suggestion that the defendant was 
compelled to give evidence against himself *59 does 
not require an answer. The only shadow of a ground for 
bringing up the case is drawn from the hypothesis that 
the examination of the vessels took place upon Hester's 
father's land. As to that, it is enough to say that, apart 
from the justification, the special protection accorded by 
the Fourth Amendment to the people in their 'persons, 
houses, papers and effects , '  is not extended to the open 
fields .  The distinction between the latter and the house is 
as old as the common law. 4 Bl. Comm. 223 , 225, 226. 

Judgment affirmed. 

All Citations 

265 U.S .  57, 44 S .Ct .  445 ,  68 L.Ed. 898 
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State v. Larson,  343 N .W.2d 361 ( 1 984) 

343 N.W.2d 361 
Supreme Court of North Dakota.  

STATE of North Dakota, Plaintiff and Appellant, 
v. 

John Arthur LARSON, Defendant and Appellee. 
STATE OF North Dakota, Plaintiff and Appellant, 

v. 
Roger Charles JOHNSEN, Defendant and Appellee. 

Cr. Nos. 951, 952. 
I 

Jan. 13, 1984. 

Synopsis 
State appealed from order of the County Court ,  Sheridan 
County, O.A. Schulz, J . ,  suppressing evidence against 
defendants in prosecution for alleged violation of game 
laws . The Supreme Court, Sand , J . ,  held that: ( 1 )  given 
totality of circumstances, including fact that consent to 
search was given only after game warden told defendant 
that if warden was not shown where defendant had put 
allegedly illegally taken ducks, six more wardens and 
four dogs would be brought in, consent was involuntary, 
and (2) in view of fact that defendants were faced with 
warden's threat to use dogs and more wardens ,  defendants' 
confessions to having shot more than legal limit of ducks 
were properly suppressed, defendants having received 
neither Miranda warnings nor anything similar thereto, 
even though neither defendant was formally placed under 
arrest at the time. 

Affirmed. 

West Headnotes (7) 

11 ) Searches and Seizures 
-.:? Necessity of and preference for warrant ,  

and exceptions in general 
Ordinarily, all searches made without valid 
warrant are unreasonable unless they are 
shown to come within one of the exceptions 
to rule that search must be made upon valid 
warrant. U .S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4. 

3D 

(2) 

13) 

14) 

15) 

3(t; - 1.. I . j 

I Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 
;;= Evidence wrongfully obtained 

Criminal Law 
t-"'· Admission, statements, and confessions 

In cases involving voluntariness of confession 
or consent to search, the Supreme Court will 
not reverse trial court's detennination unless it 
is contrary to manifest weight of the evidence. 

I Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 
i""' Admission, statements, and confessions 

Trial court's determination as to voluntariness 
of confession or consent to search will not 
be overturned if, after conflicts in testimony 
are resolved in favor of affirmance, there is 
sufficient competent evidence fairly capable of 
supporting trial court's determination.  

I Cases that cite this headnote 

Searches and Seizures 
·�= Questions of law or fact 

Determination of whether consent to search 
was voluntary or involuntary is question of 
fact to be determined from totality of all the 
circumstances . U .S .C .A.  Const.Amend . 4. 

1 Cases that cite this headnote 

Searches and Seizures 
;:.= Particu lar concrete applications 

Totality of circumstances, including fact that 
consent to search was given only after 
game warden told defendant that if warden 
was not shown where defendant had put 
allegedly illegally taken ducks, six more 
wardens and four dogs would be brought 
in, established that consent was involuntary. 
U .S .C.A. Const.Amend. 4. 

I Cases that cite this headnote 
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[6] 

17) 

Criminal Law 
· ·= What constitutes voluntary statement, 

admission, or confession 
Issue of voluntariness of admissions is  always 
question to be determined from all of the 
circumstances, regardless of whether or not 
subject is in custody. U.S .C.A. Const .Amend. 
5 .  

Cases that cite this headnote 

Criminal Law 
�=- Necessity in general 

Criminal Law 
:= Particular cases 

Criminal Law 
(= Threats;Fear of Injury 

In view of fact that defendants were faced 
with game warden's threat to use dogs and 
more wardens in attempt to find allegedly 
illegally taken ducks if defendant did not 
cooperate, the interrogation and intimidation 
being such that wardens should have known 
it would likely elicit incriminating response 
from defendants, defendants' confessions 
to having shot more than legal limit of 
ducks were properly suppressed, defendants 
having received neither Miranda warnings nor 
anything similar to them, notwithstanding 
that defendants were not formally placed 
under arrest at the time. U.S .C .A.  
Const.Amend . 5 .  

Cases that cite this headnote 

Attorneys and Law Firms 

*362 Walter M. Lipp, State's Atty . ,  McClusky, for 
plaintiff and appellant. 

Baer & Asbridge, Bismarck, for defendants and appellees; 
argued by Darold A. Asbridge, Bismarck . 

Opinion 

SAND, Justice. 

:>\ 

The Sheridan County justice court granted a motion 
suppressing evidence against the defendants, John A. 
Larson (Larson) and Roger C .  Johnsen (Johnsen) , in a 
prosecution for alleged violation of North Dakota game 
laws. The State appealed. 

On 2 October 1 982 Johnsen, his two sons, Larson, his 
two sons, and a friend, were waterfowl hunting from a 
camp on Larson's land in Sheridan County. Unbeknown 
to Larson and Johnsen, state and federal game wardens 
were watching them from nearby hills from early morning 
until late afternoon. David Kraft, a special agent for the 
United States Fish and Wildlife Service, kept a log of 
events as the wardens watched .  Kraft's log indicated that 
he saw the hunters shoot eighteen to twenty ducks and that 
the ducks were taken to several locations, a trailer house, a 
vehicle, an outhouse, an abandoned shed, and some brush 
near the shed. According to Kraft ,  Johnsen and his son 
left the camp in Johnsen's vehicle about 4 :00 p .m. 

Greg Cleveland, a friend of Larson, arrived at the camp 
with two more hunters about 5 :00 p .m.  Shortly thereafter, 
North Dakota game warden Tim Larson, and special 
agent Terry Grosz of the United States Fish and Wildlife 
Service, entered the camp. Grosz questioned the hunters 
and checked their licenses and guns .  Grosz gave no 
Miranda warnings to Larson at that time nor at any time 
during the investigation .  

Meanwhile, warden Larson , who was in radio contact 
with other wardens from the surveillance point, began 
a search of the brush area near the shed. When warden 
Larson returned from his search he reported to Grosz that 
he did not find any of the ducks. According to Cleveland, 
Grosz then said to defendant Larson, "We have spotters 
on the hillside, before daylight they saw you got more 
birds stashed down here . I will give you one chance and 
one chance only to show me or  we will bring down 

six wardens and four dogs . "  1 Larson then took Grosz 
to several locations where the ducks had been placed. 
Meanwhile, two more wardens j oined wardens Grosz and 
Larson at the camp. Because Grosz apparently did not 
want to involve the children, he advised Cleveland to take 
the children "far away" and to "come back after dark . "  
After Cleveland and the children had left ,  Grosz began 
to question defendant Larson about who had shot which 
ducks. Larson admitted to Grosz that he shot twelve 
ducks, seven more than permitted by law. Grosz then 
confiscated Larson's shotgun . 

·---------- ·--------- ------------- ·-·- · ·----------·- ·-·--- ---·- ·-· -------
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The wardens were at the camp for about two and one-half 
hours. When they left, they met Johnsen coming toward 
the camp in his pickup. Kraft explained to Johnsen that 
they had talked to Larson and that they "[knew] what 
had happened. "  Kraft showed the confiscated ducks to 
Johnsen and asked him to identify which ones he had shot. 
Johnsen admitted that he shot more than his limit. The 
wardens then confiscated Johnsen's gun and told him he 
could return to the camp. 

*363 On 5 October 1 982 separate complaints were filed 
against Larson and Johnsen and warrants were issued for 
their arrests. The complaints charged that Larson had shot 
seven ducks more than his limit, and that Johnsen had shot 
three more than his limit. 

Larson and Johnsen moved to suppress all of the evidence 
and their statements on the grounds that the search 
was conducted in violation of their fourth amendment 
protection against unreasonable searches and seizures 
and that their statements were given in violation of 
their fifth amendment privilege against compelled self-

incrimination. 2 

The Sheridan County court held an evidentiary hearing 
in which the two complaints were consolidated . The 
court suppressed all of the evidence and the defendants' 
statements on the grounds that their fourth and fifth 
amendment rights had been violated, and the State 
appealed. 

( 1 ) With respect to the State's contention that no fourth 
amendment violation occurred, we begin by noting that, 
ordinarily, all searches made without a valid search 
warrant are unreasonable unless they are shown to come 
within one of the exceptions to the rule that a search must 
be made upon a valid warrant .  Stoner v. California, 376 
U.S. 483,  486, 84 S .Ct .  889,  89 1 ,  1 1  L .Ed .2d 856 ,  859 
( 1 964) . 

The State contended that a search warrant was 
unnecessary because the surveillance and subsequent 
search of the camp was conducted pursuant to the ' � 
fields" docfrine announced in Hester v. United States, 265 
U .S .  57, 44 S .Ct. 445 , 68 L.Ed. 898 ( 1 924) . In Hester 
the Court said that ' the special protection accorded by 
the Fourth Amendment lo the people in their 'persons, 
houses, papers and effects' is not extended to the open 

fields. " 265 U .S .  at 59, 44 S .Ct .  at 446, 68 L .Ed .  at 900. 
Thus, the Court drew a distinction between the dwelling 
and its curtilage, which was protected, and an open field, 
which was not .  See W. Ringel, Searches and Seizures, 
Arrests and Confessions, § 8 . 4  ( 1 983) .  Although the open 
fields/curtilage distinction is not easily drawn, most courts 

J 
and commentators have defined curtilage as that area 
near a dwelling, not necessarily enclosed, that generally 
includes buildings or other adjuncts used for domestic 
purposes. -State v. Vicars, 207 Neb. 325 , 299 N .W.2d 42 1 ,  
425 ( 1 980); W. LaFave, Search and Seizure § 2.4, at  332 
( 1 978) .  

The utility of the open fields doctrine, however, has become 
suspect in light of the Supreme Court's holding in Katz 
v. United States, 389 U .S .  347, 3 5 1 ,  88 S .Ct .  507, 5 1 1 ,  
1 9  L.Ed.2d 576, 582 ( 1 967), that the fourth amendment 
protects people, not places . Thus, a greater emphasis 
is now placed upon an examination of whether or not 
one possesses a reasonable expectation of privacy in the 
object or area to be searched . Terry v. Ohio, 392 U .S .  
1 ,  9 ,  8 8  S .Ct .  1 868 ,  1 873 ,  20  L.Ed.2d 889 ,  899  ( 1 968); 
State v .  Matthews, 2 1 6  N.W.2d 90, 1 03 (N.D . 1 974) . 
Nevertheless, this Court has not completely abandoned 
pre-Katz concepts, like the open fields doctrine, because 
such concepts are still important in determining whether 
or not the person searched had a reasonable expectation of 
privacy. See State v. Planz, 304 N .W.2d 74, 79 (N.D . 1 98 1 ) .  
Indeed, the United States Supreme Court has  said that it 
"has not altog!,1he.r abandoned use of property concepts 
in determining the presence or absence of the privacy 
interests protected by [fhe rourth] Amendment . "  Rakas v. 

Illinois, 439 U .S .  1 28 ,  1 44, 99 S .Ct .  42 1 , 43 1 ,  58 L .Ed .2d 
387, 40 1 n .  1 2  ( 1 978) .  The Court has also recently referred 
to the open fields doctrine in determining that a defendant's 
expectation of privacy with respect to activities inside 
his cabin did not extend to police observation of a car 
carrying a container with an electronic beeper inside i t  as 
it  arrived on defendant's property after leaving a public 
highway. *364 United States v. Knotts, 460 U .S .  276, 1 03 
S .Ct .  1 08 1 ,  75 L .Ed.2d 55  ( 1 983) .  See also Air Pollution 
Variance Board v. Western Alfalfa Corp. , 4 1 6  U . S .  86 1 ,  
94 S .Ct .  2 1 1 4, 44 L.Ed.2d 607 ( 1 974) (application of open 
fields doctrine to warrantless entry by health inspector on 
defendant's outdoor premises) . 

In the instant case, the wardens were watching the 
defendants from surrounding hills about one-quarter to 
one-half mile away. The record does not indicate whether 
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or not the wardens were on defendant Larson's property, 
although warden Kraft testified that the wardens were on 
" [what was] known to [Kraft] as the John Larson Hunting 
Camp, Sheridan County ." If the wardens were in fact on 
Larson's property, the record does not reflect whether or 
not the camp was also visible from other property , such as 
a public road or neighboring land. 

Kraft testified that the camp was located "kind of in a 
pasture" between two large sloughs. The camp contained a 
trailer house, an outhouse, and a dilapidated shed located 
about thirty feet from the trailer house. The record does 
not indicate for what purposes, or how often, the buildings 
were used. The record does indicate that Larson's land was 
posted, although it does not indicate how many signs there 
were or where the signs were located . Johnsen testified that 
one had to drive through a stubble-field to get to the camp, 
but the record does not indicate whether or not the area 
was fenced, or whether or not any gates had to be opened. 

Many of the unknown factors noted above, while not 
individually dispositive, would be cumulatively significant 
in applying the open fields doctrine to determine whether 
or not the defendants had a reasonable expectation of 
privacy . 3 Because of the nature of the disposition of this 
case, however, we need not resolve that question. The fact 
remains that warden Larson's initial search of the area 
near the shed was unproductive. The wardens did not 
discover the ducks until defendant Larson led them to the 
ducks following Grosz' s tatement that he was prepared to 
dispatch dogs and more wardens .  

(2) (3) The State argued,  in the  alternative, 4 that i f  
the open fields doctrine was inapplicable, then Larson 
voluntarily consented to the search that produced the 
ducks . In cases involving the voluntariness of a confession 
or a consent to search, this Court will not reverse the trial 
court's determination unless it is contrary to the manifest 
weight of the evidence. The trial court's determination 
will not be overturned if, after conflicts in the testimony 
are resolved in favor of affirmance, there is sufficient 
competent evidence fairly capable of supporting the trial 
court's determination. State v. Discoe, 334 N.W.2d 466, 
469 (N.D. 1 983) .  

(4) A determination of whether a consent to a search 
was voluntary or involuntary is a question of fact to 
be determined from the totality of all the circumstances . 
Schneckloth v. Bustamante, 4 1 2  U .S .  2 1 8, 227, 93 S .Ct .  

204 1 ,  2048, 3 6  L .Ed . 2d 854, 862 ( 1 973) ;  State v .  Lange, 255 
N.W.2d 59 ,  64 (N.D . 1 977) .  To be voluntary, the consent 
must "not be coerced,  by explicit or  implicit means, by 
implied threat or covert force . "  Schnecklo th, supra, 4 1 2  
U .S .  at 228 , 9 3  S .Ct. a t  2048, 3 6  L.Ed.2d at 863 ;  see also 
State v. Metzner, 244 N .W.2d 2 1 5 , 222-23 (N .D . 1 976). 

[SJ The most critical fact in the case at bar is Grosz' 
statement to defendant Larson that if Larson did not 
show Grosz where the ducks were, then Grosz would 
"bring (in] six wardens and four dogs . "  Grosz' statement 
was an implicit, i f  not explicit, threat that the wardens 
did not intend to leave until the ducks had been found. 
The implication was that defendant *365 Larson had no 
other alternative than to submit to a search and that the 
wardens had authority to wait "until hell froze over" for 
his reply. Threats of force or authority of the type made by 
Grosz constitute impermissible ultimatums, ultimatums 
abhorrent to the principles of the fourth amendment .  

In Schneckloth, supra, 4 1 2  U.S .  at  227, 93 S .Ct .  at 2048 , 
36 L.Ed.2d at 863 ,  the Court held that a defendant's 
knowledge of the right to refuse consent is one factor in 
determining whether or not the consent was voluntary, 
but the State need not demonstrate such knowledge as a 
prerequisite to establishing a voluntary consent .  Although 
the record does not specifically indicate whether defendant 
Larson knew or did not know of his right to refuse 
consent, it does appear that, under the circumstances, 
Larson believed he could not refuse . Larson testified that 
he showed Grosz where the ducks were because " (he] 
wasn't going to fool around with [Grosz] . "  

There were additional factors which indicate that 
defendant Larson's consent may have been involuntary. 
Despite over two hours of questioning by wardens Grosz 
and Larson, defendant Larson gave no indication that he 
intended to consent to a search until Grosz threatened 
a more intensive search . Grosz' suggestion to Cleveland 
that he and the children should leave and go "far 
away" indicates that Grosz' threat was not frivolous .  
When Cleveland and the children left ,  defendant Larson 
was left by himself to confront the four wardens. The 
investigation, by the time Grosz made his threat, was not 
routine and the questions were not general . Finally, we 
note that Grosz was 6# 5# tall and weighed about 280 
pounds. Although the physical stature of a police officer 
alone is not dispositive of whether or not a consent to a 
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search was voluntary, it may, under some circumstances, 
have an intimidating effect. 

The State argued that our decision in State v. Lange, 
255 N.W.2d 59 (N .D . 1 977) should apply. In Lange, a 
police officer stopped the defendant's car after the officer 
observed the car weaving across a city street. When the 
officer approached the car he noticed a small pipe in the 
ashtray and several empty paper bags. The officer read 
Lange his Miranda rights and asked him some questions .  
When Lange admitted that he had been drinking, the 
officer took him to the police station. At the station, 
the officer asked Lange for permission to search his 
vehicle. Lange initially consented, but after the thorough 
nature of the search was explained, Lange's companion 
in the car asked, "What if we said no?" When the officer 
replied that the vehicle would be impounded and searched 
anyway, Lange consented to the search. When the car 
was searched, police officers found several controlled 
substances. On appeal Lange argued that his consent was 
involuntary . 

In upholding the search in Lange, we said that the officer 
did not even use any subtle methods of coercion or 
deception to obtain the consent. We further held that an 
officer's claim that he could obtain a warrant was not, per 
se, coercive. 

The facts in Lange are easily distinguished from those 
in the instant case. In this case the wardens did not ask 
permission to search. Furthermore, the wardens never 
mentioned the word warrant, much less claim that they 
could obtain one. The wardens gave no explanation to 
defendant Larson of his rights, nor did they give him his 
Miranda warnings . 

We believe that, considering the totality of the 
circumstances, defendant Larson's consent to a search of 
the premises was involuntary. 

[61 Larson not only "consented" to the search, he also 
led the wardens to the places where the ducks had been 
placed . At the suppression hearing, the defendants argued, 
and the trial court agreed, that the defendants' fifth 
amendment privilege against compelled self-incrimination 
was violated because the defendants were entitled to 
Miranda warnings . Miranda v . Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 
86 S .Ct. 1 602, 16 L.Ed.2d 694 ( 1 966). On appeal 
the State argued that no fifth amendment violation 

---------------··-�----· ---�-··· · ·  -

occurred because the questioning was more *366 like a 
"noncustodial interview" within the meaning of Beckwith 
v. United States, 425 U .S .  34 1 ,  96 S .Ct .  1 6 1 2, 48 L .Ed.2d 
1 ( 1 976). 

Miranda defined custodial interrogation as questioning 
initiated by law enforcement officers after a person has 
been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his 
freedom of action in any significant way. Miranda, supra. 
384 U.S .  at 444, 86 S . Ct .  at 1 6 1 2, 1 6  L.Ed.2d at 706. 
In Beckwith the court rejected any extension of Miranda 
to situations involving noncustodial circumstances in 
which a police investigation has focused on the suspect. 
Beckwith, supra, 425 U .S .  at 345, 96 S .Ct .  at 1 6 1 5 , 48 
L.Ed .2d at 6-7; see also State v. Fields, 294 N.W.2d 
404, 407-08 (N .D . 1 980) (adoption of "custody" test for 
application of Miranda; "focus" language of State v. 
Iverson, 1 87 N.W.2d 1 (N .D . 1 97 1 ) , cert. denied, 404 U .S .  
956 ,  92 S .Ct. 322, 30 L .Ed .2d 273 ( 1 97 1 ) , limited to  context 
of Iverson ). 

Neither Larson nor Johnsen were formally placed under 
arrest . Further, although the defendants disputed the fact, 
wardens Kraft and Larson testified that the defendants 
were free to leave during the questioning. While we 
view the wardens' assertions with skepticism, we are 
not prepared to conclude, as the trial court did, that 
the defendants were in custody within the meaning of 
Miranda. Nevertheless, the issue of voluntariness is always 
a question to be determined from all of the circumstances , 
regardless of whether or not a subject is in custody. State 
v. Lange. 255 N.W.2d 59, 64 (N .D. 1 977) .  

[7] In Beckwith the court recognized "that noncustodial 
interrogation might possibly in some situations, by virtue 
of some special circumstances, be characterized as one 
where ' the behavior of .. . law enforcement officials 
was such as to overbear petitioner's will to resist and 
bring about confessions not freely self-determined . . . .  ' " 
Beckwith, supra, 425 U .S .  at 347-48, 96 S .Ct .  at 1 6 1 7, 48 
L.Ed.2d at 8 .  The Court went on to say that "When such 
a claim is raised, it is the duty of an appellate court . . .  
'to examine the entire record and make an independent 
determination of the ultimate issue of voluntariness . '  " 
Beckwith, supra. 425 U .S .  at 348, 96 S .Ct . at 1 6 1 7, 48 
L.Ed.2d at 8 .  The Court added that "Proof that some kind 
of warnings were given or that none were given would 
be relevant evidence only on the issue of whether the 
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questioning was in fact coercive. "  Beckwith. supra, 425 
U.S. at 348, 96 S .Ct. at 1 6 1 7, 48 L.Ed.2d at 8 .  

Neither Larson nor Johnsen received either Miranda 

warnings or anything similar to them. 5 Moreover, the 
defendants were faced with Grosz' threat to use dogs 
and more wardens in an attempt to find the birds if 
Larson did not cooperate with him. The interrogation 
and intimidation by the officers in this case was such that 
the wardens should have known it would likely elicit an 
incriminating response from the defendants . Cf Rhode 
Island v. Innis, 446 U.S .  29 1 , 30 1 ,  1 00 S.Ct .  1 682, 1 689, 64 
L.Ed .2d 297, 308 ( 1 980). 

Footnotes 

Viewing the totality of the circumstances in this case we 
conclude that the trial court's determination regarding 
the voluntariness of Larson's consent to search and the 
defendants' subsequent confessions, is not against the 
manifest weight of the evidence. Accordingly, we affirm 
the trial court's order suppressing Larson's consent to the 
search and Larson and Johnsen's confessions. 

ERICKSTAD, C.J . , and GIERKE, PEDERSON and 
VANDE WALLE, JJ . ,  concur. 

All Citations 

343 N.W.2d 3 6 1  

1 Warden Larson agreed that Grosz made the statement to defendant Larson .  However, warden Larson testified that he 
thought Grosz said five wardens. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

The fourth and fifth amendments are appl icable to the states by virtue of the fourteenth amendment to the U n ited States 
Constitution. Wolf v. Colorado, 338 U .S .  25 ,  69 S. Ct. 1 359, 93 L .Ed .  1 782 ( 1 949); Malloy v. Hagan, 378 U .S .  1 , 84 S .Ct. 
1 489, 1 2 L .Ed .2d 653 ( 1 964) .  
Although the tria l  judge concluded that the camp fel l  "wel l  with in  the . . .  open fie ld doctrine ,"  we are not prepared to say 
that it did. 
The State also argued, in  the alternative, that the inevitable discovery doctrine appl ied . G iven the facts of the case , 
however, particu larly the fact that the wardens' in itial search was unproductive, we find the argument meritless and 
unworthy of d iscussion. 
Although the defendant i n  Beckwith was not g iven a l iteral read ing of the Miranda warnings,  he was advised of h is right 
against compelled self-incrim ination, and his right to seek the assistance of an attorney before responding.  Beckwith, 
supra, 425 U .S .  at 348-49, 95 S .Ct. at 1 6 1 7 , 48 L. Ed . 2d at 8 .  

End of  Document © 201 8 Thomson Reuters .  No cla im to original U .S .  Government Works . 
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Testimony of Lynn D. Helms 
Director, North Dakota Industrial Commission Department of Mineral Resources 

March 26, 2019 
Senate Judiciary 

HB 1290 

The North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) is very concerned about the potential negative 
impacts of HB 1 290 on our oil and gas inspection and enforcement program and urges a do not pass 
from this committee. 

The North Dakota Attorney General ' s  office has advised us that the definition of law enforcement 
officer in lines 7 and 8 of HB 1 290 applies to Department of Mineral Resources (DMR) Oil and Gas 
Division (OGD) field inspectors and the legal definition of search "examination of a person's body, 
property or other area which the person would reasonably be expected to consider as private by a 
law enforcement officer for finding evidence of a crime" as used in line 1 0  of HB 1 290 applies to the 
site inspections conducted by field inspectors of the DMR-OGD. 

Over 90% of the oil and gas sites and pipelines in North Dakota are located on private land by virtue 
of the dominant rights of the mineral estate and a surface damage compensation agreement or an 
easement. Many salt water disposal and waste treating facility operators own the surface rights so 
they could deny our field inspectors access unless we could produce a search warrant or demonstrate 
probable cause, emergency, accident, or threat to public safety. 

The DMR-OGD conducted 1 84,7 1 9  routine well and facility inspections in 20 1 8 . 

The language in line nine of the bill would supersede the authority that the NDIC has held for over 3 5  
years to conduct unannounced routine inspections without permission, probable cause of a violation 
of law, a search warrant, or an emergency situation, accident, or other threat to public safety. 

For your convenience I have provided those citations below: 

38-08-04. JURISDICTION OF COMMISSION. 
1 .  he commission has continuing jurisdiction and authority over all persons and P.ro erty, P.Ublic and 
Rrivate, necessary to enforce effectively the 2rovisions of this cha ter. The commission has authority, 
and it is its duty, to make such investigations as it deems proper to determine whether waste exists or 
is imminent or whether other facts exist which justify action by the commission. 

43-02-03-14. ACCESS TO SITES AND RECORDS. The commission, director, and their 
representatives shall have access to all records wherever located. All owners, operators, drilling 
contractors, drillers, service companies, or other persons engaged in drilling, completing, 
producing, operation, or servicing oil and gas wells, ipelines, injection wells, or treating plants 
shall permit the commission, director, and their representatives to come upon any lease, property, 
pipeline right-of-way, well, or drilling rig operated or controlled by them, complying with state 
safety rules and to insP.ect the records and o eration, and to have access at all times to any and all 
records. If requested, copies of such records must be filed with the commission. The confidentiality 
of any data submitted which is confidential pursuant to subsection 6 of North Dakota Century Code 
section 3 8-08-04 and section 43 -02-03 -3 1 must be maintained . 
History: Amended effective April 30,  1 98 1 ;  January 1 ,  1 983 ; May 1 ,  1 992; May 1 ,  1 994 ; April 1 ,  
20 1 4; October 1 ,  20 1 6 . 

\ 
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, - 2-v · \ �  43-05-01 -04. ACCESS TO RECORDS. The industrial comm1ss1on and the comm1ss1on s 
authorized agents shall have access to all storage facility records wherever located. All owners, 
operators, drilling contractors, drillers, service companies, or other persons engaged in drilling, 
completing, operating, or servicing storage facilities shall permit the industrial commission, or its · 
authorized agents, to come upon any lease, property, well, or drilling rig operated or controlled by 
them, complying with state safety rules and to ins ect the records and operation of wells and to 
conduct sam ling and testing. Any information so obtained shall be public information. If 
requested, copies of storage facility records must be filed with the commission. 
History : Effective April 1 ,  20 1 0 . 

If your committee chooses to recommend do pass on HB 1 290, the NDIC respectfully recommends 
the following amendment : 

On Page 1 after l i ne 1 9  i nsert the fo l lowing 

5 .  Notwithstand ing any  other  provis ions of law, th is section does not apply to a pub l ic  
servant acti ng on behalf of  a state natu ral resou rce agency when they are performing 
tasks with i n  the scope of  the agency's regulatory respons ib i l it ies and authority . 

2-
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TESTIMONY OF JOHN BRADLEY 

NORTH DAKOTA WILDLIFE FEDERATION 

HOUSE BILL 1290 

SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

March 26, 2019 

Madam Chair Larson , members o f  the Senate Jud iciary Committee,  

For the Record , I am John Bradley, Executive Director of the North Dakota Wildl ife Federation 

(NDWF). I 'm here today representing our 1 ,500 members in  1 5  affiliated wi ld l ife and 

sportsmen's club  across North Dakota . While I don't speak for the 1 00 ,000 p lus hunters that 

took to the field  last year, I wou ld say our views are representative of many of them . 

NDWF opposes HB  1 290 . The bi l l  wou ld greatly restrict when a law enforcement officer cou ld 

enter on to private land .  Removing decades worth of case law cal led the "Open Fields" 

Doctrine .  This is problematic for numerous reasons, but the one of greatest concern to NDWF is 

that of game warden's entering on to private land to do field checks on hunters. A game warden ,  

i f  th is law is passed, wou ld have to get permission from the landowner or lawfu l  occupant i n  

order to check a hunter's l icense i n  the field .  This would hamstring the game wardens from 

effectively doing the ir  job, wh i le creating a poacher's dream scenario .  Game Warden's need to 

be able to access private lands to do l icense checks , ensure game l imits ,  or the variety of other 

duties that game wardens are tasked with doing .  

We strongly u rge a Do  No Pass on  H B  1 290. 
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��� T H E  W I L D L I F E  SOC I ETY 

P.O.  BOX 1 442 • BISMARCK, N D  58502 

TESTIMONY OF MICHAEL McENROE 
ND CHAPTER OF THE WILDLIFE SOCIETY 

HOUSE BILL 1290 
SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

MARCH 26, 2019 

Chairwoman Larson and Members of the Senate Judiciary Committee : 

For the record, I am Mike McEnroe representing the North Dakota Chapter of The 
Wildlife Society, comprised of some 350 wildlife biologists, land managers, 
educators, students, game wardens, and natural resource administrators in the 
State. 

HB 1290 effectively negates the "open-fields doctrine" in law enforcement, and 
would restrict the circumstances under which a law enforcement officer, such as a 
game warden, could enter private land. Under the provisions of this bill a game 
warden would need to have landowner or legal tenant permission in order to talk to 
or check a hunter or group of hunters on private land. This will hamper a warden' s 
ability to check hunters for licenses, bag limits, or numerous other compliance 
issues . This flies in the face of decades of case law deal ing with law enforcement 
in open fields or places in which there is not a reasonable expectation of privacy. 
This bill is not a private propc1ty rights issue. 

We support the North Dakota Game and Fish Department and the other law 
en forcement agencies in opposi tion to HB 1 290. 

The Chapter requests that I ill  1 290 be given a Do No Pc1ss recomrncuda.tion. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this statement to the Committee, and I 
·• -- ., 1 ·• - · 1· .., , · 1 • " t  I ·· " ··· ·, !) t �,_c . .  , , , cl ·'t' 11· "' 1 1e ·1t·u· 1� 1· tl p�1·son .. :J) L; :1_,.g ..ta0\.., tl � !L � .. �LJ. ;__h dl !_,, I L ,J { ,., ( f::, .,1 • 
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Testimony 

House Bi l l  1 290 

Senate Jud iciary Committee 

March 26,  20 1 9 , 9 : 00 a . m .  

North Dakota Department of Hea lth 

Good morn ing Chairman Larson and members of the Senate Jud ic iary Committee. My 
name is  David Glatt, Environmenta l Health Sect ion Ch ief for the North Dakota 
Department of Health (NDDoH) , soon to be the North Dakota Department of 
Environmental Qual ity (NDDEQ) .  I am here today to testify i n  opposit ion to H B  1 290 as 
currently written .  

The Environmenta l  Health Section is the pr imary agency tasked with protecting ,  
ma inta i n ing and improving the  state's a i r, water and land resources .  Our state 
cons istently receives national recogn it ion for its environmental qua l ity and h igh level of 
program compl iance .  This is on ly accompl ished with the cooperat ion and engagement 
of the pub l ic, industry and government at a l l  levels .  We have had some successes, b ut 
many chal lenges remai n ;  we are constantly rem inded that we cannot a l l  l ive upwind o r  
upstream .  The publ ic demands that we mon itor and protect pub l i c  and  envi ronmenta l 
hea lth th roµgh appropriate responses that are t imely ,  transparent ,  and fol low the 
science and the law. A delay in  com plet ing an i nvestigation  or i n it iating a response 
act ion can result in  increased environmenta l damage and adverse pub l ic hea lth 
impacts . We are concerned that H B  1 290 could l im it ou r  abi l ity to i n itiate t imely clean­
up  or conta inment responses, conduct environmental assessments , or  adversely impact 
our  ab i l ity to implement regu lations that protect pub l ic  and environmental health and 
ensure protection of the land . A few examples of our  concerns a re :  

� We typ ica l ly contact landowners about our  activit ies to ensure they are aware of 
our actions and encourage them to participate in ou r  i nvestigations. However, 
we have encountered instances where landowners are not read i ly avai lab le .  
They may not be i n  the state or even with i n  the country, mak ing contact with the 
landowner i n  certa i n  instances d ifficu lt i f  not imposs ib le .  A recent example is the 
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fi lter sock incident in  Noonan ,  N D  where the property owner was out of the 
country .  

� H B  1 290 identifies that entrance to p rivate land can be a l lowed if p robab le cause 
exists . It is my understand ing that the defi n it ion of p robable cause is "flex ib le , "  
with the defin it ion changing based upon  the  s ite-specific cond it ions .  I s  a citizen 
compla int sufficient to determ ine probab le cause? 

� Experience has shown that defin ing an  emergency s ituation or  th reat to pub l ic  
safety is not a lways eas i ly identified p rior  to i n it iating  an  assessment of the 
incident. A t imely comprehensive assessment identifies the degree of r isk and 
whether or not an emergency exists . Delays that wou ld be experienced locat ing 
and potentia l ly gain ing perm ission cou ld resu lt i n  creating  add itiona l  u nnecessary 
r isk due to the lack of a t imely response. 

� As a cond it ion of obta in ing a perm it, we requ i re some of our  regu lated fac i l it ies to 
a l low s ite access by the Department. Does H B  1 290 confl ict with those statutes 
and wou ld the Department be requ i red to ga in  s ite access perm iss ion i n  add it ion 
to that provided in the perm it? Also, there a re faci l it ies that are requ i red to 
comp ly with environmenta l regu lations but that do not cu rrently requ i re a perm it. 
To add ress the s ite access issue, wou ld  the Department be requ i red to write new 
permits for thousands of these faci l it ies to address the concern of s ite access? 

� Period ical ly we get reports of i l lega l  dumping of chem ica l  compounds on  private 
p roperty not owned by the responsib le party. H B  1 290 cou ld l im it ou r  t imely 
access a l lowing contamination to spread and cause g reater damage .  

� Our  sp i l l  i nvestigation p rogram conducts inspect ions of about 55 sp i l ls per month . 
The majority of these sp i l ls  affect p rivate land . I t  i s  not clear that a sp i l l  would 
meet the defi n it ion of "emergency s ituation ,  accident , o r  other th reat to pub l ic 
safety. "  For us to cont inue to i nspect these sp i l l s ,  we wi l l  need to contact each 
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l andowner  to obtain  permiss ion . This wi l l  requ i re that the landowner's identity be 
part of the admin istrative record and subject to d isclosu re u nder the open records 
laws . I f  we a re unable to contact the landowner rig ht away, it cou ld de lay the 
time for the department to address environmenta l damage from a sp i l l  on the 
landowner's p roperty. This cou ld a lso apply to mon itoring  the effect of 
d ischarges on waterbod ies . Although the Department does contact landowners 
to access private property, we a re concerned that th is law may requ i re them to 
contact landowners even for lakes with a pub l ic access ,  or  wel ls located a long a 
pub l i c  road . 

� I nspection  of rad ioactive sou rces used by many hospita ls ,  i ndustries and oi lfield 
operations is requ i red to be un impeded due to the potentia l risk of exposure to 
u nsecured or improperly mainta ined sources .  Some of our i nspect ions are 
conducted i n  the field where contractors a re operating  on  p rivate land , wh ich on ly 
upon inspect ion can the unacceptab le exposure of uncontro l led rad ioactive 
sources be determined . 

� We are concerned that HB 1 290 cou ld impede routine i nspections at o i l  wel l  
faci l it ies . D u e  to the large number  of faci l it ies, ou r  i nspections are typica l ly 
random and unannounced . H B  1 290 cou ld p roh ib it the Department from 
inspecting these faci l it ies if the faci l ity or  su rface owner  does not g ive s ite 
access . The Department wou ld then need to seek a search warrant wh ich wou ld 
change the character of the inspect ion from a compl iance act ion to a more 
aggressive enforcement action .  I n  add ition , if the Department cannot ga in  t imely 
s ite access, it cou ld necess itate the federa l  Environmenta l  P rotection Agency to 
become more active in inspections typ ica l ly hand led by the state at th is t ime. 

These a re just a few of our concerns regard i ng the impact HB 1 290 cou ld have on our  
ab i l ity to  p rotect pub l ic and  environmental health . We bel ieve that the net effect wi l l  be  
a degradation i n  environmental qua l ity and i ncreased cost to  imp lement regu latory 

• 
programs .  We ask for a do not pass determinat ion for H B  1 290 .  

3 .  
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As an a l ternative to a do not pass recommendation by th is com mittee ,  we wou ld support 
the amendment provided by the Division of M inera l  Resources as it re lates to the 
natu ra l  resource agencies . 

This concludes my testimony and I wi l l  stand for questions . 

4. 
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Madam Chair Larson, and members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, my name is Robert 
Timian, Chief Game Warden of the North Dakota Game and Fish Department. I am testifying 
today in opposition of HB 1 290. 

The fourth amendment to the US Constitution prohibits unreasonable search and seizure by the 
State . This creates a balance between an individual ' s  rights and the State ' s  need to protect the 
whole. In addition to subsequent Federal and State laws, the United States Supreme Court and 
North Dakota Supreme Court have produced rulings that more clearly define what the State may 
or may not do related to search and seizure . Game Wardens and all other North Dakota licensed 
peace officers receive extensive and continuing training on all laws and court decisions dealing 
with search and seizure and the limits those place on law enforcement. This bill as written would 
appear to have a negative impact on Game Wardens ' ability to inspect hunters in the field and 
create a fog of legal uncertainty that would require new case law and court rulings to sort out. 

In my experience in addition to any agency or States Attorney review to ensure search and 
seizure was done appropriately, most cases involve a motion to suppress, which require a Judge 
to review the circumstances and procedures regarding how law enforcement obtained the 
evidence, and should the Judge find the State did not act appropriately the evidence is 
suppressed. I know of no other law enforcement activity that is under such constant and 
continuing case by case legal scrutiny as search and seizure . 

In the 30  plus years I have been in law enforcement the legal standard for conducting searches 
has remained the same. Absent exigent circumstances, in town, out of town, house, barn, garage, 
any place that a citizen has a reasonable expectation of privacy, you get permission or a warrant. 

Current law and Judicial oversite provide, in accordance with the Fourth Amendment that 
balance between the needs of society and the rights of the individual . 

The Department respectfully requests a DO NOT PASS on HB 1 290. 
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House Bi l l  1 290 - Office of the State Eng i neer 
Senate Jud iciary Com m ittee 

Senator Larson, Madam Cha irman 
March 26, 20 1 9  

M a d a m  Cha i rm a n  La rson a n d  mem bers o f  the  Senate J u d i c i a ry 

Com m ittee,  my n a m e  i s  G a rl a n d  E rbe le  a n d  I a m  the  State E n g i neer  for 

t he  State Water Com m iss ion . 

H o u se Bi l l  1 290 proposes to p l ace l i m itat io n s  on  p rivate l a n d  a ccess by 

" l a w  enforcement officers" u n l ess spec ific  cri te ri a a re m et .  W h i le n ot 

i ntu it ive,  the reg u l a tory staff of my offi ce fit the  l eg a l  defi n i t ion  of a l aw  

e n forcement  officer as  North  Da kota Centu ry Code ( N . D . C . C) § 1 2 . 1 - 0 1 -

0 4  defi n es the  term to mea n " a  pu b l i c  serva nt  a uthori zed by l a w  o r  b y  a 

g overn ment  agency or  bra nch  to enforce the  l aw  a n d  to cond u ct or  

engage  i n  i nvesti gat ions  or  p rosecut ions  for v io l at ions  of  l aw . "  

Th e state e n g i neer h a s  the reg u l atory a uth ori ty to enforce the  water l aws 

of the  state . H u n d reds of water perm i ts a re i n spected each yea r, as  wel l 

a s  n u merous  other  s ite i nvestigat ions ,  u nder  a uthor izat ion  from 

n u m erous  sections  of N . D . C . C, wh i ch  i nc l u d e  6 1 - 0 3 - 2 1 . 1 , 6 1 - 04- 09 ,  6 1 -

04- 1 1 , and  6 1 - 04- 23 . 

The state e n g i n eer's sta nda rd operat i n g  p roced u re p rio r  to ente ri n g  on  to 

p rivate l a nd  is to notify th e l a ndowner  a h ead  of the  i nten ded s i te v i s i t .  

Wh i l e th i s  i s  a n  agency ch osen method ,  there a re sce n a rios where 

n ot i fi cat i on  may be e ither not poss i b l e  or  n ot p ra ct ica l .  As such , t h i s  b i l l 

cou l d  have a profound  effect on the  sou n d  m a n agem ent  of state 's water 

resou rces by l i m iti ng  the p rocess of entry onto p rivate p roperty . 

\ 
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My offi ce con d u cts s ite v is i ts for the pu rposes of m a ki n g  determ i n at ions  

at  the  req u est of  l oca l water resou rce d istri cts and  road  a uthori t ies ,  

i n vesti gat ion  of construct ion and d ra i nage  perm itti n g  com p l a i n ts,  fie l d  

ver ifi cat ion o f  water a ppropriat i on  perm its, a n d  a l l eged v io l a t ions  o f  water 

a ppropria t ion  l a w .  

W i t h  the  a dvent  o f  hyd ra u l i c  fractu ri n g ,  v io l a t ions  o f  water  l aw  h ave ri sen 

d ra m at ica l l y .  M a ny of  these v io lat i ons  occu r when a pa rty ta kes water 

w i thout  a perm i t .  I n  these cases, i m m ed i ate entry u pon  private p roperty 

to i n vestiga te a n d  gather i nform at ion is cru c i a l .  Th i s  u s u a l l y  i n vo lves 

ta k i n g  ph otos, i d ent ify ing  eq u i pment  owners h i p , etc . 

For th ese rea son s,  we oppose th e proposed b l a n ket l i m itat i ons  on  entry 

to p rivate p roperty by law enforcement offi cers .  H owever, we we lco m e  a 

conversat ion  to d i scuss the spec ifi c  con cerns the  b i l l  i ntends  to a d d ress so 

a worka b le  so l ut i on  that does not contra d i ct ex ist i n g  reg u l atory 

respons i b i l i t ies  of my offi ce ca n be deve loped . 

I w i l l  sta n d  for a ny q u esti ons  . 



Department of H uma n Services 

Senate Jud iciary Com mittee 

Senator Diane Larson, Cha i rma n 
March 26, 2019 

Cha i rman Larson and members of the Jud iciary Comm ittee , I am J im F lem ing ,  
D i rector of  the  Ch i ld Support Div is ion of  the Department of  Human Services 
(Department) . The Department defers to this Comm ittee on the merits of Engrossed 
House B i l l  1 290 ,  but requests an amendment that wou ld conti nue cu rrent processes 
to hold parents responsib le for support ing their  ch i ld ren .  

As l i ne  1 0  of Eng rossed House B i l l  1 290 was amended i n  the House ( rep lacing 
"enter" with "search" i n  the proh ib it ion) , it is unclear whether  Li nes 1 2- 1 6 are meant 
to be an exclus ive l ist of the pu rposes for wh ich law enforcement may enter private 
land without perm ission . 

The fi rst part of the Department's requested amendment wou ld authorize service of 
a summons and comp la int on a parent who is located on p rivate land . Ch i ld support 
ob l igations i n  North Dakota are estab l ished by cou rt order  i n  a lega l  action , wh ich is 
commenced with a summons and compla int served on the defendant persona l ly . 
The Department frequently attempts to serve the parent by cert ified ma i l ,  but it often 
must resort to hand-del ivery by the county sheriff's office . Even if the parent works 
in a pub l ic  p lace ,  parents often prefer not to be served at their  p lace of work . 

The second part of the Department's requested amendment wou ld authorize a court­
issued warrant or order to be served on a parent who owes past-d ue ch i ld support .  
Fa i l u re to pay a court-ordered ch i ld support obl igat ion can cause the court to issue 
an order requ i ring the parent to come to a heari ng and exp la in  the fa i l u re to pay. If 
the parent does not show up for the hearing , a warrant can be issued by the court to 
take the parent i nto custody. The ab i l ity of law enforcement offic ia ls to serve these 
orders and warrants is an important part of enforc ing the cou rt's ch i ld  support order. 

1 



We encourage the Comm ittee's favorable cons ideration of these amendments . This 
concludes my test imony, and I am happy to answer any questions you may have . 
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Prepared by the North Dakota 
Department of H uman Services 

03/26/20 1 9  

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B I LL NO .  1 290 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , remove "or" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 6 , replace the underscored period with an underscored sem icolon 

Page 1 ,  after l i ne 1 6 ,  insert :  

"d . Legal process i n  a civi l action needs to be served; or  

e . An order to show cause, warrant of attachment, or  warrant for 
fa i l u re to appear has been issued by a court" 

Renumber accord i ng ly 

3 
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1 9.0679.03001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dwyer 

March 26, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO .  1 290 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
legislative management study of search and seizure procedures .  

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - SEARCH AND 
SEIZURE PROCEDURES. During the 201 9-20 interim, the legislative management 
shall consider studying the Fourth Amendment of the Constitution of the United States , 
including the investigation, search, and seizure of private land, livestock, and buildings . 
The study must include options for protecting property from unreasonable interference 
by law enforcement. The legislative management shall report its findings and 
recommendations , together with any legislation required to implement the 
recommendations,  to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 9.0679.03001 
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